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...in Challenging Times

A Steady Ship...

...in Challenging Times

The year that went by was undoubtedly
challenging as the economy underwent
sharp slowdown and consequently
growth remained muted. It was therefore
a time to stand back and relook at the
larger picture, assess strengths and
weaknesses, review strategic plans,
reset direction and objectives, and be
disciplined and focused. The focus thus
remained on consolidation and improving
key financial indicators rather than
aggressive growth.

The COVID-19 pandemic hit the globe
in the last quarter of the FY 2019-20
with the lockdown kicking in Mumbai
from the last few days of March. It has
altered the world, and how we live and
work. It has undoubtedly wreaked havoc
and devastation, especially in the initial
bewildering days. While it has certainly
tested the human race and thrown up
serious challenges, it has also birthed
new opportunities, driving us to think
resourcefully and create new normals,
going forward.

Businesses suffered immensely at the
peak of the pandemic. But as the country
opens up, it is sure to see a revival in
business and consumer sentiment. The
nascent green shoots of recovery are
already visible, and these will only grow
as businesses pick up momentum. The
RBI in its recent Monetary Policy Review
(9™ Oct’20) struck a confident note on
the outlook for economic activity, to
revive growth and mitigate the impact

of COVID-19. The monetary policy
announcement and slew of measures
announced by RBI are positive and
growth-oriented and clearly outline that
the focus will continue on reigniting the
economy’s growth engine. This only
means that the doom and gloom days are
unequivocally behind us; it is now time to
get out of the shadows and get down to
serious work.

Overcoming challenges in times of
adversity helps us bring out the best in
processes and people. In our more than
100 years’ history, we have witnessed
various peaks and troughs but we never
gave way to pessimism, preferring instead
to balance optimism with caution and
forge a robust path.

Going forward, improvement in the flow
of credit in the economy is expected.

New ideas and opportunities are being
explored to pave the way for future growth
viz. expanding the reach of microfinance
lending, focusing on rural and semi-
urban regions, focusing on low-ticket
commercial loans, etc. A transition to
more robust Core Banking Solutions
(CBS) is also underway. Your Bank has
spared no effort to tide over these difficult
times, thus emerging as ‘A Steady Ship...
In Challenging Times’.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

The year under
review has
undoubtedly been
achallenging year
for the banking and
financial industry.
Slowing credit
growth and risk
averse sentiments
dominated

the banking
industry.

Banking on trust and foresight

Dear Shareholders,

| am delighted to present to you
the Annual Report for the financial
year 2019-20. During the year,

we continued to steer the Bank
through a rapidly changing and
evolving banking and economic
environment.

During the year under review, your
Bank has consciously opted for a
strategy of consolidation instead
of aggressive growth, amidst the
prevailing economic scenario.
Overall, the business of your Bank
has increased from ¥ 61,812.36
crore as on 31 March 2019 to

% 63,422.13 crore as on 315 March

2020. The deposits increased from
% 36,014.87 crore as on 31¢ March
2019 to ¥ 38,083.49 crore as on
315t March 2020. However,
advances reflected a decline from
¥ 25,797.49 crore as on 31t March
2019 to T 25,338.64 crore as on
31st March 2020. Consolidation
was necessary considering the
slowing economy. However, with
strong capital adequacy levels and
adequate liquidity, we have readied
ourselves for credit growth as the
situation eases. The Bank is also
maintaining healthy asset quality,
which is reflected in our lower NPA
numbers vis-a-vis peers in the
industry.
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As we look forward to future growth,
we streamlined work processes
and undertook organisational
transformation during the year.
Dedicated divisions were set up

for business development and

an enthusiastic sales team of
Business Development Officers
was instituted to reach out to
customers personally. ‘Operation
Sparsh’ was initiated to elevate the
customer service experience and
take customer delight to the next
level. A Product Development Team
was also constituted to improvise
and introduce new variants of retail
products.
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The Bank has initiated transition

to more robust Core Banking
Solutions. The peripheral solutions
for digital banking and other
channels are also being replaced
by latest technologically supported
solutions. This will significantly
enhance the overall banking
experience for customers, as the
front desk officials will be ably
supported by a superior technology.
The entire transition is expected

to be completed by FY 2020-21.
We also continue to challenge our
own prevailing digital solutions and
improvise on an ongoing basis

so that customers can transact
seamlessly, through their mobiles
or laptops. We are also planning

to collaborate with fintechs to
provide value-added benefits to
our customers. We understand
that technology must be aptly
supported by risk controls. We have
also therefore tightened our cyber
security controls and strengthened
the risk management and internal
audit systems.

The year under review has
undoubtedly been a challenging
year for the banking and financial
industry. Slowing credit growth and
risk averse sentiments dominated
the banking industry. The economic
slowdown started from the second
quarter of FY 2019-20 itself, which
is evident from the GDP numbers
decelerating quarter-on-quarter viz.
5.2 per centin Q1, 4.4 per centin
Q2, 4.1 per cent in Q3 and finally
3.1 per cent in Q4. The impact was
more severe in the last quarter
which is evident from the numbers.
Overall, the GDP numbers for FY
2019-20 stood at 4.2 per cent,

much lower than the 6.1 percent
for the preceding year. The said
numbers were supported by the
agricultural and services sector
growth. On the manufacturing front,
the y-0-y growth has been flat.

With businesses getting impacted
and specific sectors like realty,
auto ancillaries, etc. showing
imminent signs of stress, your
Bank treaded with caution on the
lending front during the year. We
lowered the ticket size of advances
as also reduced the Letter of Credit
discounting business, as a pro-
active step to mitigate risks, and
focussed more on retail lending.
During the last quarter, we faced
several deterrents on account

of external factors such as non-
registration, documentation issues,
etc. due to which, loans which
were sanctioned — both Retail as
well as Wholesale — could not be
disbursed.

With the overall slowdown and

the prevailing uncertainty, the

Bank as a proactive measure,
undertook additional provisioning
this year. The provisioning has been
undertaken to pre-empt any rise in
NPAs in the coming year and is a
step undertaken with prudence and
foresight.

Going forward, in the financial

year 2020-21, the Bank will

focus more on consolidation and
strengthening of balance sheet,
rather than growth numbers as
signs of recovery in the economy
may emerge only towards the latter
part of the year i.e. Q3 onwards. We
will however, continue to positively
build upon our existing schemes

and products in the coming year.
With rural and semi-urban regions
showing promising growth and
considering our good experience

in Microfinance lending, the Bank
aims to further expand the reach

of our microfinance schemes to all
the districts where we are presently
operating. We will also be focussing
on low-ticket commercial loans so
as to spur small manufacturers. This
will have twin advantages; on one
hand, we will have higher priority
sector advances in our portfolio and
on the other hand, risk will also be
spread over a huge number of such
small borrowers thus containing
NPAs. Besides, such loans will

also help improve the overall yield.
Thus, with a strong balance sheet,
healthy liquidity, prudent approach
towards lending, cutting-edge digital
technologies and a customer-
centric approach, we are confident
that we will emerge as a more
strong and more robust Bank in the
days to come.

As we continue to march

ahead with renewed vigour and
determination equipped with a
strong foundation and experience
of over ten decades in banking, we
are confident of taking the Bank to
greater heights of glory. We look
forward to your continued support,
as we once again thank each and
every one of you for being a part of
this journey.

Best Regards,

Gautam. E. Thakur
Annual Report 2019-20 5
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Bank A Steady Ship...
HIGH NOTES
Moments we treasure
BEST CO-OPERATIVE BANK IN INDIA - ENTERPRISE MOBILITY AWARD AT
2019 AWARD ‘EXPRESS BFSITECHNOLOGY AWARDS’

Saraswat Bank was awarded the “Best Co-operative
Bank in India 2019” at the Banking, Financial Services :
& Insurance (BFSI) Awards presented by ABP News.
Building on a tradition of trust, service and integrity, and :
embracing a technology-driven future, we are proud to
be India’s largest Urban Co-operative Bank. :

The award was received by Ms. Kanak Bhandare, Senior Manager
: - Digital Banking Department and Ms. Bhavana Vernekar, Deputy
: Manager - Digital Banking Department.

Saraswat Bank was awarded for its innovative online
: account opening application - “Saraswat Bank 100+ in

: the category of Enterprise Mobility at the ‘Express BFSI
The award was received by Mr. Abhijit Prabhu, CGM - Retail : ) ;
Banking and Mrs. Molina Gurjar, AGM - Retail Banking at the : Technology Awards’ organized by Express Computer, an
hands of Mr. Munish Atrey - ABP News National Advertising : IT business magazine of the Indian Express Group. The
Head, Mr. Shailendra Hegde - Asst. Vice President and : :
Mr. Rakesh Kumar -Group Account Director. : award wa.s conferreg on u; for deployllng a completely
: new solution and for innovative use of existing technology

: to gain a competitive edge across the banking industry.

NSDL STAR PERFORMER AWARDS 2019

Saraswat Bank won the “Top Performer
in New Accounts opened under
Co-operative Bank Category — No.1
position’ at the NSDL Star Performer
Awards 2019.

The award was received by Mr. Abhijit Prabhu,
CGM - Retail Banking and Mr. Anil Kamath,
AGM - Retail Banking at the hands of

Mr. G V Nageswara Rao, CEO-MD, NSDL.

8 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)
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IBA BEST TECHNOLOGY BANK
AWARD 2020

The IBA Technology Awards recognize and reward
individuals, professionals and banks who have
recorded noteworthy technology and business
benefits.

Saraswat Bank won the IBA Best Technology Bank
Award for the year 2020 for the 4" time in a row!

The award was received by Mrs. Ajita Bapat, DGM and Head -
Business Analytics Cell, Mr. Saisagar Kulkarni, Manager - Risk
Management Department and Mr. Shreyas Nagarkar, AGM -
Digital Banking Department at the hands of Mr. Rajnish Kumar,
Chairman - SBI, Mr. Sunil Mehta, Chief Executive - Indian Banks’
Association,Mr.RajeshGopinathan, CEO &MD-Tata Consultancy
Services, Mr. Noshin Kagalwala, VP & MD - SAS India and
Mr. Harun Rashid Khan, former Deputy Governor - RBI.

WELLS FARGO STRAIGHT-THROUGH PROCESSING AWARD 2018-19

Saraswat Bank won the “Wells Fargo Straight-Through Processing Award” for the year 2018-19 from Wells Fargo
Bank. The award was in recognition of the operating efficiencies shown by our Bank in the Straight-Through
Process of outward payments, which facilitated cost reductions, saved time and most importantly, met customers’
expectations.

The award was received by Mr. L. R. Samant - Joint Managing Director in the presence of Mr. A. M. Khot - Dy. Managing Director, Mr. D.Y. Tawde
- Dy. CGM and Mr. R. S. Sawant — DGM-IBD at Ekanath Thakur Bhavan. The award was presented by Mr. Santanu Sengupta - Regional Head,
Asia Pacific South, FIG, Wells Fargo Bank along with Mr. Atul Khadilkar - Head FIG India and Mr. Lavkesh Tandon - VP, FIG India of Wells Fargo
Bank.
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FRONTIERS IN CO-OPERATIVE BANKING AWARDS - 2019

The Frontiers in Co-operative Banking Awards are organized by the reputed industry magazine, Banking
Frontiers. Saraswat Bank was conferred with three awards viz — (1) Best Digital Bank (2) Leadership Award — Best
IT Head and (3) Best Product Innovation — ‘Bank on WhatsApp:

On behalf of the Bank, the awards were received by Mr. Milind Varerkar, GM — IT Department, Mr. Shreyas Nagarkar, AGM - Digital Banking
Department and Mr. Ameya Rajadhyaksha, Manager - Digital Banking Department.

THE FOURTH EKANATH
THAKUR MEMORIAL LECTURE

The Fourth Ekanath Thakur Memorial
Lecture was delivered by Mr. Kumar
Ketkar, veteran journalist and Member
of Parliament-Rajya Sabha. The topic
of the lecture was ‘The Twenty-First
Century and Challenges to the New
World. The lecture, commemorating
the 79" birth anniversary of our former

Chairman, Shri Ekanath Thakur was
attended by Mr. Gautam Thakur -
Chairman, Mr. S. K. Sakhalkar - Vice
Chairman, respected Directors on
the Board, Mrs. Smita Sandhane -
Managing Director, senior executives,
esteemed customers and dignitaries
from various fields.

10 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)
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MADHAV MANTRI TOURNAMENT 2019 - CRICKET CHAMPIONSHIP

The Madhav Mantri Intra-bank Cricket
Tournament 2019 (Day & Night cricket)
organized by the Employees’ Union
and Officers’ Association of the Bank
was held on 8" and 9" February, 2020.
Approximately 900 employees from
various branches across the country
participated in the tournament.

SARASWAT BANK WINS CORPORATE
CRICKET TOURNAMENT ORGANIZED BY
SPORTSZEALOT

Saraswat Bank won this award 2™ time

in a row, from among nine participating
organizations.

IMPLEMENTATION
OF CBS WITH
INFOSYS

Saraswat Bank and Infosys entered into a contract for implementing Core Banking System (CBS) under project
Udaan. The contract was signed by Mrs. Smita Sandhane, MD and Mr. Venkat Gosavi, Global Sales Head - Infosys.
They were accompanied by Mr. Milind Varerkar - GM, Mr. Kunal Karkhanis - DGM, Mr. Shreyas Nagarkar - AGM,
Mr. Sameer Khanolkar - Chief Manager and Mr. Kiran Ovalekar - Chief Manager from Saraswat Bank and Mr. Suhas
Patil, Mr. Ajit Sawant and Mr. Pritam Lohiya from Infosys.

Annual Report 2019-20 11
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LAUNCH OF NPCI RUPAY SELECT
CARD IN DUBAI

NPCI launched the RuPay Select Card at a
grand function held in Dubai. Saraswat Bank
was represented by Mr. Kunal Karkhanis,
DGM. NPCI RuPay Select Card is the high-end
card format of existing RuPay Card and will
cater to the elite class of customers. This was
initiated earlier by our Hon’ble Prime Minister,
Mr. Narendra Modi in the UAE.

ARJUN BADMINTON TOURNAMENT

The Arjun Badminton Tournament held by Saraswat
Bank Employees’ Union witnessed great participation by
the employees. Mr. S. R. Vaidya, Maharashtra’s renowned
badminton player whose passion for the game is
well-known, played a large role in making this tournament a
grand success.

EKLAVYA CARROM TOURNAMENT

Saraswat Bank’s Employees’ Union and Officers’ Association
organized the Eklavya Carrom Tournament this year, at
the Bank’s Corporate Office at Prabhadevi under the able
guidance of well-known Carrom champion, Mr. Arun Kedar. The
tournament saw a huge turnout and employees participated
with great enthusiasm.

12 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)
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SARASWAT BANK SPONSORED THE INDIAN CRICKET TEAM FOR THE PHYSICAL DISABILITY
T20 WORLD CRICKET SERIES TITLE

The first ever Physical Disability T20 World Cricket Series was held in England in August 2019. India was represented
by ‘Wadekar Warriors’ - a squad selected by the All India Cricket Association for Physically Challenged (AICAPC).
India defeated the hosts, England by 36 runs at the New Road Stadium in Worcester to win the inaugural edition of
the tournament. Saraswat Bank is proud to be associated with this championship.

Annual Report 2019-20 13
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE: 102"° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 102" Annual General Meeting of the Bank will be held on Monday, 7'" December, 2020
at 4.00 p.m. at Ekanath Thakur Bhavan, 953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai — 400025 to transact
the following business concerning the Bank through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM).

AGENDA

1. To consider and approve the Annual Accounts which consist of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report
of the Statutory Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31t March,
2020.

2. To appropriate net profit as recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31 March, 2020.
3. To approve amendments to Bank’s Bye-law Nos. 5(e)(v) and 64AA.

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2020-2021 and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix their
remuneration. The Board of Directors recommends M/s. G. D. Apte & Company, Chartered Accountants, GDA
House, Plot No. 85, Right Bhusari Colony, Paud Road, Pune - 411038, for appointment as Statutory Auditors.

5. To grant Leave of Absence to the members of the Bank who have not attended this 102" Annual General
Meeting through OAVM.

By Order of the Board of Directors

sd/-
Smita Sandhane
Managing Director

Mumbai, 23 October 2020

> Notes:
e The Annual Report of the Bank consisting of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report of the
Statutory Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31t March, 2020 is
annexed with this Notice.

e |f there is no quorum for the Meeting at the appointed time, in terms of Bye-law No. 48, the Meeting shall
stand adjourned to 5.00 p.m. on the same day and the Agenda of the Meeting shall be transacted at the
same venue irrespective of the Rule of Quorum.

e If any member desires to have information in connection with the Accounts, he/she may email the same
on corporatecenter @ saraswatbank.com not later than 8" December, 2020. The Bank shall reply to the
queries and the same will be posted on NSDL website www.evoting.nsdl.com.

e Shareholders are requested to intimate change in addresses if any, to the Share Department along with a
copy of proof of new residence at Madhushree, 5" Floor, Plot No. 85, District Business Centre, Sector 17,
Vashi, Navi Mumbai - 400 703 Phone No.: (022) 2789 2947 or by e-mail to shareholders @ saraswatbank.
com for updating the Bank’s records.

e Shareholders are requested to avail of nomination facility by submitting prescribed Nomination Form,
as required under Section 36 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and Bye-law No. 19 of
the Bank.

14 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)
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The detailed Notice of AGM and Annual Reportis available on the Bank’s website www.saraswatbank.
com. Members, desirous of having a printed copy, are requested to collect the same from the nearest
branch / zonal office or from the Registered Office of the Bank.

Unclaimed Dividend - Notice is hereby given that dividend for the year ended 31% March, 2017
(96" Dividend) if not drawn on or before 25" December 2020, will be forfeited by the Bank and credited to
Reserve Fund in terms of Bye-law No. 68A.

Notes pertaining to holding of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or

Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM):

In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies, New Delhi
vide its Circular number R-11017/101/2015-L&M dated 25" August 2020 permitted the holding of the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), without
the physical presence of the Members at a comman venue. In compliance with the terms and conditions
mentioned in the said circular, the AGM of the Bank is proposed to be held through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the aforementioned Circular, Bank is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect
of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, Bank has appointed National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode, 15 minutes before the commencement of the
Meeting through the login credentials provided by NSDL on their registered email address.

Mr. Ajaykumar Jain, Chief General Manager of the Bank has been appointed by the Bank as the Scrutinizer
to scrutinize the e-Voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote is not permitted. However, Institutional / Corporate
members (i.e. other than individuals/Partnership firm, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send a scanned
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its
representative to attend the AGM through OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-Voting. The
said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to shareholders @saraswatbank.com and to the Scrutinizer
by e-mail to ajaykumar.jain@saraswatbank.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in by e-mail
through its registered e-mail address with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies)
till 30" November 2020.

In case of joint holders, the person whose name stands first in the share certificate, if present, shall have
the right to vote. But in his absence, the person whose name stands second in the share certificate, who is
present for AGM through OAVM and who is not a minor and is eligible to vote as per the provisions of the
Bye-law of the Bank, shall have a right to vote.

The Bank has fixed 31t March, 2020 as the ‘Cut-off Date’ to record the entitlement of the Members to cast
their vote through remote e-Voting / e-Voting through VC/OAVM.

Members are requested to update their details (i.e. Name, Membership No., Mobile No. and E-mail ID)
through three options viz. e-mail to shareholders @ saraswatbank.com, by visiting the nearest branch of
the Bank or by clicking on the web link provided in the SMS sent to shareholders.

Members who would like to express their views/would like to speak during AGM through VC/OAVM
may register themselves as a speaker by sending their requests from their registered e-mail address
mentioning their name, membership number and mobile number, with the specific points that they would
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speak to the e-mail ID shareholders@saraswatbank.com till 30" November 2020. Those Members
who have registered themselves as speakers will only be allowed to express their views/speak during
the AGM through VC/OAVM. The Bank reserves the right to restrict number of speakers and duration of
their talk depending on the availability of time of the AGM through VC/OAVM. Any request received after
30" November 2020 shall not be considered.

» The chronology for conducting the AGM through OAVM is detailed below:

1. | Monday, Introduction to Agenda and Chairman’s Speech in 04.00 pm
07.12.2020 AGM which shall be webcast.
Members to post questions / queries electronically
on Bank e-mail address corporatecenter@
saraswatbank.com
2. | Tuesday, Members to post questions / queries electronically Queries can be posted from
08.12.2020 on Bank e-mail address corporatecenter@ 09.00 am on 07.12.2020 upto
saraswatbank.com 5.00 pm on 08.12.2020
3. | Wednesday, | The Bank shall reply to the queries and the same will | 09.00 am to 05.00 pm
09.12.2020 be posted on NSDL website www.evoting.nsdl.com
4. | Thursday, The remote e-Voting shall be open for two days. i.e. 09.00 am to 05.00 pm
10.12.2020 & | 10.12.2020 and 11.12.2020. This shall take care of
. technical glitches, connectivity problems, convenience
Friday, of the members etc.
11.12.2020
5. | Friday, The remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by After 05.00 pm
11.12.2020 NSDL for voting after the cut off time and date.

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS:
» Steps and process to join and vote at the AGM through OAVM :
e The remote e-Voting period shall be open for two days i.e. Thursday, 10" December, 2020 and Friday,
11" December, 2020 from 09.00 a.m. to 05.00 p.m. The remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by NSDL
for voting after the cut off time and date.

> How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
* The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:
= Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

= Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:
> How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.
nsdl. com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is opened, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open wherein you will have to enter your User ID, your Password which is provided
by NSDL on your registered e-mail ID. Further you will also have to verify as per the verification code
shown on the screen.

4. Your User ID details as provided by NSDL will comprise of E-Voting Event Number (EVEN) followed by
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Folio Number (Registration Number) as given below:

For example, your User ID will be: if Folio Number (Registration Number) is 001*** and EVEN is 101456
then user ID is 101456001 ***

Your password details are given below: (i) For Old user of NSDL: If you are already registered for
e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

» For first time user of NSDL.:
If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which
was communicated to you by NSDL. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password; you need to enter the ‘initial
password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

» How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i

If your e-mail ID is registered with the Bank, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your
e-mail ID. Trace the e-mail sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the e-mail and open the
attachment i.e. .PDF file. Open the .PDF file. The password to open the .PDF file is your 6 digit Folio
Number (Registration Number) for shares held in physical form. The PDF file contains your ‘User ID’
and your ‘initial password:

(i) If your e-mail ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in notes “117

» If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your

password:

a) Physical User Reset “Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) If you are still unable to get the password by above mentioned options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your Folio Number (Registration Number), your PAN, your name and
your registered address.

c) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.

d) After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

e) Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of

e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 are given below:
> How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting.
Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

After clicking on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you
are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of Bank for which you wish to cast your vote.
Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-Voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
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10.

11.

attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Physical
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members and e-Voting
user manual for Members available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free
no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request to Mr. Sanjeev Yadav, Assistant Manager — NSDL at SanjeevY @
nsdl.co.in,022-42165335 or at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Those members whose e-mail IDs are not registered with the Bank, for procuring user ID and password
and Registration of e mail IDs for e-Voting for the resolutions set out in this Notice, are requested to
provide Folio Number (Registration Number), Name of Member, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), to shareholders @saraswatbank.com The time limit for Registration will be 30"
November 2020.

> Instructions for members for attending the AGM through OAVM are as under:

1.

N

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting
system. Members may access the same at www.evoting.nsdl.com under members login by using the
remote e-Voting credentials. The link for OAVM will be available in member’s login where EVEN of the
Bank will be displayed. Please note that the Members who do not have the User ID and Password for
e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote
e-Voting instructions mentioned in the Notice to avoid last minute rush. Further members can also use
the OTP based login for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL.

A Member shall not have more than one vote irrespective of the number of shares held.
Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through laptops/desktops for better experience.

Further, Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that participants connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through laptops/desktops
connecting via mobile hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuations in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of
aforesaid glitches.

Members who need assistance before or during the AGM through OAVM, can contact NSDL on evoting@
nsdl.co.in/ 1800-222-990 or contact Mr. Sanjeev Yadav, Assistant Manager — NSDL at SanjeevY @nsdl.
co.in, 022-42165335/ or Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager - NSDL at pallavid @ nsdl.co.in, 022-24994545.
Alternatively, the Members can also write to National Securities Depository Limited, Trade World, A
Wing, 4™ Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013.

» Other Instructions:

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM through OAVM, unblock
the votes cast through remote e-Voting in the presence of two witnesses not in the employment of the
Bank and make, within a period not exceeding 24 hours of conclusion of the e-Voting on 11" December
2020, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, forthwith to
the Chairman of the Bank or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.

2. The Chairman or the authorised person shall declare the results of the e-Voting on the next working
day upon receipt of the report from the Scrutinizer and declare the same along with the report of the
Scrutinizer on the website of the of NSDL.
By Order of the Board of Directors
sd/-
Smita Sandhane
Mumbai, 23" October 2020 Managing Director
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Performance Highlights

(X in crore)
Particulars For The Year Ended % Change
m 31-03-19
Total Income 3,742.24 3,430.04 9.10
Total Expenditure 3,090.55 2,799.77 10.39
Gross Profit 651.69 630.27 3.40
Less: Provisions 258.80 231.57 11.76
Profit Before Tax 392.89 398.70 -1.46
Less: Income Tax 142.10 107.41 32.30
Profit after Tax carried to Balance Sheet 250.79 291.29 -13.90
At The Year End
Own Funds 3,522.04 3,237.38 8.79
Share Capital 285.99 263.97 8.34
Reserves and Surplus 3,236.05 2,973.41 8.83
Deposits 38,083.49 36,014.87 5.74
Current 2,210.60 2,169.66 1.89
Savings 8,513.34 8,217.28 3.60
Term 27,359.55 25,627.93 6.76
Advances 25,338.64 25,797.49 -1.78
Secured 25,089.39 25,618.87 -2.07
Unsecured 249.25 178.62 39.54
Total Business 63,422.13 61,812.36 2.60
Priority Sector 10,911.51 10,611.05 2.83
% to Adjusted Net Bank Credit (ANBC) 42.30 45.21 -
Small Scale Industries 1,083.99 77750 39.42
Small Businessmen and Traders 4,693.23 4,805.05 -2.33
Other Priority Sectors 5,134.29 5,028.50 2.10
Working Capital 44,700.57 42,915.12 4.16
Investments 13,129.03 11,013.69 19.21
Borrowings and Refinance 1,706.49 2,221.31 -23.18
Net NPAs (%) 1.56 1.80
Capital Adequacy (%) 14.75 13.16
Number of Members
Regular (Shareholders holding 50 shares & above) 2,25,245 2,13,836
Nominal 61,886 50,273
Number of Branches 284 284
Number of Employees 4,246 4,341
Productivity per Employee 14.94 14.24
Profit per Employee (% in lakh) 5.91 6.71
Return on Average Assets (%) 0.58 0.72
CD RATIO (%) 66.53 71.63
NIM (%) 2.39 2.62
Cost to Income Ratio (%) 54.57 52.80
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Report of the Board of Directors

Dear Members,
Your Directors have great pleasure to present the 102" Annual Report on the business and operations of your Bank
together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31t March, 2020.

20

THE GLOBAL ECONOMY AND INDIA

The global economy witnessed a lot of turbulence
in 2019, with prolonged trade disputes, delay in the
Brexit deal, high Policy uncertainties, oil market
disruptions and geopolitical risks. The global
gross domestic product growth rate slipped to 2.9
per cent during calendar year 2019 - the lowest
since the global financial crisis of 2008, as events
like trade wars and Brexit dominated the global
economy. Central banks around the world loosened
their monetary stance in a bid to revive the world
economy. Low global interest rates and ample
liquidity pushed up asset prices and global debt.

The US economy growth rate moderated to 2.3
per cent during FY 2019, primarily reflecting
decelerations in the non-residential fixed investment
and the personal consumption expenditures and
a downturn in exports. Even as the US economy
slowed down, the Fed delivered three back-to-back
rate cuts during calendar year 2019, to insulate itself
against any fallout of the US-China trade wars.

The Euro Zone economy also had a tough year
during 2019 as GDP slowed to 1.5 per cent, with
the Q4 numbers disappointing at 0.1 per cent. The
growth was dragged down by the continued slowing
of the three largest economies namely Germany,
Italy and France. The German economy barely grew
- stagnating with shrinking exports and managed to
narrowly avoid a recession. France and ltaly shrank
unexpectedly amid waning consumer confidence.

Growth momentum in the UK also weakened as
reflected in decline in industrial production and tepid
retail sales.
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On the Asian front, China recorded a growth of
6.1 per cent, amid sluggish domestic demand and
adverse effects of the trade disputes on the economy.

Just as the US-China trade tensions eased with
the phase one of trade deals being done, the
global economy was hit by the slowdown with the
Coronavirus outbreak. The deadly Coronavirus
stoked fears of sharp impact on global supply
chains, trade and consumer spending resulting in
global economic slowdown. In a bid to shield the
US economy from potential damage, the Federal
Reserve initiated policy action by way of a 50
bps rate cut. Global stocks witnessed a sell-off
as investors rushed to safe haven assets like US
Treasuries and Gold.

Overall, global economy went through a lean phase
in the year under review, initially with intensified
trade wars and Brexit delays and subsequently with
the slowdown in wake of the Covid-19 outbreak.

Indian Economy

On an annual basis, India’s Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) rate slowed to 4.2 per cent compared to 6.1
per cent in the preceding year. Agricultural sector
grew by 4 per cent for the full year, on the back of
better rabi harvest. Manufacturing activity contracted
steeply and grew by a meagre 0.03 per cent for
the year. The financial services sector grew by 4.6
per cent in the year.

Overall, the moderation in growth performance was
on the back of bleak industrial sector growth. The
industrial sector witnessed negligible growth on
account of subdued consumption and investment
demand. The agricultural sector and the services
sector continued to support the overall growth
numbers.
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Key Macro-Economic Indicators

Macro headwinds during the year under review
were mainly related to rising inflation and fiscal
challenges. Inflation was benign at the start of the
year but surged since September 2019 driven by the
rise in food prices especially vegetables. Inflation
numbers touched a high of 735 per cent by Q4,
thus breaching the RBI target of 4 per cent (+/- 2
per cent). Core inflation trended lower during the
year, primarily due to the base effect.

Weak growth impacted revenues and consequently
the tax collections. Direct tax collections remained
well below the Government estimates. GST
collections were also below target, suggesting a
shortfall in the indirect tax collections as well. On
the fiscal front thus, the Government overshot the
fiscal deficit target for the year 2019-20.

To bridge the fiscal gap, the Government is relying
on non-tax revenues through strategic stake sale
of select PSUs. The Government has earmarked
a record high disinvestment target of ¥ 2.1 lakh
crore in FY21, which includes dilution of stake of
key financial institutions like LIC and IDBI Bank. The
Government has thus stuck to the glide path for the
year 2020-21.

Oil remained volatile during the year as geopolitical
tensions intensified and prices tumbled to
unprecedented lows. This helped India’s Current
Account Deficit (CAD). India’s CAD narrowed to 0.9
per cent of GDP for FY 2020 versus 2.1 per cent of
GDP in the preceding year, on account of subdued
imports, thus keeping within the comfortable
threshold of sub 2 per cent.

The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) initially
focused on slowing growth and delivered successive
rate cuts, amounting to a cumulative 110 bps, taking
the repo rate to 5.15 per cent. The RBI maintained
its accommodative stance, focusing on addressing

tepid growth which was impacted by both cyclical
as well as structural factors. During the second half
of the year, elevated inflation levels and concerns
on fiscal slippages compelled RBI to take a pause
and hold rates. With not much scope for rate cuts,
RBI came up with unconventional measures like
Operation Twist, in which RBI bought long dated
papers and sold short dated ones in order to
moderate the steepness of the yield curve. Also,
Long Term Repo Operations were introduced for
improving monetary transmission. Towards the end
of the year with COVID-19 being declared as a
pandemic, the subsequent lockdown was imposed
in the country. To revive the growth, RBI sharply cut
the repo rates by 75 bps, taking the repo rate to 4.40
per cent as on 31t March, 2020.

Liquidity which was in deficit at the start of the year
turned hugely positive during the course of the year
with strong accretions to the forex reserves which
grew from USD 411 billion at the start of the year
to around USD 475 billion by the year end. The
surplus system liquidity was further accentuated by
OMOs (Open Market Operations), forex purchases
by RBI and rise in Government expenditure. As
the COVID-19 situation unfolded towards the year-
end, RBI announced massive liquidity injection and
relaxation through various measures to address
the existing and potential financial stress in the
economy.

Financial Markets

Global bond vyields remained subdued with a
dovish wave globally throughout the year. The world
economy entered a slowdown phase with US-
China trade wars, weaker outlook for some of the
key emerging markets and developing economies,
tighter financial conditions and geopolitical tensions.
With global risk-off post the Coronavirus scare,
yields on US Treasuries hit historical lows. This was
followed by yields of other economies across the
globe also touching a new low.
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The Indian stock markets remained upbeat during
the course of the year despite deceleration in
the overall growth numbers, with sustained FlI
inflows as India continued to remain an attractive
destination for investments globally. The Sensex
and Nifty touched all-time highs of 41,952 and
12,355 respectively during the month of January
2020. The stock markets saw a sharp fall from their
peak levels and closed for the year at 29,468 and
8,598 respectively.

For Indian Government Securities, yields witnessed
a sharp decline in FY 2019-20. During the first half of
the year, successive rate cuts by RBI amid slowing
growth led to fall in the yields. RBI's special market
operations and large liquidity surplus in the banking
system aided further decline in 10-year benchmark
yield which closed for the year at 6.14 per cent.

USD/INR largely remained rangebound during the
year under review, with surplus Balance of Payments
(BoP) amidst continued RBI intervention. However,
towards the close of the year, investor sentiments
turned fragile due to concerns of the impact of
Coronavirus. The currency witnessed heavy volatility,
particularly during the last month and Indian Rupee
finally settled at 75.32 per US Dollar as on 31t March,
2020.

Overall assessment

The year started off amidst challenging times with
the sustained credit freeze post the ILFS default,
decelerating investment and slowing domestic
growth attributed to both cyclical as well as structural
factors. The global economic outlook was equally
impaired by a confluence of geopolitical tensions,
growing protectionism, sharp slowing down of major
economies - all of which prompted the hawkish stance
by the US Fed as well as by several other major
Central Bankers. The year saw many credit defaults
across sectors, resulting in rising challenges for fresh
funding for a major section of the market, especially
NBFCs. Overall, the economy was characterized by
a sharp slowdown and persistent financial sector
stress.
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With the domestic economic slowdown becoming
more severe and prolonged, the Government
announced several steps to arrest slowdown viz. a
significant cut in corporate tax rates to 22 per cent,
recapitalization and consolidation of PSU banks
as also sector-specific measures to address the
challenges in infrastructure, real estate, NBFC, etc.
In spite of these steps and surplus banking liquidity,
weak credit appetite hurt several crucial sectors —
auto, manufacturing, realty, to name a few.

Going forward

Going forward, the overall Macroeconomic policies
will hold the key to revive domestic investment as
well as to draw in foreign capital — investments and
portfolio flows. The main downside risk to India’s
growth forecast is the continued spread of the
COVID-19 pandemic as the health crisis has not yet
been contained so far. Normal monsoon is a positive
sign. However, the recovery in the Manufacturing
and Services Sector will only be seen from late third
quarter onwards of FY 2020-21.

In summing up thus, it seems that GDP growth
would be negative for FY 2020-21, but the economic
activity would start improving towards the closing
months of FY 2020-21.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE BANKING
AND FINANCIAL SECTOR IN INDIA

The financial year 2019-20 has been a significant
year for banks with many interesting developments.

Meaningful Consolidation among PSU banks

A mega merger of PSU banks involving
consolidation of ten banks into four banks was
effected during the year 2019-20 and at the start of
FY 2020-21, in moves redefining the Indian banking
space and creating economies of scale. The first
such merger of Vijaya Bank and Dena Bank into
Bank of Baroda came into effect from 1st April, 2019.
Other mergers include Allahabad Bank with Indian
Bank, Oriental Bank of Commerce and United
Bank of India with Punjab National Bank, Syndicate
Bank with Canara Bank, and Corporation Bank and
Andhra Bank with the Union Bank of India. The



...in Challenging Times

Statutory Reports Financial Statements

mega mergers are aimed at achieving economies
of scale and creating niche segments rather than
all banks replicating each other in terms of business
mix. The Government has infused capital worth
more than ¥1,00,000 crore during the financial year
in PSBs, to encourage banks to start funding the
credit growth.

Challenging time for private banks

Private banks, too, went through challenging times
and big reshuffles. The major challenge for the new
management in the banks is to make a sustainable
and profitable business by dealing effectively with
the NPAs, raising funds and generating credit
demand. A major private sector bank dominated
headlines in the closing months of 2019-20, for the
wrong reasons. RBI superseded the Board and
imposed a 30 day moratorium on its operations. The
moratorium caused major disruptions due to the
sheer size of the bank as well as prominent services
being offered by the bank in terms of e-commerce,
foreign exchange services, etc. The moratorium was
subsequently lifted after a reconstruction scheme
formulated for the Bank with investors including the
State Bank of India.

NBFC crisis

The year witnessed default by a major housing
finance company. Credit markets froze and shut
out many lenders. The RBI and the Government
announced several measures to restore confidence
in the NBFC sector and to boost credit flow to NBFC
sector viz. increasing the single NBFC exposure
limit for banks, permitting loans given by banks
to NBFCs for on-lending to agriculture, micro and
small enterprises (MSEs) and housing etc. RBI also
tightened the regulatory oversight of the sector by
creating a specialized supervisory and regulatory
cadre within the RBI, so as to align regulation for
NBFCs with that of Scheduled Commercial Banks
and reduced periodicity of the NBFC supervision to
12 months from 18 months earlier.

The RBIl and the Government of India also undertook
several measures to improve the functioning of the
banking sector, some of which are listed below:

Boosting RTGS/NEFT transactions

In a bid to promote digital transactions, The Reserve
Bank of India announced the conversion of the
National Electronic Funds Transfer (NEFT) channel
into a 24 x 7 service effective from 16" December,
2019. The 24 x 7 NEFT system is now available on
all days of the year including holidays.

The Reserve Bank of India during June 2019 removed
the charges levied on fund transfers through RTGS
and NEFT to boost the digital transactions. The
move was broadly aimed at deepening the financial
markets.

Linking of interest rates to external benchmark
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) mandated all the banks
to link the new Personal, Retail, Housing, Auto and
MSME loans to the external benchmark-based rate
with effect from 1%t October, 2019. The move aims
to ensure faster transmission of Policy rate cuts to
borrowers. The External Benchmarks could be any
among these - RBI's Repo Rate, 3-Month Treasury
Bill, 6-Month Treasury Bill and any other benchmark
rate published by the FBIL.

Guidelines for resolution of stressed assets
New guidelines for resolution of stressed assets
were made effective from June 2019, providing
for a system of strong disincentives in the form
of additional provisioning for delay in initiation
of resolution or insolvency proceedings. The
new framework made inter-creditor agreements
mandatory and provided for a majority decision to
prevail.

Large Exposure Framework for Banks

With a view to reduce concentration risks and align
them with global norms, RBI revised the Large
Exposures Framework (LEF). As per the revised
norms, the sum of all the exposure values of a
Bank to a single counterparty should not be higher
than the 20 per cent of the Bank’s available eligible
capital base. The LEF also introduced the concept
of economic interdependence in definition of criteria
of connected counterparties.
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Extending foreign exchange market hours

AD Category-l banks were allowed to undertake
Customer and Inter-bank foreign exchange
transactions beyond onshore market hours.

Expanding and deepening of digital payments
ecosystem

RBI directed State level Bankers Committees to
select one district on pilot basis to expand the digital
payments ecosystem. The identified district would
be allotted to a bank having significant footprint
which will endeavor to make the district 100 per cent
digitally enabled within a year. In a move to improve
the payment ecosystem, RBI opened the space for
on-tap licences for a range of entities from utility
payment providers to rural ATMs to trade financiers
for MSMEs.

Other Fiscal Measures

e The Corporate Tax Rate was lowered to
22 per cent with effect from 1t April, 2019. The
tax cut aims to stimulate private investments
from international players.

e Reserve Bank of India (RBI) transferred
3 1,76,051 crore as the RBI Surplus to Central
Government, after the RBI adopted revised
Economic Capital Framework (ECF) as
suggested by the Bimal Jalan Committee.

e The Central Government approved the
disinvestment of 33 Central Public Sector
Enterprises (CPSESs) in the year 2019.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE URBAN
CO-OPERATIVE BANKING SECTOR

Measures taken by RBI as regards Urban
Co-operative Banks (UCBs) during the year under
review are indicated below:

RBI revises PCA regime for UCBs facing
financial stress

RBI rationalised its Supervisory Action Framework
(SAF) to initiate Prompt Corrective Action (PCA) for
Urban Co-operative Banks (UCBs) facing financial
stress. UCBs may be placed under PCA if net
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Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) exceed 6 per cent
of net advances, incur losses and capital adequacy
falls below 9 per cent. To halt failing asset quality, RBI
may also prescribe steps like reduction in exposure
limits for fresh loans and advances carrying risk-
weights more than 100 per cent and place restriction
on declaration or payment of dividend/donation
without prior approval of RBI.

Asset-heavy UCBs must report large exposures
to CRILC every quarter

According to operational guidelines issued by the
RBI, Urban Co-operative Banks (UCBs) having total
assets of ¥ 500 crore and above as on 31t March of
the previous financial year will have to report large
exposures to the Central Repository of Information
on Large Credits (CRILC) on a quarterly basis. The
data is to be submitted within 30 days from the end
of the quarter through the XBRL platform of the RBI.

Inclusion of Co-operative banks under the
SARFAESI Act

The Supreme Court brought co-operative banks
under the Securitization and Reconstruction of
Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Act
of 2002 (SARFAESI Act) that empowers lenders to
seize and sell defaulters’ assets. Under SARFAESI
Act, the secured creditors can take possession of
the assets of a borrower who fails to pay dues within
60 days of demanding repayment. This move by the
apex court aims to boost the co-operative banks
that play a vital role in financial inclusion across the
country.

Constitution of Board of Management (BOM) in
UCBs

Reserve Bank of India vide its circular No. RBI/2019-
20/128 DoR (PCB).BPD.Cir.N0.8/12.05.002/2019-20
dated 31t December 2019, has instructed Primary
Urban Co-operative Banks to constitute a Board of
Management.

Revised Exposure limits

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) revised exposure limits
for Urban Co-operative Banks (UCBs) to a single
borrower and a group of borrowers to 15 per cent
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and 25 per cent, respectively, of Tier-I capital as on
31t March of the preceding year. Previously, the
UCBs were permitted to have exposures of up to
15 per cent and 40 per cent of their capital funds
to a single borrower and a group of borrowers,
respectively. The revised exposure limits will be
applicable to all types of fresh exposures taken by
UCBs, and they will have to bring down their existing
exposures, which are in excess of the revised limits,
by 31st March, 2023.

Increase in Priority Sector Targets for UCBs

The target to Priority Sector lending for UCBs has
been raised gradually to ultimately reach at 75 per
cent of the advances. This target has to be reached
in phases — 45 per cent by March 2021, 50 per cent
by March 2022, 60 per cent by March 2023 and 75
per cent by March 2024.

Comprehensive cyber security framework for
Primary UCBs

RBI released a cyber security framework for Urban
Co-operative Banks, with a view to create a baseline
security architecture across smaller UCBs.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF YOUR
BANK DURING FY 2019-20

e The total business of your Bank increased from
% 61,812.36 crore as on 31t March 2019 to
% 63,422.13 crore as on 31%t March, 2020 i.e. a
rise of ¥ 1,609.77 crore.

*  On the deposit growth front, deposits increased
from ¥ 36,014.87 crore as on 31t March, 2019
to ¥ 38,083.49 crore as on 31 March, 2020 i.e.
a rise of ¥ 2,068.62 crore.

e A notable feature is that the CASA deposits
have increased from ¥ 10,386.94 crore as on
31t March, 2019 to ¥ 10,723.94 crore as on
31t March, 2020 i.e. by I 337 crore.

e During FY 2019-20, economic slowdown was
witnessed and the growth numbers started
tapering off from Q3 onwards. This was reflected

in the GDP numbers of Q3 and Q4, which stood
at4.1 percentand 3.1 per cent respectively.As a
result of this, on the Wholesale Banking front, the
Bank refrained from lending to certain stressed
sectors such as real estate, auto ancillaries, etc.
Another step that was initiated was to lower the
ticket size of advances. Besides, a conscious
decision was made to bring down the LCBD
exposure as LCBD market, in general, tapered
off. The effect of the same was reduction of ¥
800 crore of LCBD business during FY 2019-
20. Though the Wholesale Banking Department
had sanctioned and unutilized loans to the tune
of ¥ 600 crore during the last quarter of the
year, same could not be disbursed due to the
difficulties faced by the customers and external
hindrances in the month of March 2020.
Consequently, the advances in the Wholesale
Banking segment remained flat at the end of
31st March, 2020.

Retail advances rose from X 9,621.17 crore as
on 31t March, 2019 to ¥ 10,856.94 crore as on
315 March, 2020, a rise of ¥ 1,235.77 crore i.e.
12.84 per cent increase. Apart from this, your
Bank had also sanctioned nearly ¥ 1,400 crore of
retail advances in the last quarter of the financial
year. However, with retail customers facing
lot of operational hindrances for registrations,
documentation, etc., this sanctioned business
of ¥ 1,400 crore could therefore not get
converted into actual disbursements. As a result
of the same, the retail portfolio which grew by
% 1,200 crore during the year could have further
grown by another ¥ 1,400 crore by 31t March,
2020.

Growth in advances, after taking into
consideration the above difficulties faced during
the last quarter of FY 2019-20, thus could have
gone up by ¥ 2,000 crore. This would have
paved the total growth in the business of your
Bank by ¥ 3,600 crore as against an increase of
% 1,600 crore approximately.
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e The gross profit of your Bank increased from

¥ 630.27 crore as on 31t March, 2019 to
% 651.69 crore as on 315t March, 2020 i.e. a rise
of ¥ 21.42 crore.

Z691.69 crore

Gross Profit for FY 2019-20

Graph No. 1
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e Inorder to pre-empt the rise in NPA provisioning

because of Covid impacted advances, if any,
the Bank decided to take a prudent approach
and create additional provisions to soften the
impact of provisioning during FY 2020-21. As a
result, the net profit for FY 2019-20 is seen at
% 250.79 crore. Had this step not been taken,
the net profit for FY 2019-20 could have easily
surpassed the net profit figure of ¥ 291.29 crore
of FY 2018-19.

e The ratio of net NPA to advances of the Bank,
which stood at 1.80 per cent as on 31t March,
2019 has improved to 1.56 per cent as on
315t March, 2020.

e Own funds of your Bank have risen from
I 3,237.38 crore as on 31t March, 2019 to
T 3,5622.04 crore as on 31%t March, 2020, i.e. a
rise of 8.79 per cent.

e The Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets Ratio
(CRAR) stands at 14.75 per cent as on
31st March, 2020, higher than 13.16 per cent as
on 31t March, 2019.

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)
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SEGMENTWISE PERFORMANCE

(M)

Retail Banking

Competitive market situations necessitate
internal structural changes within critical
departments/segments of the Bank to improve
overall quality, productivity and profit. Your
Bank’s Retail Banking Department underwent
major structural change during FY 2019-20 in
order to further streamline work processes, to
provide due attention to every business segment
of the department, equal distribution of work
responsibilities among team members and
develop a specialised team for each business
unit to handle day to day operations.

Retail Banking Department underwent a major
transformation where the core functions of the
department were refashioned and introduced
in the form of two major divisions namely —
i) Retail Business Operations & ii) Business
Development.

Accordingly, all traditional core business
activities like target setting, business monitoring
& reporting, loan approvals, NPA & Overdue
monitoring & Business Policies etc are being
handled by Retail Business Operations division.
Business Development division is responsible
for non-conventional & experimental activities
like new and existing product/process
development, initiatives to improve customer
connect, lead management, credit card and
personal loan business, third party business,
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improving customer experience, business
generation through specialised marketing
officials and priority sector lending.

For operational convenience, Business
Development division is further bifurcated in
below verticals, having their own predefined
activities and responsibilities.

1. Business Development Officers (BDOs)
The concept of having a dedicated sales
team, intending to reach out to maximum
customers personally and offer best
customer service at their doorstep was
introduced for the first time in the Bank. The
team comprises handpicked, specialized
and experienced officials of the Bank having
flair, enthusiasm and passion for marketing.
The members of this team are designated
as ‘Business Development Officers’ (BDOs).

Today, your Bank has 93 such talented
BDOs reaching out to our new and existing
customers for fulfilling their financial needs.
The BDO team has been provided with
soft skill training by specialized trainers
and are well equipped with devices like
Tab and other software tools which track
their business and enable faster customer
service.

The Business Development vertical was
started in July 2019. This team with its skills
and well directed efforts, in a short span

of 9 months has garnered a business of
% 429 crore which includes advances of
% 260 crore, deposits of ¥ 159 crore and
third-party business of ¥ 10 crore.

Business Development officials  will
continue to substantially contribute towards
strengthening our business portfolio in the
near future.

Product Development Team:

Your Bank assigned a dedicated team
with the responsibility of launching new
products and studying and refining existing
retail products based on market analysis,
business trends and customer needs.
The team has worked towards improving
existing retail products like two-wheeler
loan and Savings a/c where new variants
were introduced for two-wheeler loan and
minimum balance of regular Savings a/c
was also reduced.

Retail Advances

Your Bank adapted to the market trend and
focussed towards increasing retail lending.
Suitable measures were initiated for the
same, resulting in a rise of 13 per cent in
the retail advances portfolio. The portfolio
has risen from ¥ 9,621.17 crore as on
31t March, 2019 to ¥ 10,856.94 crore as
on 31t March, 2020. The share of retail
advances increased from 42.75 per cent to
49.26 per cent.

Table No. 1:
(% in crore)
Advances NPA Y. Advances NPA %
Retail 7,645.41 99.31 1.30 Retail 6,744.37 72.89 1.08
Commercial upto 3,211.53 14719 4,58 Commercial upto 2,876.80 88.03 3.06
% 10 crore % 10 crore
Total 10,856.94 246.50 2.27 Total 9,621.17 160.92 1.67
Annual Report 2019-20 27



A Steady Ship...

28

Retail Deposit Portfolio

Bank’s low-cost deposits i.e. Current and
Savings Accounts (CASA) constitute a vital
ingredient of the Bank’s deposit mix. Bank
provides a wide range of products under
CASA to cater to all segments.

Overall, 88,104 new CASA accounts were
opened during FY 2019-20, of which 78,155
are Savings Bank accounts and 9,949 are
Current accounts. There is an increase in
CASA balances from ¥ 10,386.94 crore
in FY 2018-19 to ¥ 10,723.94 crore as on
31t March, 2020 i.e. an increase of
% 337 crore in absolute terms.

The rise reflects the focussed efforts taken
by the Bank on the CASA front. The existing
CASA data was studied through data
analytics and based on the findings, the
customer connect was established by Retalil
Department. These efforts have resulted in
increase in the overall CASA deposits.

Position of CASA Deposits

Table No. 2:
(Xin crore)
Particulars 31.03.2019
Total Deposits 38,083.49 36,014.87
CASA Amount 10,723.94 10,386.94
Increase in CASA 337.00

Implementation of Pradhan Mantri Awas
Yojana (PMAY) - Credit linked subsidy
scheme

Your Bank has entered into an agreement
with NationalHousing Bank (NHB), the nodal
agency established for the implementation
of PMAY, credit linked subsidy scheme. It
is launched by the Central Government
for Economically Weaker Sections (EWS)
and Lower Income Groups (LIG) to provide
affordable housing through credit linked
subsidy. The scheme is extended for Middle
Income Group (MIG) as well.

The details of subsidy claims settled by
NHB during the FY 2019-20 are as below:

Table No. 3:

Scheme Types Total Total Total amount
applications applications of subsidy
sent to NHB settled received

(Zin lakh)

EWS/LIG old 62 55 87.20

EWS/LIG new 667 472 1,690.94

MIG | 525 330 822.11

MIG Il 62 30 16.37

TOTAL 1,316 887 2,616.62

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

Priority Sector

Balanced development of the Indian
economy is inextricably dependent on the
progress and performance of the priority
sector, which spans across agriculture and
food processing, manufacturing and service
sectors. Hence, it is imperative to bear in
mind the purpose for classifying these
activities under Priority Sector by Reserve
Bank of India. As per the guidelines of
Reserve Bank of India, all banks are
expected to achieve 40 per cent of total
advances portfolio towards Priority Sector
lending, and this year too, this target was
surpassed by your Bank.

With  focused efforts for increasing
lending to Priority Sector, special loans
schemes were crafted for encouraging
MSME borrowers. Your Bank was the first
Co-operative Bank which was approved
by CGTMSE for lending to MSMEs without
collateral security. This has helped the Bank
to service more deserving entrepreneurs
for their business ventures.

Your Bank has formed a special Group
for monitoring of the priority sector goals/
achievements of the Bank. During the year,
11 such meetings were held of this Group
through which Priority Sector achievement
was closely monitored by the Board of
Directors and Management. Through
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concerted efforts and constant monitoring,
we thus achieved Priority Sector business
of ¥ 10,911.51 crore, making it reach
42.30 per cent. Sub-targets under Weaker
Sector targets were also met by achieving
10.75 per cent of the ANBC as against the
target of 10 per cent.

Retail Business loan upto ¥ 10 crore,
Unnati and Mudra loans were some
focused contributors towards achievement
of these targets. During the period under
review, your Bank disbursed Unnati loans
of ¥ 124.29 crore as against I 183.66 crore
disbursed in FY 2018-19 and Mudra Loans
to 406 accounts amounting to ¥ 24.88 crore
as against ¥ 20.23 crore in FY 2018-19.
The Priority Sector advances under Retail
increased by ¥ 532 crore in FY 2019-20.

Microfinance

Your Bank has always been supportive of
financial inclusions for individuals. This year
too, the Bank concentrated on upliftment of
individuals and women by catering to their
financial needs through Micro Finance and
Self-Help Groups.

For improving financial inclusion, your Bank
gave loans to more than 2,500 Self Help
Groups and 2,700-plus individual loans
under Micro Finance. We opened more
than 4,000 Self Help Group accounts which
helped us reach more than 40,000 women
across villages in Maharashtra through
our association with Mahila Arthik Vikas
Mahamandal (MAVIM). Loans disbursed
under SHG finance were ¥ 50 crore in
FY 2019-20 as against ¥ 3.80 crore in
FY 2018-19.

The Micro Finance Clean Loan Scheme
was offered to all our customers who were
in need of quick and immediate finance.
Total loans disbursed under Micro Finance
in FY 2018-19 were 1,212 loans amounting
to ¥ 3.53 crore and in FY 2019-20 disbursed

loans to 2,700 individuals amounting to
more than ¥ 11 crore.

Customer Relations and Experience -
Launch of Operation Sparsh

Customer  Relations &  Experience
Department works towards reaching out to
different customer segments and improving
customer engagement and experience
through various campaigns and initiatives.

To etch the importance of Customer
Service, the Bank announced the launch of
‘Operation Sparsh. Operation Sparsh is a
focused Customer Service initiative with a
view to transform and elevate the Customer
Service Experience and Customer Delight
to the next level of converting the customer
into a fan of the Bank. The aim of Operation
Sparsh is to reconnect with customers
and improve customer service based on
customer feedbacks.

Under Operation Sparsh, your Bank
conducted meets across the branch
network to drive employees towards a
common goal -- ‘Customer Service does
not cost ... it pays’and make it the Saraswat
Bank Culture.

Other initiatives under Operation Sparsh
are enumerated below: -

® Missed Call for Customer
Appreciation/Grievance: Listening to
customers is at the core of customer
service. Hence, a dedicated phone
number was introduced (7666550044)
for customers and non-customers
where they could simply give a
missed call to register their concerns,
grievances, feedback as well as
appreciation. Bank representatives
contacted such customers to address
their concerns. Simultaneously, this
utility will also act as a tool to learn
about our shortcomings and loopholes
in service.
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Name badges for all employees:
Staff members were given ‘Name
Badges, to be worn during working
hours. These badges help customers to
identify the staff serving them and have
added a sense of responsibility and
accountability.

Mystery Audit: An external team of
experts was hired to conduct audit of
customer service by visiting branches
and ranking them on predefined
parameters. The aim of this exercise
was to gauge the quality of customer
service at branch level and find out
loopholes in service in terms of staff
behaviour, ambience, products,
customer satisfaction, etc. Based on
this analysis, our staff members were
given special training to improve their
interpersonal skills and service delivery
approach.

Third Party Products
Distribution of Insurance Product
During the year 2019-20, your Bank has earned revenue of % 15.74 crore from sale of Third-Party Insurance Products

as under:
Table No. 4:

Several other initiatives like wishing
customers on their birthdays, welcome
calls to new customers, celebration of
Children's Day and Women's Day were
also undertaken to engage with customers.
Special efforts were taken to improve our
connect with more than 60,000 customers
across the Bank where the need was
felt to restore banking relations with the
customers. The activity received a fairly
good response from our valued customers
in the first year of the activity showing good
activation as well as increase in customer
engagement.

In future, your Bank will continue to connect
with its existing customers from various
segments to maintain and develop healthy
banking relationship with them. In addition
to the existing toll-free line 1800229999,
your Bank added another toll-free line
18002665555 to ensure unhindered
service.

(% in crore)

Segment / Products

Name of the Partner

2019-20

NOP Premium
Mobilized

Revenue
Generated

LIFE (Individual Life = HDFC Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 9,195 39.28 4.54
Insurance & Group
Business) Future Generali Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 6,276 25.59 3.35
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co, Ltd. 4,494 17.01 3.32
GENERAL Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd. (BAGIC) 32,423 11.48 1.62
HDFC Ergo General Insurance Ltd. 7,312 713 0.50
HEALTH Religare Health Insurance Co. Ltd. 8,904 8.09 1.18
ManipalCigna Health Insurance Co. Ltd. 9,679 9.12 1.19
OTHERS Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana 26,808 0.24 0.04
TOTAL 1,05,091 117.94 15.74
Corresponding figures of 2018-19 94,423 96.96 13.06
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Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana

Your Bank has extended Pradhan Mantri
Bima Yojana facility to its customers
through tie up with M/s HDFC Life
Insurance Co Ltd., for Pradhan Mantri
Jeevan Jyoti Bima Yojana (PMJJBY). It
also tied up with M/s Bajaj Allianz General
Insurance Company Ltd. and M/s New
India Assurance Company Ltd. for providing
services under the Pradhan Mantri
Suraksha Bima Yojana (PMSBY).

Mutual Funds

Your Bank had launched its Mutual Fund
distribution activity in January 2018. It
continued its mutual fund distribution with
HDFC Mutual Fund, LIC Mutual Fund,
L & T Mutual Fund, Nippon India Mutual
Fund, Aditya Birla Mutual Fund and ICICI
Prudential Mutual Fund.

During the year, your Bank achieved a net
business of ¥37 crore and total AUM stands
at 140 crore.

Demat Services

Your Bank provides depositories through
NSDL and CDSL. More than 1856 new
demat accounts were opened during the
year.As applying for IPO (Initial Public Offer)
through ASBA (Application Supported
by Blocked Amount) is made mandatory
by SEBI, there is a sharp rise in ASBA
applications during this period.

Your Bank supported IPOs through ASBA
for 81 Equity and Rights and 34 Debt
Market issues. The Bank has received
/processed more than 45,000 IPO
applications during the year. The total
revenue earned from Demat services
during the year was ¥ 1.64 crore. This
includes income of ¥ 73.06 lakh through
the tie-up arrangement with M/s. Religare
Securities Ltd., for providing online broking
facility. More than 430 trading accounts
were opened during the FY 2019-20.

Credit Card Business

Your Bank initiated its credit card business
in its centenary year, in September 2017.
Bank issues RuPay Platinum cards in
collaboration with National Payments
Corporation of India (NPCI). These credit
cards add to our bouquet of products and
services and as on 31 March 2020, your
Bank has a card base of more than 16,800
cards with an exposure of ¥ 18.88 crore.
Along with all the competitive features, the
usage is backed by an exclusive rewards
programme.

Your Bank’s total income from the credit
card business improved to ¥ 5.30 crore in
FY 2019-20 vis-a-vis ¥ 1.99 crore in
FY 2018-19. The income comprised the

following:
Table No. 5:
(X in lakh)
Income Particulars m
2018-19
Interest 290.59 89.41
Interchange 96.59 54.77
Other 142.95 54.71
Gross 530.13 198.89

(ii) SBU-Wholesale Banking

The total Wholesale advances of the Bank
stood at ¥ 12,960 crore as on 31t March, 2020.
On the Wholesale Banking front, the Bank
took a conscious decision to reduce its LCBD
exposure by around ¥ 800 crore. Amidst the
economic slowdown, the Bank avoided lending
to stressed sectors. Focus was laid on small and
medium ticket size quality advances instead
of big-ticket size at entry level. Your Bank
proactively brought down its existing exposures
on single borrowers and group of connected
borrowers.

(iii) Forex Business
Your Bank has a RBl licence for foreign exchange
business since 1979. The Bank caters to the
foreign exchange requirements of its customers
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through its well-established nine Forex Centres.
Trade finance requirements of the customers of
SMEs and retail foreign exchange requirements
of customers of branches are handled through
these Forex Centres. The Bank offers all the
major foreign exchange products including
trade finance products.

During the year under review, the foreign
exchange merchant turnover of the Bank stood
at the level of ¥ 29,675.35 crore. Export finance
outstanding as on 31*March, 2020 was at the
level of ¥ 1,311.10 crore.

Your Bank has NOSTRO accounts in nine major
currencies with leading international banks and
correspondent relations with a number of banks
across the globe. Your Bank offers travel-related
services to the customers of the Bank travelling
abroad. It also provides foreign currencies and
travel cards at competitive exchange rates. Your
Bank also handles foreign exchange business
of customers of select co-operative banks
which do not have RBI license to deal in foreign
exchange, under line of credit sanctioned to
them. During the review year, lines of credit of
% 157 crore were in place for 13 co-operative
banks.

Your Bank made available FX-Retail platform
by Clearcorp Dealing Systems (India) Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CCIL. Customers
now have access to interbank electronic trading
platform where bids/offers from retail customers
and AD banks can be matched anonymously
and automatically. This platform provides more
transparency and better pricing to customers.

(iv) SBU - Treasury Operations

Your Bank has a dedicated SBU — Treasury
which undertakes the core role of day-to-day
funds management of the Bank. Your Bank’s
Treasury not only ensures strict compliance
with the statutory requirements of maintaining
the stipulated Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) and
Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) but also ensures
optimum profitable investment of surplus

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

resources. For the past several years, your
Treasury has emerged as an independent profit
centre and has been actively contributing to the
bottomline of the Bank.

During the year 2019-20, yields saw a downward
shift against the backdrop of slowing economy
and reduction in repo rates by RBI to spur the
economy. Your Treasury Team took advantage
of the movement in yields to generate trading
profits. At the same time, the funds generated
were also deployed in suitable investment
assets in order to generate interest income.

Your Treasury also deals in Foreign Exchange
and provides spot and forward cover operations
for Exports, Imports, Remittances, etc.

HUMAN RESOURCES

An HRD Department is primarily concerned with
developing the skills, knowledge and competencies
of the employees and ensuring alignment of HR
practices to business strategy. The key to long-term
success is managing the talent of human resources
and organizational development in relation to a
changing and complex external environment. Hiring
the right talent at the right time; offering the right
training and development opportunities; striking
a right balance between the required skill sets,
existing competencies and the job requirements;
revisiting existing HR systems and processes;
ensuring rewarding pay packages; motivating
and retaining skilled employees through job
rotation, job enrichment and empowerment, open
communication and employee counselling are some
of the activities undertaken by the HRD Department
on a regular basis.

Some of the major initiatives taken by the HRD
Department during the year 2019-20 are as under:

1. Upgradation from Grade B to Grade A
In the Memorandum of Agreement and the
Memorandum of Settlement, both dated 22
January 2018, it was decided to upgrade the
employees who were in Grade B pay scale
of the Bank as on the date of the Agreement/



...in Challenging Times

Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Settlement to Grade A pay scale within a span
of three to five years, in phased manner. All
employees who have completed four years of
service in Grade B pay scale as on 31 March,
2019 were considered for upgradation in Grade
A w.e.f. 1%t April 2019, subject to acceptable
performance.

Accordingly, 514 employees who had completed
four or more years of service in Grade B pay
scale as on 31 March, 2019 were considered
for absorption in Grade A pay scale.

Recruitment

During the year, 211 candidates were recruited
for various existing positions as well as
anticipated future positions, out of which 6
were in the Executive cadre and 80 were in
the Management cadre while 125 recruitments
took place in the Non-Management cadre. The
new recruits include 35 in Grade A and 176
in Grade B. Lateral recruits who have prior
banking experience with reputed nationalised/
private/co-operative banks bring in new ideas
and experiences, adding value to our existing
systems and help us in adopting the best
practices followed across the banking industry.

Your HRD Department is dedicated to
providing the necessary skilled resources
as per the changing dynamics to retain your
Bank’s position and status as a technology-
driven banking partner. Well qualified and
experienced professionals have been identified
and recruited for critical portfolios of the Bank
such as Information Security Department (ISD),
Risk-based audit perspective, Digital Banking,
etc. which will prove to be a game changer in
the times to come. The HRD Department has
ensured a ready pipeline of talent for new roles
such as Business Development Officers, Lobby
Co-ordinators, Self Help Group Co-ordinators,
etc. by recruiting the right number of young,
enthusiastic and qualified candidates for the
anticipated business requirements.

Promotions

Your HRD Department has been trying to
create a succession plan ready by identifying
promising and performing officials and offering
them challenging opportunities for growth.
Employees completing requisite qualification
such as JAIIB/CAIIB/capacity building courses
or other relevant qualification with proven
track record are offered due recognition for
their learning efforts. The emphasis is not only
restricted to acquiring knowledge in areas
related to banking, but promotions are based on
application of knowledge to real life situations,
confidence and competence in dealing with
banking issues, potential and promise to deliver
as per expectations and professional maturity.

During the year, there were 652 promotions to
various positions in the Executive, Management
and Non-Management cadres.

In the Executive cadre, 45 candidates were
promoted to the various positions including
2 Chief General Managers, 8 Deputy Chief
General Managers, 5 General Managers,
7 Deputy General Managers and 23 Assistant
General Managers in view of their proven
competence, and important assignments/
portfolios as per the business requirements
were assigned to them in their new roles.

In Management cadre, 607 promotions were
made to various positions including 49 Chief
Managers, 79 Senior Managers, 204 Managers
and 275 Deputy Managers. These promotions
were conducted based on the results of online
exam followed by interview to assess the true
potential and reward the deserving employees
based on their knowledge, skills and track
record of performance.

. Rewards and Recognition

Several initiatives were undertaken to offer
opportunities for growth at all levels. Business
Development Officers (BDOs) was a new
concept launched during the year in order

Annual Report 2019-20 33



A Steady Ship...

to ensure focused efforts of a select group
of employees towards selling the products
of the Bank. These BDOs were officials who
were selected based on their interest and
performance which ensured that only officials
who had the flair for marketing and were
go-getters in chasing targets were identified
for this assignment. A lucrative incentive
scheme was also designed to motivate them
and this initiative has brought in good results
for the Bank. Besides the officials playing
important roles i.e. Branch Managers, Zonal
Heads, SME/Outstation Wholesale Heads were
offered performance-based post allowance on
fulfillment of assigned targets, offering them
handsome allowance on adding more value to
the business of the Bank.

5. Employee Strength
Overall, your Bank’s employee strength reduced
by 95 during the year. 211 employees were
recruited during 2019-20 while 306 employees
are no more with the organization due to various
reasons like death, retirement, resignations and

dismissal.
Table No. 6:

Number of Employees as on 31.03.2019 4,341
Number of Employees recruited during the 211
year

Sub Total 4,552
Less the number of Employees who exited 306
during the year

Number of Employees as on 31.03.2020 4,246
Net Addition during the year -95

6. Automation of HRD processes - HRD going
digital
Your HRD Department has adopted a new
software for catering to its employees’ needs
on a digital platform. The personal dossier,
salary, leave system, etc. are being processed
through this system which can be accessed
even through the smartphones held by every
employee. Adopting technology to make
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lives easier, happier and convenient is our
mantra and this software will be integrated to
Learning Module System in the near future to
enable continuous learning environment in
the Bank through e-learning modules and skill
development of the employees.

Learning and Development

Learning is essential to our existence. Lifelong
learning is an indispensable tool for every
career and organisation. Your Bank is a learning
organisation which believes that continuous
learning forms a necessary part in acquiring
critical thinking skills and discovering new
ways of self-development and performance
enhancement. Your Bank has endeavoured to
provide the best learning opportunities to the
employees. The HRD Department spearheads
the learning and development initiatives in the
Bank and co-ordinates the process of conducting
numerous need-based training programs to
promote a learning culture in the Bank and to
assess the knowledge level of employees and
work towards enhancing the same. Your Bank
has a dedicated ‘Staff Learning Centre’ which
organizes training programmes and regularly
collects feedback from participants to gauge
the effectiveness and usefulness of the training
programmes.

During the year, 110 training programmes were
conducted by Staff Learning Centre (SLC)
and these programmes include Executive
Development Programme for Senior Executives,
Management Development Training, Orientation
training for Deputy Managers, Refresher training
for Managers, Cyber Security, various orientation
programmes for newly-promoted officers and
induction programmes. 3092 employees of
different cadres attended various ftraining
programmes and benefitted through the same.

. External Training Programmes

Your Bank deputes its employees to external
training/development programmes regularly to
gain expert knowledge in specialized areas.
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During the year, 90 employees were deputed
for various external training programmes
conducted by prestigious institutes/
organizations viz, CAFRAL, NIBM, FEDAI,
IDRBT, FICCI, CAB, IIBF, NABARD, Bombay
Chamber of Commerce and Industry, IDBI
Bank, BQ Global Academy etc. in areas like
Operational Risk Management, Liquidity
Risk Management, Legal Aspect of Credit
Management, NPA Management and Recovery,
Orientation Workshop on Foreign Trade and
Foreign Exchange, Forex and Interest Rate
Hedging and Risk Management, Countering
Trade Based Money Laundering, Frauds in
Digital environment-Control Detection and
Counter Measures, Detection and Reporting
of frauds by UCBs, Cyber Security Awareness,
Certification programme in IT and Cyber
Security. Such training exposure has helped
the Bank to acquire valuable inputs on latest
developments from specialized training bodies
which will eventually improve the operational
efficiency and effectiveness of the Bank.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

Banking is exposed to a broad spectrum of risks
and it is necessary that all risks faced by the Bank
are effectively managed. Your Bank has a Risk
Management Department, independent of business
functions, covering Credit Risk, Operations Risk and
Market Risk. It helps in identifying, monitoring and
measuring the risk profile of the Bank and helps to
maintain a healthy trade-off between risk and returns.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk or potential risk that may occur
due to failure of borrower/counterparty to meet
the obligations on agreed terms and conditions
of financial contract. All credit risk-related aspects
regarding Credit Acquisition, Appraisal & Renewal,
its administration and Monitoring are governed
by Bank’s Credit policy which is approved by the
Board of Directors. The policy provides guidelines on
the type of products that can be offered, customer
categories, rate of interest, norms related to collateral
security, the credit approval process, limits etc.

To assess the credit risk associated with any
corporate financing proposal, Risk Management
Department assesses a variety of risks related to
the borrowers and the relevant industry. The Bank
has developed internal credit rating methodologies
for rating applicants above ¥ 50 lakh. Your Bank
also conducts industry-wise studies to assess the
risk prevalent in industries and assigns outlook and
fixes sectoral caps. The industry-wise exposure
including caution and negative lists and outlooks
are communicated to all in the Bank to consider
the same while lending to specific borrowers and
industries. Besides this, in order to avoid imprudent
concentration of credit exposure, your Bank has
put in place prudential caps across industries,
sectors and borrowers. These measures are being
monitored and reviewed at regular intervals by Credit
Risk Management Team to help in maintaining and
improving the quality of credit portfolio of your Bank.

Operational Risk

As the banking industry is continuously evolving,
especially for co-operative banks, we as one of the
leading UCBs, have recognized that there has been
an impending need to establish an ORM department
within the Bank, understand its exposure and impact
on the Bank as a whole.

Having sustained in this volatile and highly
competitive financial sector for over 100 years, the
Bank’s focus area is on building and strengthening
its Operational Risk arm.

In line with the requirement of RBI guidelines,
your Bank has initiated steps towards building and
fostering robust Risk Management and Controls
Culture. Your Bank has a process to identify unusual
events. This system helps in early identification of
process and control gaps to focus on strengthening
its Controls culture. It also helps in creating
Operational Loss Database and recording near
miss events as required under Basel norms.

To have an integrated risk management approach,
your Bank has an Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC) which meets regularly for early
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identification, assessment, monitoring, prevention
and mitigation of operational risks. It has helped in
identifying gaps and improving business processes
and thus reducing the risk involved. Your Bank also
has processes to recognise new risks involved
before launch of any new product.

‘Outsourcing’ is defined as a bank’s use of a third
party to perform activities on behalf of the bank
on a continuing basis. Outsourcing is an effective
management tool. While it delegates the non-core
business operations to the vendors and provides
peace of mind to focus on core competencies, it
could bring along significant risks into the business
process. If the risks are not recognized and properly
managed, the outsourced business functions could
affect adversely and could be crippling for the brand
and the reputation of the organization. To align with
RBI guidelines, your Bank recognized the need
for documenting the risk procedures and therefore
developed the Outsourcing Policy.

Fraud Risk Monitoring (FRM) - Today, any industry
is vulnerable to fraud — internal or external. Banking
sector is highly exposed to scams of any kind
and your Bank is no exception. An effective FRM
framework enables an organization to have controls
that first prevent fraud from occurring, detect as
soon as a fraud happens and respond effectively to
frauds when they occur. As part of an organization’s
governance structure, your Bank has a FRM Cell.
It is in the process of implementing the enterprise-
wise fraud risk management tool. This tool will
facilitate robust cross channel monitoring of all
digital products.

Market Risk - The Market Risk activities in case of
your Bank primarily focus on the management of
Liquidity Risk because of Asset Liability mismatches
and Interest Rate Risk. Your Bank has in place the
Asset Liability Management Committee which
meets every month to take a view on the interest
rate and liquidity gap position of the Bank in the
backdrop of the prevailing trend in the economy.

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

The Liquidity Risk Profile and Mismatch Profile of
your Bank are studied using various monitoring
tools. The adverse impact of interest rate movements
(if any) on the investment portfolio of your Bank is
also studied periodically.

The Risk Management Team of your Bank endeavors
to adopt the best practices in Risk Management to
counter the dynamic economic scenario.

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

Internal Audit Department works under the
guidance and supervision of the Audit Committee of
the Board. During the year 2019-20, the Department
has undertaken inspection of 298 operating units of
the Bank covering all aspects.

Considering the digital transformation in banking
sector, your Bank has moved into digital banking using
several banking channels. With technology, there are
bound to be new risks to it and hence a transformation
in the approach to audit is necessitated. Your Bank
has Information Security Policy and Cyber Security
Policy in place and has formulated a dedicated team
to oversee and ensure Information Security.

There is a major shift in the supervisory inspection
approach from traditional transactional-centric to a
risk-based approach which places greater reliance
on the Bank’s Audit and Compliance functions for
obtaining necessary comfort on internal control and
overall compliance requirements.

Credit Portfolio Audit (CPA): Considering the
inherent risk in large commercial loans, your Bank
is undertaking Credit Portfolio Audit. Commercial
loans with exposure of ¥ 5 crore and above are
covered. It provides feedback to the business units
and management about the quality of Advances
Portfolio and suggests remedial measures.

New Audit Initiatives: Keeping pace with the
regulatory requirement for commercial banks,
your Bank has proactively decided to align with
RBI's Risk-Based Supervision under the Bank’s
new project known as Project ‘NIYANTRAN:



...in Challenging Times

Statutory Reports Financial Statements

With a view to achieve the above objective, the
Bank has appointed an experienced professional
advisor for developing a strategic roadmap for the
transformation journey and guiding the team to
achieve audit objectives. The primary focus of this
project is to implement Risk-Based Internal Audit
(RBIA). This audit aims to provide reasonable
assurance to the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors (ACB) and Management about the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls
and risk management procedures prevailing in
the Bank’s systems and processes through a risk
focused approach of audit prioritization such that
it ensures adequate audit coverage through an
optimized use of audit resources.

The transformation process involved a seven-stage
roadmap viz., defining governance requirements,
undertaking risk assessment, devising annual
Audit Plan, developing Risk Control Matrix for

each process, conducting Risk Control Self
Assessment revamping audit methodologies,
strengthening the audit team and reporting

mechanism. FY 2019-20 being the first year of
RBIA implementation, the project has achieved
significant progress in its journey. Out of seven
stages, three stages are completed and stage four
and five are in progress.

The various auditable areas were identified for
carrying out Internal Control Assessment and a plan
is drawn for this exercise. Your Bank has engaged
the services of the empaneled professionals for
drafting the Risk Control Matrix and for carrying out
testing, based on this Matrix. Gaps identified in these
processes with suggestions of various controls to
mitigate these risks is placed in the meetings of
Audit Committee of the Board.

This ongoing process, by embedding the controls
for mitigation of the risks, will ensure the robustness
of the Systems and Procedures and will provide
assurance to the Management and stakeholders
about the necessary comfort on internal controls
and overall compliance.

9.

10.

VIGILANCE

Your Bank has a Vigilance Department that
primarily focusses and performs four functions,
viz. prevention, detection, investigation of frauds
and initiating corrective actions thereon. The role
of Vigilance Department is of proactive and pre-
emptive fashion. Activities at Vigilance Department
include timely reporting of fraud cases to RBI,
investigation of cases of frauds/attempted frauds,
preventive vigilance by way of scrutiny of various
types of transactions and reporting of counterfeit
currency notes detected at branches to RBI, etc.

To create awareness among staff members,
Vigilance Department circulates / uploads on
Employee Portal the modus operandi of cases of
frauds/attempted frauds detected at your Bank as
well as in the banking Industry. The incidents of
fraud are also circulated in your Bank’s newsletter
‘Madhusattva’ for the knowledge of staff members.
Data pertaining to cases of frauds/attempted
frauds in the Bank are shared with Indian Banks
Association for sharing with member banks.

The Department ensures that frauds involving
vigilance issues are properly investigated and
reported to appropriate authorities and are led to
their logical conclusion. Frauds and action taken
thereupon are reported either to the CENMAC /
Audit Committee of the Board/Special Committee of
Board for Monitoring Frauds/Board of Directors, as
the case may be. Transactions are scrutinized and
unusual transactions are also reported to the higher
authorities. Your Bank studies data related to past
frauds and suggests corrective measures to prevent
recurrence of similar instances of frauds in future.

DIGITAL BANKING

Today, innovation and acceptance of emerging
technologies is one of the most significant factors
for an organization’s success and growth. Growing
consumer demand for innovative digital products &
services has pushed banking sector to embrace a
‘Digital-First’ approach. COVID-19 pandemic has
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altered the way customers interact with banks as
the reliance on digital channels is increased. Hence,
the need for banks to engage with customers and
ensure a smooth transition to digital modes of
banking is now more imperative than ever before.

Your Bank already has a ‘Digital Banking
Department’ which has enabled Bank to embrace
digitization by adopting emerging technologies and
newer business models.

Graph No. 3
Percentage of Digital Transactions
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Your Bank provides digital services to its customers
by leveraging technology through Contactless-
Banking -

° Bank on WhatsApp — Chat with your Bank
* Mobile Banking — Banking at your fingertips

* Internet Banking — Access to variety of
services

e Saraswat Bank 100+ — Open Smart Savings
Account

e Saraswat UPI on BHIM - Instant & secured
payment system of India

e Cards - Debit & Gift — Convenient solutions for
payments

e Bill Payments via BBPS - Integrated bill
payment system

e Cardless Cash withdrawal — Safe & secured
cash withdrawals at Saraswat Bank ATM

Your Bank always implements the industry-best
products considering the future banking trends
with robust infrastructure, latest technologies and

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

effective project management. As a result, being a
digital bank, Saraswat Bank currently has over 30
digital products/services.

* Bank on WhatsApp: At Bank on WhatsApp,
Bank’s customers and non-customers can
initiate chat with the Bank to check balance,
request for last 5 transactions, look for
information and raise any query by selecting
differentservicesinthe application. Registrations
for Bank on WhatsApp have increased by 76
per cent over the last year.

e Bank on TAB: Your Bank has implemented
‘Bank on Tab’ service through which customer
accounts can be opened instantaneously, in
a paperless and secured manner. Since it
is portable in nature, the tablet account can
be opened or transaction can be executed at
branch or at customer’s residence/office. During
the year, your Bank has enabled ‘Fixed Deposit
on OTP’ wherein paperless deposit accounts
can be opened through ‘Bank on Tab’ instantly.

* Mobile Banking: Your Bank’s Mobile Banking
App “GOMOQO” enables the customers to
access the Bank’s services on their own with
incredible ease from wherever they have mobile
connectivity. Registrations for mobile banking
have increased by 17 per cent over the last year.

Your Bank has taken special efforts to enhance
the security of customers and improved
customer experience through seamless
operations by redesigning processes.

* Unified Payment Interface (UPI): Your Bank is
already live on UPI platform, an interoperable
instant funds transfer platform developed by
National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI)
Further, during the year, your Bank successfully
implemented UPI 2.0 and enabled its customers
to make payment for Application Supported by
Blocked Amount (ASBA) & UPI Mandate with
one time execution and block functionality.
During FY 2019-20, registrations for UPI have
increased by 63 per cent over the last year.
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Saraswat Bank 100+: Your Bank launched
Saraswat Bank 100+, a multilingual mobile
application for online account opening through
smartphones. Saraswat Bank 100+ enables
potential customers to open an account within
3 minutes through PAN, Aadhaar and OTP from
customer’s own device. Also, it allows customers
to choose desired account number.

One Page Internet Banking: Your Bank’s ‘One
Page Internet Banking’ can be accessed 24 x
7 through desktop computer, laptop, tablets &
smartphones. Customer registrations for One-
Page Internet Banking rose by 11 per cent over
last year.

Corporate Internet Banking: Corporates
can, without visiting the Bank, access various
banking services like execute bulk NEFT
transactions, cheque book request, salary
upload, fund transfers, basic banking needs
like balance inquiry, account statement, etc.
through Corporate Internet Banking. During
FY 2019-20, registrations for Corporate Internet
Banking have increased by 41 per cent over the
last year.

Bharat Bill Payment (BBP): Your Bank
has participated in the National Payments
Corporation of India’s initiative of enabling utility
bill payments at your Bank’s branches and
through UPI.

The module for bill payments and recharges
was made available to customers at branches
as well as at your Bank’s website. The service
is available for customers as well as for non-
customers.

Gift Card: Your Bank is the first bank in the
co-operative sector to offer Gift Cards to its
customers. Your Bank’s Gift Card can be easily
and securely used at any of the RuPay accepting
merchant outlets. Your Bank has ensured that
the Gift Card makes the shopping experience
convenient and memorable at online & POS
terminals.

Saraswat Quick Pay (Referral model): Your
Bank has enabled online collection facility for its
individual and entity customers. Your Bank offers
this facility for schools, colleges, trusts, entities,
partnership firms, companies etc. to receive
payments digitally. With this service, business
customers can receive online payments directly
in their accounts made through debit / credit
card, Internet Banking, UPI or wallet, etc.

POS (Point of Sale) Services (Referral model):
Your Bank provides various types of POS (Point
of Sale) terminals viz digital, paperless, compact
POS devices to its customers/merchants
through the referral arrangement. With these
POS devices, your Bank’s business customers
can accept payments made by swiping debit/
credit cards or by scanning UPI/Bharat QR
code generated at the POS screen.

QR (Quick Response) Solutions (Referral
model): To enable Bank’s business customers
to offer low cost digital modes of payment to
their customers as well as to enable Bank’s
customers to fulfil the regulatory compliance,
your Bank provides unique QR Codes based on
UPI Bharat QR for collection of Payments. With
these payment services, Bank’s customers can
accept payments by scanning QR code.

Missed Call & SMS Banking: Your Bank also
offers certain basic banking services through
missed call and SMS services. Features
like Balance Enquiry, Mini Statement, Block/
Unblock Debit Cards, Registration for Bank
on WhatsApp & Blocking of UPI Transactions
enables Bank’s customers to access banking
services without data internet network on smart
phones as well as on feature phones.

Debit Cards: Your Bank provides multiple
variants of debit cards through VISA and
National Payments Corporation of India’s RuPay
for different type of customers. Also, to provide
host of premium services to the customers,
your Bank has launched Platinum Debit Cards
in digital and physical form.
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e ATMs & Cash Recyclers: During the year
under review, your Bank installed total 52
Cash Recyclers and 48 new ATMs taking the
total count to 311. Your Bank’s ATMs are also
equipped to process International Debit
cards through the NPCI's/VISAs network.
Through ATMs, customers can access
various banking services like Cardless Cash
Withdrawal, Generate Debit Card Pin, Fast
Cash, Chequebook request, Mobile Banking
registration etc.

e E-lobby: During the year, your Bank set up
E-Lobby at various locations by installing
ATMs, Cash Recycler, Passbook Printing Kiosk
and Cheque Deposit Machine etc. E-lobby
set-ups are 24x7 accessible to customers for
their banking needs.

* National Electronic Toll Collection (NETC):
Your Bank started issuance of NETC FASTags
in association with NPCI to its current account
holders. During the year, your Bank has started
issuing FASTags to its Savings Account holders
as well. Through these tags, customers make
national highway toll payments at toll plazas
through RFID (Radio Frequency Identity)
technology. Registrations for NETC FASTags has
increased by 626 per cent over the last year.

Your Bank also offers other digital banking services
such as Aadhaar Enabled Payment System (AEPS),
Bharat QR, Payment Gateways, etc. Moving on from
traditional banking to digital banking, during the
year, your Bank has taken extra efforts to enhance
security of digital products, improve user experience
and provide seamless services to its customers.

Under Digital Education Series, Bank has
undertaken various customer awareness programs,
campaigns to educate customers to safeguard
themselves from Digital and Cyber frauds. Bank
periodically sends precautionary alerts through
SMS, Emails or Notifications to customers as
per regulatory guidelines. With the help of new
technology, many new features and programs are
being introduced by your Bank to bring safe-banking
at customers’ fingertips.

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

11. ADVERTISING,

ALLIANCES
CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

AND

This years main objective was branding, for
which a specially conceptualized “Happiness
Behisaab” campaign was rolled out from
December 2019 to February 2020. This campaign
aimed at strengthening the existing connect with all
customers.

Customer satisfaction being Bank’s priority, making
available various discounts and offers on special
occasions like festivals, important days is the key
activity undertaken by the Bank by associating with
merchants and top brands into dining, jewellery,
retail garments, etc. Special events for important
days like Women’s Day, gift distribution on Children’s
Day were carried out to build special connect
amongst customers and Bank.

During the year, your Bank through different means
of advertising, viz. print, television, cinema, outdoor
and digital media, showcased a varied range of
products and services. Various advertising means,
as below were adopted during the year:

*  Qutdoor advertising through digital screens was
undertaken at Nagpur railway station.

e A retail outlet was further explored by going for
few prominent locations in Aurangabad city.

e The Bank explored with NMMT Bus wrap and
internal and external panel branding for Western
and Central Railway.

* During Ganesh Chaturthi festival, hoardings
were placed across various roads near famous
Ganpati Pandals at 17 locations throughout
Mumbai.

e Print releases across prominent newspapers
in Maharashtra were undertaken highlighting
the receipt of Best Co-operative Bank in India
Award presented by ABP News under Banking,
Financial Services and Insurance (BFSI)
Awards.
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e Other specially designed campaigns comprising
products/services like newly launched Saraswat
Bank 100+, Fixed Deposits with highly attractive
rates for Senior Citizens, Car Loan, Housing
Loan, Unnati, Loan Against Property, Personal
Loan, Gift cards and NETC FASTag, were
launched.

e Lokmat published an article on Housing Loan,
backed by our Housing Loan Ad.

* Your Bank also initiated installation of digital
screens at various branch locations to
showcase various product/service features
and other necessary information. This will
extend enhanced visual experience (in the
form of digital images, videos and GlIFs) for our
customers, thus increasing branch aesthetics.

12. STATUS OF PROJECT UDAAN

Project Udaan is the Bank’s ambitious plan to
migrate to a new Core Banking System.

Saraswat

Bank

Your Bank has grown exponentially over the years,
with significant growth in the last decade. The
business operations were aptly supported over
the past decade by our prevailing Core Banking
System (CBS), which we continuously update to
keep pace with the new developments, regulatory
requirements and changing business dynamics.
Considering the future growth prospects, changing
business and regulatory landscape, there was a
need to adopt a more robust, agile and scalable
Core Banking System to support your Bank’s overall
objectives. Based on in-depth assessment, your
Bank has finalised Finacle, the CBS system offered
by M/s. EdgeVerve Systems Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Infosys. Finacle is presently being
used by several large PSU banks and private sector

banks besides smaller co-operative banks and has
built a market reputation for itself in this segment.
A simultaneous and integrated transformation
encompassing Bank’s Branch Banking, Digital
Banking and Treasury channels will be completed
during FY 2020-21. Presently functional testing is
underway at Finacle across its multiple modules
and integration with other applications. Adoption
of Finacle will enable the Bank to leverage the
software’s broad functionalities and enhance
its service offerings across Retail, Wholesale,
Treasury and Digital Banking verticals. The Bank
expects to significantly enhance the overall banking
experience by supporting our personalised front
desk services with a robust and secure CBS. The
inherent functionalities and capabilities of Finacle
will be able to scale up and support the Bank’s
growing business for years to come.

13. SPECIAL CREDIT MONITORING CELL

(SCMC)

Special Credit Monitoring Cell (SCMC) of your Bank
is instrumental in monitoring of the commercial
borrowal accounts which are under stress. Such
accounts are classified as Special Mention Accounts
and require close monitoring. Early identification of
stressed accounts helps in taking timely remedial
action to avoid their potential slippage into NPAs.

These accounts are reviewed at SCMC at regular
intervals and appropriate corrective action plan is
formulated for ensuring improvement in the working
of such borrowers within a reasonable timeframe.
Nursing of such weak and delinquent accounts is
done in co-ordination with the operating units.

RBI vide its notification on “Reporting of Large
Exposures to Central Repository of Information on
Large Credits (CRILC)-UCBs” dated 27" December,
2019 has referred to various categories of Special
Mention Accounts. Your Bank has proactively
adopted the practice of identifying and classifying
Special Mention Accounts into various categories,
even before the issuance of these guidelines for
UCBs.
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Position of SMA accounts is as under:-

Table No. 7:
- HEEEXTEE oo
No of Exposure No of Exposure
borrowers LR (J(-M borrowers T In crore
SMA-2 8 83 10 65
SMA-1 36 487 71 796
Total 44 570 81 861

42

As can be seen from the above position, there is
decrease in SMA-2 and SMA-1 category portfolio
from ¥ 861 crore to ¥ 570 crore. The same is due
to close monitoring and constant follow-up efforts
taken by the Bank.

. MOVEMENT OF NPAs

Non Performing Assets

Advances constitute a significant portion of the
Bank’s assets and the quality of these advances
is measured in terms of ratio of non-performing
advances to the gross advances of the Bank. With
sluggish economy, the stress on the credit portfolio
of the banking industry continued during FY 2019-
20 and gross NPAs for almost all banks witnessed a
rise during the year, your Bank being no exception.
However, net NPAs have reduced from 1.80 per cent
as on 31 March, 2019 to 1.56 per cent as on 31¢
March, 2020.

The Bank faced impediments in disposing off
properties under possession. Recovery actions
were hindered due to delays in getting decisions
at DRT and CMM/DM. Also, cases filed with NCLT
under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code were delayed
beyond the expected time for resolution/liquidation.

As a part of monitoring the progress of recovery
on NPAs and to arrest the rise in new NPAs, in
October 2019, the Board of Directors decided to
form a Group of Executives, which would meet
on fortnightly basis to strategize the action plans
for checking delinquencies and extracting quick
recoveries in NPAs. The Board also instituted a
Central Recovery Council and renewed the initiative
for ‘War on NPAs. An initial meeting of the Central
Recovery Council was held with senior executives

and Heads of SMEs, RASECs, Recovery Dept and
other concerned Departments in this regard. The
critical NPA accounts were allocated to various
officials. These officials had drawn an action plan
in consultation with the respective Recovery Dept./
Zone/SME and diligently followed up to extract
recovery before 31t March, 2020. The progress of
each of the accounts allotted was reported on a
fortnightly basis.

Thus, with constant monitoring, your Bank managed
to contain NPA levels and had only a moderate rise
in gross NPAs which increased from ¥ 1,193.57
crore as on 31 March, 2019 to ¥ 1,249.80 crore as
on 31t March, 2020. In percentage terms, the Gross
NPA ratio to Advances increased from 4.63 per cent
to 4.93 per cent. These figures need to be seen in
an environment where the banking industry as a
whole witnessed a trend of burgeoning NPAs. The
reduction in gross NPAs during the financial year
2019-20 was on account of recovery, upgradation
and write-off. However, the net NPAs reduced from
1.80 per cent as on 31 March, 2019 to 1.56 per cent
as on 31 March, 2020, with higher provisioning.

Table No. 8:

Movement of NPAs and Provisions during the
year was as under:-

( in crore)
AMOUNT

ADVANCES AS ON 31.03.2020 25,338.64
GROSS NPAs
As on 31st March, 2019 1,193.57
(+) Additions during the year. 499.97
(-) Reduction during the year. 443.74
As on 31t March, 2020 1,249.80
PROVISIONS
As on 31t March, 2019 741.68
As on 31t March, 2020 834.20*
NET NPAs
31t March, 2019 1.80%
31t March, 2020 1.56%
PROVISION COVERAGE RATIO
31t March, 2019 62.14%
31st March, 2020 66.75%

* Required as per RBI Norms — ¥ 656.39 crore.

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)
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15.

Provision Coverage Ratio

Your Bank has a prudent policy for provisions on
NPAs and has made additional provision, over and
above the requirement for Bad and Doubtful Debts
as per regulatory IRAC norms. Provision Coverage
Ratio (PCR) improves to 66.75 per cent over the
previous year (62.14 per cent). Higher PCR reflects
adequate provision made against NPAs of the Bank.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO - CRAR

Capital Adequacy Ratio stands at 14.75 per cent
as on 31t March 2020, much higher than the 13.16
per cent as on 31t March, 2019, and well above the
RBI stipulated norms. This is primary attributable
to an increase in the capital funds coupled with a
decrease in the advances.

Table No. 9:
(X in crore)

Particulars l’I:EE:E:I 31-03-2019
Capital-Tier |
a. Share Capital (a) 285.22 263.20
b. Reserves and Surplus
Statutory Reserve 843.09 764.05
Other Reserves 1,116.29 1,002.32
Profit and Loss Account 215.85 210.63

(b) 2,175.23 1,977.00
Gross Tier | Capital (a+b) 2,460.45 2,240.20
Less: Intangible assets & losses 271.01 225.15
Net Tier | Capital (A) 2,189.44 2,015.05
Capital-Tier Il
Revaluation Reserve 281.65 290.21
General Provisions 131.02 131.88
Investment Fluctuation Reserve 230.35 208.35
Subordinated Debts 810.78 634.08
Tier Il Capital (B) 1,453.80 1,264.52
Total Capital Funds (A+B) 3,643.24 3,279.57
Risk Assets
i.  Funded Risk Assets 21,95728 22,718.95
i. Non-funded Risk Assets 1,014.14 668.73

Risk Weighted Assets for 1,724.93 1,536.81
market risk

Total Risk Weighted Assets 24,696.35 24,924.49
(i+ii+iii)
Capital Adequacy Ratio % 14.75 13.16

16. APPROPRIATIONS

We propose the following appropriations from the
Net Profit for FY 2019-20:

Table No. 10:
(X in lakh)

Particulars l:’EE:I 2018-19
Transfer to Reserve Fund 6,269.87 7,282.13
(25%)
Contingency Reserve (10%) 2,507.95 2,912.85
Provision for Education Fund 250.79 291.29
of N.C.U.1.(1%)
Dividend on PNCPS * 571.67
Dividend on equity shares * 3,370.31
Provision for Ex-gratia to 3,100.00 3,630.00
employees @14%
Members’ Welfare Fund 50.00 100.00
Provision for Staff Welfare 10.00 10.00
Provision for Public, 250.79 291.29

Charitable & Co-operative
Purposes (1%)

Investment Fluctuation 7,000.00 2,200.00
Reserve

Special Reserve 2,000.00 2,200.00
General Reserve 3,639.67 6,250.00
Balance to be c/f to the next 117.95 11754
year

Total 25,197.02 29,227.08

* Dividend on Preference Shares and on Equity
Shares

As per RBI circular no. RBI/2019-20/218 dated
April 17, 2020 in respect of declaration of dividends
by banks (revised), no dividend is proposed for
F.Y.2019-20 until further instructions. This restriction
shall be reassessed by RBI based on the financial
results of banks for the quarter ending September
30,2020. In view of this, if the payment of dividend is
permitted by RBI, the Bank will affirmatively consider
the payment of dividend.

Members Welfare Fund

Your Board of Directors recommends contribution
of ¥ 50 lakh towards Members Welfare Fund. After
this accretion, the total amount in this fund will be
% 1,328.50 lakh. During the year, 850 members
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availed reimbursement of expenses towards medical
treatment and medical check-up.

Twenty-two awards were granted to meritorious
children of members.

Ex-gratia to Employees

We propose that an Ex-gratia payment at the rate
of 14 per cent be granted to our employees for the
financial year ending 31t March, 2020.

Provision for Public Charitable and Co-operative
Purposes

As permitted under RBI Circular No. UBD. (PCB)/
BPD/Cir/43 dated 11" April, 2005, your Board
recommends an appropriation of 1 per cent of the
net profiti.e. ¥250.79 lakh for public, charitable and
co-operative purposes.

Special Reserve

In accordance with Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961, urban co-operative banks are
entitled to a deduction in respect of profits earned
from eligible business i.e. profits earned from loans
and advances granted to industries, infrastructure,
agriculture and housing. Twenty per cent of such
profits transferred to a Special Reserve are eligible
for deduction from taxable income. Your Board,
therefore, recommends an amount of ¥ 2,000 lakh
to be appropriated out of profits derived from the
said eligible business towards Special Reserve.

AMENDMENTS TO BANK’S BYE-LAWS

The proposed amendments during the year are:

Deletion of Bye-law No. 5 (e)(v)
The Bye-law No.5 (e)(v) states that :

“5. The objects of the Society shall be to engage in
any one or more of the forms of business enumerated
in Section 6 as amended by Section 56 of The
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and in particular, to
carry out the following forms of business:

(e) To engage in any one or more of the following
forms of business namely;

(v) The buying, selling and dealing in bullion and
species on behalf of member customers;”

18.

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

Though this clause is present in our existing Bye-
laws, our Bank has never undertaken any of such
activities as it is not in line with RBI Master Circular
on Management of Advances. Hence, it is proposed
to delete the Bye-law No.5(e)(v).

Addition of New Bye-law No.64 AA

The Reserve Bank of India has issued guidelines
vide its Circular dated 31%t December, 2019 for
constitution of a Board of Management (BOM) in
Primary (Urban) Co-operative Banks (UCBs). In
order to ensure compliance, it is proposed to add a
new Bye-law No.64 AA. The said Bye-law No.64 AA
will be incorporated after Bye-law No.64 A.

The details of Bye-law No.5(e)(v) and 64 AA are
attached as Annexure A.

IDEAL SHAREHOLDER

As you are aware, the Bank has

been following the tradition of

bestowing the Ideal Shareholder

i.e. Adarsh Sabhasad Award

on a select shareholder for
- the past several years. For FY

2019-20, the Award was bestowed
on respected Shri Baba Khanolkar, Chairman,
M/s M. S. Engineering Works Ltd.

-

Shri Khanolkar, after acquiring a Diploma in
Mechanical Engineering and Diploma in Business
Management, worked for seven years at prestigious
engineering companies like Larsen & Toubro Ltd.
and Asea Brown Boveri Ltd. Having gained valuable
work experience, in 1979, he took the bold decision
to venture on his own and laid the foundation of
a new business of trading and manufacturing of
engineering components, namely M/s Sucheta
Enterprises. The initial challenges soon gave way
to growth and expansion. M/s M. S. Engineering
Works was thus formed in the year 1986. In-house
manufacturing of precision-turned components and
plastic moulding activity was started, with supplies
to companies like Reliance Industries Ltd. and
Spaco Carburettors Pvt. Ltd. Further consolidation
led to an additional business enterprise of import of
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used engineering machine tools from countries like
Singapore and United Kingdom, and their sale in the
domestic Indian market, post refurbishing and trials.
In 2000, Shri Khanolkar set up an office in United
Kingdom, enabling easy sourcing of machinery
from all over Europe.

The Khanolkar Group of companies today comprises
various entities such as:

e M. S. Engineering Works, Pune, involved
in import, refurbishment and sale of used
engineering machinery.

e Sucheta Enterprises and Niket Enterprises,
Mumbai, engaged in manufacture and labour
machining activities with supply of engineering
products.

e Alisped India Pvt Ltd and Airborne Charters Pvt
Ltd, providing effective logistics solutions for air
and sea cargo of all types, with offices spread
all over India and internationally.

Saraswat Bank is proud to be associated with Shri
Baba Khanolkar and his family, over the past thirty
years. In fond appreciation and full recognition of
his accomplishments and the renowned stature of
his companies, your Bank honoured him with the
Adarsha Sabhasad’ (Ideal Shareholder) of the Year
Award.

AWARDS

Awards are a validation of the efforts that we
undertake on an ongoing basis and they always spur
us to do better and surpass our own expectations.
During the year 2019-20, your Bank received several
awards.

* Forbes 2020 Global Survey

Your Bank was recently ranked second best
bank in the country by Forbes survey, much
ahead of leading private and PSU banks.
Forbes is a prestigious American business
magazine well-known for its daily coverage on
business, technology, financial markets, etc.
Forbes is also widely known for its list of the
world’s richest people and the world’s leading
companies.

Forbes has partnered with market research
firm Statista to produce the list of the World’s
Best Banks so as to measure the best Bank in
23 countries. The survey compiled data from
around 40,000 customers around the globe
for their opinions on their current and former
banking relationships. Banks were rated on
general satisfaction and key attributes like trust,
fees, digital services and financial advice. With
survey results being based on data compiled
from customers, the results have vindicated
the way customers and the public look up on
us, with utmost satisfaction and trust. This
achievement has been possible only because
of the unflinching support and co-operation of
our Shareholders, Depositors, Customers and
well-wishers.

Innovative  Online  Account
Application Award 2020

Your Bank has been conferred with an
award for innovative online account opening
application - “Saraswat Bank 100+ under the
category of Enterprise Mobility at ‘Express
BFSI Technology Awards’ organized by Express
Computer, an IT business magazine from the
Indian Express Group. Your Bank has received
this award across the banking industry and not
limited to the co-operative sector. Further, the
award is dedicated for deploying a completely
new solution and an innovative use of an
existing technology to gain a competitive edge
across the banking industry. “Saraswat Bank
100+” is a multilingual (English/Hindi/Marathi)
mobile app which facilitates applicant to open
Savings Account with our Bank in a self-mode
i.e. by himself/herself. Applicant can get desired
account number (last 6-digits) through a simple
and secure on-boarding process.

Opening

IBA The Best Technology Bank of the year
2020

Your Bank bagged the IBA Technology Award
for “The Best Technology Bank of the year
2020” by Indian Banks’ Association.
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* NSDL Star Performer Awards 2019
Saraswat Bank has been ranked #1 as the “Top
Performer in New Accounts Opened under Co-
operative Bank Category’ at the NSDL Star
Performer Awards 2019.

* Wells Fargo Bank Award

Your Bank was conferred by Wells Fargo Bank
with “Wells Fargo Straight -Through Processing
Award” for the year 2018-19. The award is a
recognition of our operating efficiencies in the
Straight Through Process of outward payments.
Highest percentage of properly formatted
outward foreign exchange messages across
banks was the key parameter of selection for
the award. We outperformed in the parameter,
which facilitated cost reductions, saves time
and most importantly, meets customer’s
expectations.

e ABP News Award-Best Co-operative Bank in
India
On behalf of ABP News, your Bank also
received an award for the Best Co-operative
Bank in India. The award was received on 22"
November, 2019 by our Retail Department
officials.

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
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Apart from serving as stewards of the financial
system, your Bank understands the importance
of extending gratitude towards society in the form
of service and contribution. At Saraswat Bank,
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not a new
exercise, it is a tradition.

During FY 2019-20, rains wreaked havoc in one
of the heaviest monsoons the country has seen.
Large parts went under water with lakhs of people
being displaced and vast swathes of standing crop
damaged. The situation across the country was grim
indeed, with a large populace across several states
being affected. In Maharashtra, several districts viz.
Kolhapur, Sangli, Konkan and Nashik were affected.
Taking a serious note of the devastating flood
situation prevailing in various parts of Maharashtra,

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

your Bank donated an amount of Rupees
One Crore towards the Chief Minister's Relief
Fund, Maharashtra for flood relief. The cheque of
% One Crore was handed over to the then Hon'ble
Chief Minister of Maharashtra, Shri Devendra
Fadnavis. Your Bank also declared ‘Aapatti Nivaran
Yojana” for the financial rehabilitation of small
business and traders affected by the floods.

During the year under review, your Bank sactioned
donations of ¥ 33.77 lakhs to 270 worthy institutions.
A function “Runanubandh Sohala” held annually
for this purpose had to be cancelled due to
COVID-19 pandemic, as per Government advisory
in this regard. The donation cheques were sent to
the institutes / organisations through post / courier.

21. OTHER DEVELOPMENTS

e The fourth Ekanath Thakur Memorial Lecture
was held on 17" February, 2020 at Swatantra
Veer Savarkar Sabhagruha, Mumbai as a tribute
to Shri Ekanath Thakur’s visionary leadership
and monumental contribution to the Bank’s
present stature in the banking industry and as
an expression of love and gratitude towards him.
The Bank had instituted the Ekanath Thakur
Memorial Lecture series since FY 2016. This
year, the Lecture was delivered by Hon’ble Shri
Kumar Ketkar, MP, Rajya Sabha and renowned
journalist. The topic of the Lecture was “The
21t Century and Challenges to the New World”

* Investor awareness programmes  were
conducted by your Bank to reach out to citizens
from all walks of life in order to create awareness
about savings and investments. One such
investor awareness programme was organised
by our Chembur branch during January 2020.
The event helped to educate prospective
investors so that they understand the benefit of
savings, investments and capital accumulation.
The event was open not only for the existing
Bank customers but for all so as to enable new
client growth and to increase the loyalty and
strengthen the relations with existing clientele.
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e Several customer service meets were
organised at various locations like Mumbai and
Pune in order to touch base with the customers
and strengthen the bonds with our valuable
clientele. During the customer meets, your
Bank’s Directors and top Executives personally
interacted with customers in order to understand
their banking needs and reassure them of our
services as always.

22. COMPOSITION OF YOUR BANK’S BOARD

The composition of the Board of your Bank is
governed by the Multi-State Co-operative Societies
Act, 2002 and the Bye-laws of your Bank. Presently,
there are sixteen Directors on the Board in addition to
the Managing Director. The Board includes eminent
persons with professional expertise and experience
in Banking, Finance and other fields. Your Bank has
two Chartered Accountants and six Bankers as its
Directors.

Shri P. N. Joshi, Senior Director of the Bank
voluntarily resigned from the Board of the Bank on
10" January, 2020. He has tremendous banking
knowledge considering his long stint in the banking
industry. He served as the Director of your Bank for
around nine years during which he utilised his deep
knowledge of the banking and financial sector for
the betterment of your Bank. The Bank is grateful to
Shri P. N. Joshi for his valuable contribution to the
Bank during his tenure as a Director of the Bank.

The Bank has co-opted Shri S. K. Banerji, Advisor
to the Board and former Managing Director of
the Bank, on the Board of the Bank in view of his
long association with the Bank, experience in the
banking sector and his contribution in the effective
implementation of ambitious plans and policies of
the Bank over the years. Shri Banerji is B.Sc (Hons).
DBM, LLM, Fellow member of the Indian Institute of
Banking and Finance (FIIBF). He joined the Bank
on 1t December, 1975 and retired as Managing
Director of the Bank on 31%t March, 2017. Post
retirement, he continued to serve the Bank in the
capacity of Advisor of the Board from 1%t April, 2017
onwards.

During the period under report, twenty-four Board
meetings were held.

Loans to Directors

No Director has borrowed any money from your
Bank except against their fixed deposits as permited
by RBI. This has been a healthy tradition in your
Bank and has been enshrined in Bye-law No. 55
and Bye-law No. 63 (c) many years ago.

Working of Committees:

The Board has constituted Committees whichinclude
Directors and higher Management Executives to
take informed decisions in the best interests of the
Bank.

As on 31%t March 2020, five Committees of the
Board were in place viz.,

e  Executive and HRD Committee

e Audit, Accounts and NPA Management
Committee

e Credit Committee of the Board

e Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring
Frauds

* Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee

The various Committees and the scope of functions
are as follows:

Executive and HRD Committee:

The Executive and HRD Committee looks into HR
and training issues, formulation and implementation
of action plan for sustaining/improving the quality of
the Bank’s human resources and welfare measures
for employees at all levels. It is also involved in
decision-making on all operational matters, except
sanction of loans/advances. It further decides
upon branch expansion, acquisition of premises on
purchase or lease for branches/offices, approves
expenditure and costs in relation thereto and also
considers any other matter which requires urgent
attention.

Shri Gautam E. Thakur is the Chairman of the
Executive and HRD Committee of the Board.
During the year under review, eight meetings of the
Committee were held.
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Audit, Accounts
Committee:

This Committee provides direction, oversees
the total audit function of your Bank, follows up
statutory/external/concurrent audit and ensures
strict adherence of RBI’s guidelines and directives
from time to time. It deliberates on the progress of
recoveries of overdues and NPAs and decides on
issuing of securitization notices and possessions
of properties charged to your Bank to expedite
recoveries. Thirteen meetings of the Committee
were held during the year.

and NPA Management

Shri S.K. Sakhalkar is the Chairman of the Audit,
Accounts and NPA Management Committee.

Credit Committee of the Board:

The Credit Committee of the Board considers all
Board level proposals involving Renewal/Review at
the existing level and/or various related requests.
The Committee comprises the Chairman (Director),
two Board Members (by rotation) and the Managing
Director, apart from invitees that include your
Bank’s top Executives and CENMAC members. The
Committee considers Renewal/Review/Request
proposals related to individual credit exposures
above ¥ 20 crore and group credit exposures above
% 40 crore.

Shri S.N. Sawaikar is the Chairman of the Credit
Committee of the Board.

Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring
Frauds:

The Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring
Frauds as the name suggests, is a Committee
to monitor high value frauds involving amounts
exceeding %100 lakh, that may occur in your Bank.
The said Committee meets as per exigencies. During
the financial year under review, the Committee met
on three occasions.

Shri Gautam E. Thakur is the Chairman of the
Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring
Frauds.

23.

Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee
of the Board:

The Information Technology (IT) Strategy
Committee of the Board is a Committee to approve
IT strategy and policies and to ensure that an
effective IT organisational structure and strategic
planning process is in place. Key focus areas of
IT Governance include strategic alignment, value
delivery, risk management, resource management
and performance management.

During the financial year under review, three
meetings of the Committee were held.

Shri A. A. Pandit is the Chairman of the Information
Technology (IT) Strategy Committee of the Board

MEMBERSHIP

2,25,245 members of your Bank individually hold
fifty and above fully-paid shares. The number of
nominal members of the Bank stood at 61,886 as
on 31t March, 2020.

24. APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

25.

26.
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Your Board of Directors recommends the
appointment of M/s G. D. Apte & Company,
Chartered Accountants, GDA House, Plot No. 85,
Right Bhusari Colony, Paud Road, Pune 411 038,
as the Statutory Auditors of the Bank for the
FY 2020-21.

DISCLOSURES

As per the disclosure norms stipulated by RBI, we
hereby declare that insurance premium to Deposit
Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation
(DICGC) has been paid upto 31t March, 2020 and
there are no arrears payable to DICGC.

OBITUARY

We deeply mourn the passing away of some of our
shareholders, former employees and employees of
your Bank during the year under report.
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We pray that the departed souls rest in peace and
that the Almighty grants fortitude and strength to
their family members to bear the irreparable loss.

27. GRATITUDE

Your Board wishes to place on record the appreciation
of the support which the Board of Directors and the
Bank has received from all its shareholders and
other stakeholders, and thanks them profusely for
the confidence and trust that they have reposed in
the Board and your Bank.

Your Board would also like to place on record the
deep sense of gratitude to the authorities of the
Reserve Bank of India, the Office of the Central
Registrar of Co-operative Societies - New Delhi, the
Office of the Commissioner for Co-operation and
Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Maharashtra
State, Pune, bankers, legal advisors and auditors for
their valuable guidance, support and co-operation.

The Board is also grateful to the Registrars of
Co-operative Societies of the states of Madhya
Pradesh, Karnataka, Goa, Delhi and Gujarat.

The Board of Directors places on record its
appreciation of all sections of employees for their
loyalty, dedication and wholehearted involvement
in achieving the goals and missions of your
Bank, including providing excellent services to all
customers, even during lockdown period.

Your Board wishes to assure all shareholders that it
will continue to strive towards attaining new heights
in coming years through continued commitment and
sustained efforts.

For and on behalf of the Board,
Gautam E. Thakur
Chairman

Mumbai: 23 October, 2020
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92.L8 THPH FAD IME. ITARIRGT
g MR T 9,800 HIEA! [PPpIs
Hol HoRX Fell. Wy, A A fafdy
SHI-UaeTdl iGN HRuAN  Igacied
3 ASTANYDS TP & Hol faeRid
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B FoR JehTEN fAURA ST Foiciiet
SIEM FH HROFTER HR e,

(iii) fa<er R e

JEATTaY] 3MIeAT Jobal AEHIZN HRUAT
ITeieT faeer faf g e T 2%, 694.34
PIST Iad! 2. 2. 39 A/, 030 Asi

Tifiep 3r@arer 09%8-30 | 57



A Steady Ship...

58

frTipRar ool &of & T 9,399.90 8. feRTee afdhT fAvm
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SR, 2098 T BgaWl, 030 I FraEEd
“Happiness Behisaab” & a1 AEW
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To,

The Members,
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.,

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying Financial

Statements of Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd,
which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2020 and Profit and Loss Account and the Cash
Flow Statement for the year ended on March 31,
2020 and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949,
the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002
and the Rules made thereunder, the guidelines
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and the
Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies, in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Bank
as at March 31, 2020 and its profit and its Cash
Flows for the financial year ended on that date.

Basis of opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the code of ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Banking Regulations Act, 1949 and the rules
made thereunder and under the provisions of the
Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and
the rules made thereunder and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these requirements and the code of ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of matter:

4.

We draw attention to Note No. 16 of the Management
Notes on Accounts, which states that situation on
account of COVID-19 Pandemic continues to be
uncertain and as such, it is difficult to predict time
horizons to gauge the impact thereof. In the opinion
of Bank’s Management, the results in future are not
expected to be materially adverse nor would there
be any significant impact on the going concern
assumption. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

information other than the Financial Statements and
auditor’s Report thereon

5.

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in
the Report of Board of Directors including other
explanatory information, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The report of the Board of Directors is
expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

When we read the Report of Board of Directors
including other explanatory information, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance and the members
in the Annual General Meeting.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

6.

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible
for preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Bank in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards issued by ICAI, provisions
of Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Rules
made thereunder, provisions of Multi State Co-
operative Societies Act, 2002 and the Rules made
thereunder and circulars and guidelines issued
by RBI from time to time. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of
the Acts for safeguarding the assets of the Bank
and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Bank or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for
overseeing Bank’s Financial Reporting progress.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the audit of the financial
statements

7.

66

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards
on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on other legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account
have been drawn up in Forms A and B respectively
of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act,
1949 and the Multi State Co-operative Societies
Act, 2002, the Multi State Co-operative Societies
Rules, 2002.

As required by Section 73(4) of the Multi State Co-
operative Societies Act, 2002, we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit and have found to be
satisfactory;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Bank
so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and proper returns adequate for
the purposes of our audit have been received
from the branches/offices;

c. The transactions of the Bank which came to our
notice have been within the powers of the Bank;

d. The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report, agree with the books of account and the
returns;

e. The accounting standards adopted by the
Bank are consistent with those laid down by
accounting principles generally accepted in
India so far as applicable to Banks;

f. Inour opinion and according to information and
explanations given to us, we have not noticed
any material impropriety or irregularity in the
expenditure or in the realisation of money due
to the Bank.

10. As per the information and explanations given to

us and based on our examination of the books of
account and other record, we report as under on the
matters specified in clause (a) to (f) of Rule 27(3) of
the Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002

a. We have not come across any transactions
which appear to be contrary to the provisions
of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act,
2002, the rules or the bye-laws of the Bank.

b. We have not come across any material or
significant  transactions which appear to
be contrary to the guidelines issued by the
Reserve Bank of India.

c. Money belonging to the Bank which appears to
be bad or doubtful of recovery as on 31 March
2020 was % 1075.90 crore (i.e. ¥ 1050.53 crore
in respect of advances classified as NPA
classified as Doubtful and Loss Assets as per
prudential norms issued by RBI & ¥ 25.37 crore
in respect of other assets) for which adequate
provision has been made as per extant RBI
guidelines.

d. The Bank has not given loans to the members
of the Board of Directors.

e. We have not observed any violation of
guidelines, conditions etc., issued by the
Reserve Bank of India.

f.  The Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies
in this regard has not specified any matters to
the Bank.

For: G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No 100 515W
sd/-

(C. M. Dixit)

Partner

Membership No. 017532

UDIN: 20017532AAAAAJ1062

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24™ July 2020
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Balance Sheet as at march 31,2020

Capital and Liabilities

Schedule

Current Year
31.03.2020

(Amount in )

Previous Year
31.03.2019

(1) Capital 1 2,85,98,99,510 2,63,96,89,190
(2) Reserve Fund & Other Reserves 2 39,51,48,62,042  36,39,63,90,850
(8) Principal / Subsidiary State Partnership 0 0

Fund Account
(4) Deposits & Other Accounts 3 3,80,83,49,30,053 3,60,14,87,01,100
(5) Borrowings 4 17,06,49,25,000  22,21,31,18,678
(6) Bills For Collection Being Bills

Receivable as per Contra 38,09,73,93,290 38,05,21,20,864
(7) Securities Receivable as per Contra

i. Repo 0 12,89,60,13,678

i. Reverse Repo 24,50,00,25,897 10,26,99,30,533
(8) Branch Adjustments 0 0
(9) Overdue Interest Reserve 1,07,61,43,028 1,15,48,59,179
(10) Interest Payable 62,59,79,461 57,02,72,152
(11) Other Liabilities 5 12,17,57,38,821 12,96,10,01,775
(12) Profit & Loss 6 2,51,97,02,102 2,92,27,07,920
Total 5,19,26,95,99,204 5,00,22,48,05,919
Contingent Liabilities : 13 78,31,26,35,067 4712,85,46,616

As per our report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 100515W

sd/-
(C. M. Dixit)
Partner
Membership No. 017532
UDIN: 20017532AAAAAJ1062

Date: July 24™, 2020

68 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)
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(Amount in %)

Property and Assets Schedule Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(1) Cash 7 15,36,96,37,050 15,56,94,53,759
(2) Balances with other Banks 8 5,22,90,22,247 5,40,65,13,139
(8) Money at Call and Short Notice 27,68,23,72,873 26,52,57,22,249
(4) Investments 9 1,31,29,03,35,422 1,10,13,68,99,935
(5) Investments out of Principal/ Subsidiary 0 0
State Partnership Fund Account
(6) Advances 10 2,563,38,64,01,349 2,57,97,49,26,804
(7) Interest Receivable 1,07,61,43,028 1,15,48,59,179
(8) Bills Receivable Being Bills For Collection as per Contra 38,09,73,93,290 38,05,21,20,864
(9) Securities Receivable as per Contra
i. Repo 0 12,89,60,13,678
ii. Reverse Repo 24,50,00,25,897 10,26,99,30,533
(10) Branch Adjustments 37,33,75,359 1,62,72,499
(11) Fixed Assets 1 8,84,22,80,795 8,60,11,39,042
(12) Other Assets 12 13,39,62,46,631 13,59,91,68,643
(13) Non-Banking Assets Acquired in Satisfaction of Claims 0 0
(14) Computer Software 2,63,65,263 2,17,85,595
Total 5,19,26,95,99,204 5,00,22,48,05,919

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
S. M. Sandhane S. N. Sawaikar A. A. Pandit S. K. Sakhalkar G. E. Thakur
Managing Director Director Director Vice-Chairman Chairman

Mumbai : July 24 2020
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PrOflt and LOSS ACCOU nt For the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amount in )

Expenditure Current Year Previous Year

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

1)

Interest on Deposits, Borrowings, etc.

23,07,72,28,009

20,94,76,45,762

2) Salaries and Allowances, Provident Fund 3,68,87,80,493 3,20,74,36,370
3) Directors' and local committee members' fees and allowances 59,10,000 62,85,000
4) Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Lighting, etc. 1,24,45,53,013 1,14,96,04,631
5) Law Charges 1,03,95,212 57,29,777
6) Postage, Telegram and Telephone charges 7,93,90,771 7,50,59,768
7) Auditor's fees 5,33,30,781 5,08,97,568
8) Depreciation on and repair to property 25,75,51,213 25,67,23,364
9) Stationery, printing and advertisement, etc. 19,43,91,859 17,11,55,216
10) Loss from sale of or dealing with non-banking assets 0 0
11)  Other Expenditure :
i)  Repairs and Maintenance of assets 17,57,51,712 15,65,59,800
i)  Banker's Indemnity Insurance 44,79,848 48,94,141
i)  Premium paid to DICGC 36,04,22,753 33,89,40,298
iv)  Premium paid to ECGC 1,61,64,688 1,78,52,856
v)  Cheque Processing Charges 1,21,09,305 1,40,35,259
vi) Leased Line Expenditure 6,70,50,388 5,58,88,993
vii) Travelling and Conveyance 2,99,04,196 2,90,62,612
viii) Security Service Charges 35,58,79,446 30,62,50,498
ix)  Amortisation of Investments 16,39,34,002 21,78,48,591
x)  Professional Fees 9,37,19,452 8,52,57,339
xi)  Bank Charges 20,80,92,868 12,53,26,863
xii) Digital Banking Expenses 33,57,03,300 33,34,54,743
xiii) Car Expenses 1,24,95,181 1,27,20,583
xiv) Housekeeping Charges 3,27,19,028 2,65,14,960
xv) Sundries 42,55,45,100 40,26,19,523
2,29,39,71,267 2,12,72,27,059
12) Provisions :
i) Provision for Depreciation on Investments 21,18,62,583 11,38,91,000
i)  Bad And Doubtful Debts Reserve 2,41,90,18,049 2,00,91,49,760
iii)  Reserve for Restructured Assets 0 12,38,88,500
iv)  Contingent Provision Against Standard Assets 0 6,87,75,000
V)  Provision towards a/c under Covid Relief 1,65,44,642 0
2,64,64,25,274 2,31,57,04,260
13) Income-Tax Expenses :
i) Current Tax 1,40,30,00,000 1,22,50,00,000
iy  Deferred Tax (7,98,39,149) 19,60,00,906
i)  Short / (Excess) Provision for Tax of earlier years (Net) 9,78,44,194 (34,68,89,049)
1,42,10,05,045 1,07,41,11,857
14) Net Profit carried to Balance Sheet 2,50,79,47,682 2,91,28,51,795
Total 37,48,08,80,619 34,30,04,32,427

As per our report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 100515W

sd/-

(C. M. Dixit)

Partner

Membership No. 017532
UDIN: 20017532AAAAAJ1062

Mumbai : July 24, 2020
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Income

—_

)

Interest & Discount

Current Year
31.03.2020

32,32,56,51,194

(Amount in %)

Previous Year
31.03.2019

30,19,30,12,188

Commission, exchange and brokerage

1,12,43,42,620

1,07,29,88,258

Profit on Sale of Securities (Net)

2,26,87,21,470

1,20,14,35,040

4)  Other Receipts

i) Processing Fees 44,43,80,531 54,34,39,762
ii) Service Charges 67,69,70,497 58,28,29,808
i)  Recovery of Expenses 1,55,31,191 1,32,29,062
iv)  Profit on Sale of Assets(Net) 20,15,249 37,54,051
v)  Digital Banking Income 38,78,51,642 40,91,57,196
vi)  Profit on sale / redemption of Security Receipts 0 11,83,20,000
vii)  Miscellaneous Income 9,75,23,511 7,76,70,031
viii) Dividend 9,383,685 7,68,144

1,62,52,06,306 1,74,91,68,054

5)  Excess Provision of earlier years written back 58,16,355 68,36,615
6) Bad Debts earlier written off, now recovered 7,26,70,174 7,69,92,272
7) Excess Contigent provision against standard assets written back 3,33,00,000 0
8)  Excess Provision for Restructured Assets reversed 2,51,72,500 0
Total 37,48,08,80,619 34,30,04,32,427
sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
S. M. Sandhane S. N. Sawaikar A. A. Pandit S. K. Sakhalkar G. E.Thakur
Managing Director Director Director Vice-Chairman Chairman

Mumbai : July 24 2020
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SChedU|eS forming part Of ACCOUI‘ItS For the year ended March 31, 2020

SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL

(Amount in %)

Current Year
31.03.2020

i)  Authorised Capital :

Previous Year
31.03.2019

100,00,00,000 Shares of T 10/- each

10,00,00,00,000

10,00,00,00,000

(Previous year 100,00,00,000 shares )

Subscribed Capital :

2,31,54,54,510

2,09,52,44,190

23,15,45,451 Shares of T 10/- each

(Previous year 20,95,24,419 shares of ¥ 10/- each)

Amount Called up :

2,31,54,54,510

2,09,52,44,190

23,15,45,451 Shares of ¥10/- each

(Previous year 20,95,24,419 shares of ¥ 10/- each)

Of the above held by :

a) Individuals

2,31,54,54,510

2,09,52,44,190

b) Co-operative institutions 0 0

c) State Government 0 0
ii) Preference Share Capital

5,44,44 500 Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each 54,44,45,000 54,44,45,000

(Previous year 5,44,44,500 Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each)

Total 2,85,98,99,510

2,63,96,89,190

SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVE FUND & OTHER RESERVES

(Amount in %)

Previous Year

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

i)  Statutory Reserve 8,43,08,73,368 7,64,04,88,041

i)  Building Fund 2,52,90,93,933 2,52,90,93,933

iii) Dividend Equalisation Fund 0 0

iv) Special Bad Debts Reserve 0 0

v) Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve 8,59,57,48,439 7,62,05,36,149

vi) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 2,30,35,00,710 2,08,35,00,710
vii) Other Funds and Reserve:

a) Restructured Assets Reserve 23,49,25,000 26,00,97,500

b) Contingency Reserve 3,00,73,33,650 2,71,60,48,450

c) Contingent provision against Standard Assets 1,01,10,00,000 1,04,43,00,000

d) Members’ Welfare Fund 12,73,50,000 11,73,50,000

e) Provision for Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose 13,40,38,504 11,62,93,004

f)  Provision for Staff Welfare 1,63,98,992 1,72,54,564

g) Net Open Foreign Currency Position Reserve 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000

h) General Reserve 4,02,67,74,115 3,39,83,56,036

i)  Revaluation Reserve

6,25,90,22,837

6,44,91,69,611

i)  Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of |.Tax Act,1961

1,68,28,00,000

1,46,28,00,000

k) Reserve for Excess Provision on Sale of Financial Assets 3,67,99,852 3,67,99,852
I)  Centenary Fund (Net) 0 0
m) Reserve for COVID Relief Account 1,55,44,642 0
n) Contingent Provision against Depreciation in Investments 1,08,36,58,000 88,43,03,000

Total 39,51,48,62,042 36,39,63,90,850
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SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS & OTHER ACCOUNTS

(Amount in %)

Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

i) Fixed Deposits :

a) Individuals & Others 2,06,15,73,11,829 1,96,88,49,35,558
b) Central Co-op. Banks 50,00,000 50,00,000
c) Other Societies 67,43,31,86,937 59,38,93,70,884

(i) 2,73,59,54,98,766 2,56,27,93,06,442

ii) Savings Bank Deposits :

a) Individuals & Others 79,51,76,12,934 77,14,50,03,067
b) Central Co-op. Banks 0 0
c) Other Societies 5,61,58,30,424 5,02,78,23,649

(i) 85,13,34,43,358 82,17,28,26,716

iii) Current Deposits :

a) Individuals & Others 20,74,80,65,914 20,39,66,85,634
b) Central Co-op. Banks 2,00,12,428 2,38,98,991
c) Other Societies 1,33,79,09,587 1,27,59,83,317

(iii) 22,10,59,87,929 21,69,65,67,942
Total (i+ii+iii)) 3,80,83,49,30,053 3,60,14,87,01,100

SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS

(Amount in %)

Previous Year
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
i) From the Reserve Bank of India / State / Central Co-op Bank
a) Short-Term Loans, Cash Credits and Overdrafts 0 0
of which secured against -
A) Government and Other Approved Securities
B) Other Tangible Securities
b) Medium-Term Loans 0 0
of which secured against -
A) Government and other approved securities
B) Other Tangible securities
c) Long-Term Loans 0 0
of which secured against -
A) Government and other approved securities
B) Other Tangible securities
ii) From the State Bank of India 0 0
iii) From the State Government 0 0
iv) Loans from other sources (source and securities to be specified)
a) RBI Repo (LAF) 4,69,00,00,000 0
b) Repo Borrowings 0 4,53,07,01,475
c) Repo Borrowing under TREPS (TRIPARTY) 0 8,36,53,12,203
d) Foreign Currency Borrowing from Banks 0 6,91,55,000
e) Long Term (Subordinated) Deposits 12,37,49,25,000 9,24,79,50,000

Total 17,06,49,25,000 22,21,31,18,678
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SCHEDULE 5 - OTHER LIABILITIES

(Amount in %)

Previous Year

Current Year
31.03.2020

31.03.2019
i) Bills Payable 45,28,23,082 1,21,50,27,178
i)  Unclaimed Dividend 16,47,50,270 15,39,91,657
iii) Suspense 40,43,55,715 33,95,15,187
iv)  Provision for Staff Pension 42,42,01,675 36,32,58,523
v) Rebate on Bills Discounted 2,05,53,300 4,37,26,823
vi) Credit balance in Bank Account 37,45,85,933 1,09,39,14,109
vii) Provision for Leave Encashment 2,96,56,039 0
viii) Provision for Taxation 5,60,58,56,259 5,67,56,47,326

ix) Other items

4,69,89,56,548

4,07,59,20,973

Total 12,17,57,38,821

12,96,10,01,775

SCHEDULE 6 — PROFIT & LOSS

(Amount in)

Current Year
31.03.2020

Profit as per last Balance Sheet

Previous Year
31.03.2019

(a) 2,92,27,07,920

2,41,63,13,025

Less : Appropriations of profit for the year 2018-19

Reserve Fund 72,82,13,000 60,16,88,400
Dividend 33,70,31,300 29,72,70,000
Dividend on Preference Shares 5,71,66,800 5,71,66,800
Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose 2,91,28,600 2,40,67,600
Provision for Staff Welfare 10,00,000 13,35,00,000
Members’ Welfare Fund 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Ex-gratia to Employees 36,30,00,000 35,24,00,000
Education fund 2,91,28,600 2,40,67,600
Contingency Reserve 29,12,85,200 24,06,75,400
Investment Fluctuation Reserve 22,00,00,000 40,00,00,000
Special Reserve 22,00,00,000 17,00,00,000
General Reserve 62,50,00,000 9,56,21,100
(b) 2,91,09,53,500 2,40,64,56,900

(a)-(b) 1,17,54,420 98,56,125

Add : Profit for the year as per Profit & Loss Account 2,50,79,47,682 2,91,28,51,795
Total 2,51,97,02,102 2,92,27,07,920

SCHEDULE 7 - CASH

(Amount in)

Current Year
31.03.2020

Previous Year
31.03.2019

i)  Cash In hand 2,90,68,83,863 1,39,52,34,519
i)  Cash with Reserve Bank of India 12,44,88,09,934 14,14,18,92,463
iii) Cash with State Bank of India 25,55,027 2,33,53,970
iv) Cash with State Co-operative Banks 50,064 51,007
v) Cash with Central Co-operative Banks 1,13,38,162 89,21,800

Total 15,36,96,37,050 15,56,94,53,759
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SCHEDULE 8 — BALANCE WITH OTHER BANKS

(Amount in %)

Previous Year
31.03.2019

Current Year
31.03.2020

i) Current Deposits 4,7726,24,684 2,68,58,95,734
(Including ¥ 331.47 crore with Banks in Foreign Countries)
i)  Savings Bank Deposits 0 0
iii)  Fixed Deposits (including 20.09 crore pledged for securing funded/non-funded 45,63,97,563 2,72,06,17,405
facilities and treasury operations)
Total 5,22,90,22,247 5,40,65,13,139

SCHEDULE 9 — INVESTMENTS

(Amount in )

Previous Year
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
i) a) In Central and State Government Securities (at book value) 82,39,68,34,421 78,03,33,03,540
Face Value - ¥ 8139.49 crore
Market Value - ¥ 8301.91 crore
(including ¥ 3003.13 crore pledged for Treasury operations)
b) Reserve Fund Investments
In Central / State Govt. Securities 8,43,08,74,857 7,61,34,86,549
Face Value - ¥ 834.63 crore
Market Value - X 861.22 crore
c) Members’ Welfare Fund Investments
In Central / State Govt. Securities 12,73,50,170 11,73,51,022
Face Value - X 12.77 crore
Market Value - 13.28 crore
i)  Other trustee Securities 0 0
i) Shares in Co-operative Institutions (Other than item (5) below) 13,54,000 13,59,000
iv) Bonds Issued by Public Sector Units 54,78,23,000 64,97,25,250
v)  Other Investments:
Bonds Issued by Public Sector Banks 31,00,00,000 31,00,00,000
Bonds Issued by Other Institutions 1,35,00,00,000 1,14,82,26,750
Bonds of All India Financial Institutions 8,69,34,50,650 8,48,79,75,000
Shares of Limited Company 40,08,824 40,08,824
Units of Mutual Funds 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Certificate of Deposit 27,32,67,31,500 11,02,24,76,750
Commercial Paper 0 49,09,54,250
Security Receipts 2,09,19,08,000 2,24,80,33,000

Total 1,31,29,03,35,422

1,10,13,68,99,935
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SCHEDULE 10 - ADVANCES

(Amount in %)

Current Year
31.03.2020

Previous Year

31.03.2019
1) Short-Term Loans, Cash Credit,
Overdrafts & Bills Discounted
Of which secured against :
a) Government & Other approved Securities 50,16,03,969 31,70,39,281
b)  Other Tangible Securities 1,03,46,51,15,244 1,18,68,96,15,024
c) Personal Advances 2,00,88,39,522 1,65,62,00,524

() 1,05,9755,58,735

1,20,66,28,54,829

Of the Advances, amount due from individuals

1,04,41,08,12,826

1,17,07,25,98,724

Of the Advances, amount Overdue 7,06,4751,177 4,04,24,57197
Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for) 3,11,06,90,509 3,07,83,65,947
Il) Medium-Term Advances
Of which secured against :
a) Government & Other approved Securities 4,21,09,626 4,12,30,181
b) Other Tangible Securities 24,66,15,56,829 25,36,17,54,927
c) Personal Advances 43,47,54,686 10,53,32,668

(11 25,13,84,21,141

25,50,83,17,776

Of the Advances, amount due from individuals

25,13,02,17,057

25,50,24,06,030

Of the Advances, amount Overdue

4,09,17,61,807

3,23,32,22,807

Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for)

2,10,79,46,531

2,08,92,63,513

lll) Long-Term Advances

Of which secured against :

a) Government & Other approved Securities 5,22,83,660 1,92,36,174
b) Other Tangible Securities 1,22,17,11,97.301 1,11,75,98,15,944
c) Personal Advances 4,89,40,512 2,47,02,081

(my  1,22,27,24,21,473

1,11,80,37,54,199

Of the Advances, amount due from individuals

1,21,82,82,46,740

1,11,33,15,69,157

Of the Advances, amount Overdue

2,34,16,56,300

1,33,71,98,372

Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for)

1,34,52,20,423

1,11,85,75,799

Total (I+lI+lll) 2,53,38,64,01,349

2,57,97,49,26,804
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SCHEDULE 11 — FIXED ASSETS

(Amount in %)

Previous Year
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
| PREMISES LESS DEPRECIATION
i) Leasehold Land
Cost as on 1.04.2019 1,75,61,880 1,75,61,880
(a) 1,75,61,880 1,75,61,880
Less : Amortisation
Amortisation upto last year (44,97,687) (42,91,022)
Amortisation for current year (2,06,668) (2,06,665)
(b) (47,04,355) (44,97,687)
Total (a-b) 1,28,57,525 1,30,64,193
ii) Premises (including freehold land)
Cost as on 1.04.2019 9,88,52,56,453 9,90,01,51,106
Add : Additions during the year 16,84,00,003 3,500
Less : Sales/Adjustment during the year 0 (1,48,98,153)
(a) 10,05,36,56,456 9,88,52,56,453
Less : Depreciation
Depreciation upto last year (1,82,16,07,207) (1,58,29,11,690)
Depreciation for current year (5,61,82,901) (5,21,15,858)
Depreciation on Revalued Amount (19,01,46,776) (19,01,46,774)
Depreciation on sales 0 35,67,115
(b) (2,06,79,36,884) (1,82,16,07,207)
Total (a-b) 7,98,57,19,572 8,06,36,49,246
iii) Leasehold Improvement
Book value as on 1.04.2019 2,88,72,821 3,39,22,529
Add : Additions during the year 0 45,13,527
2,88,72,821 3,84,36,056
Less : Amortisation for current year (79,54,019) (95,683,235)
Total 2,09,18,802 2,88,72,821
I FURNITURE & FIXTURE LESS DEPRECIATION
Book value as on 1.04.2019 11,09,80,269 12,25,91,036
Add : Additions during the year 3,95,52,738 3,37,12,411
15,05,33,007 15,63,03,447
Less : Sales/Adjustment (Net) (797,515) (9,61,172)
14,97,35,492 15,53,42,275
Less : Depreciation for current year (4,14,39,728) (4,43,62,007)
Total 10,82,95,764 11,09,80,268
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(Amount in)
Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2019

Il OTHER ASSETS

i) Plant & Machinery

Book value as on 1.04.2019 8,39,20,449 8,25,63,177
Add : Additions during the year 4,89,76,389 3,66,01,302
13,28,96,838 11,91,64,479
Less : Sales/Adjustment (Net) (10,19,059) (27,80,374)
13,18,77,779 11,63,84,105
Less : Depreciation for current year (3,56,35,509) (3,24,63,656)
Total 9,62,42,270 8,39,20,449

ii) Computers
Cost as on 1.04.2019 46,14,64,151 37,17,79,688
Add : Additions during the year 20,64,22,423 9,66,53,603
Less : Sold during the year (3,82,89,626) (69,69,140)
(a) 62,95,96,948 46,14,64,151
Less : Depreciation upto last year (36,31,35,984) (29,16,22,588)
Depreciation for current year (7,89,51,860) (7,82,64,428)
Depreciation on sales 3,81,48,908 67,51,032
(b) (40,39,38,936) (36,31,35,984)
Total (a-b) 22,56,58,012 9,83,28,167

iii) Motor Cars
Cost as on 1.04.2019 10,20,04,020 9,53,97,953
Add : Additions during the year 1,38,82,427 1,41,80,575
Less : Sold during the year (75,89,887) (75,74,508)
(a) 10,82,96,560 10,20,04,020
Less : Depreciation upto last year (6,58,88,942) (5,90,44,606)
Depreciation for current year (1,35,57,462) (1,35,78,900)
Depreciation on sales 66,76,403 67,34,564
(b) (7,27,70,001) (6,58,88,942)
Total (a-b) 3,55,26,559 3,61,15,078
IV CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (PREMISES) 46,39,162 15,83,18,582
V  CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (SOFTWARE) 35,24,23,129 78,90,238
Grand Total (I to V) 8,84,22,80,795 8,60,11,39,042
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SCHEDULE 12 - OTHER ASSETS

(Amount in %)

Current Year
31.03.2020

Previous Year

31.03.2019
iy  Deposit for Services 31,39,04,218 29,77,53,150
i)  Interest Accrued on Investments 1,68,52,41,497 1,96,09,10,793
iii) Rent Receivable 4,18,591 3,98,713
iv) Rent on Lockers in Arrears 60,06,451 56,47,429
v) Stamps on Hand 23,82,330 23,26,831
vi) Prepaid Expenses 7,03,87,925 5,58,47,614
vii) Deferred Tax Asset 2,33,13,41,672 2,25,15,02,523
viii) Income Tax paid 5,93,51,66,293 6,04,78,51,113
ix) Margin on Guarantee Fund (CCIL) 81,57,85,000 50,04,30,000
x)  Other dues 2,23,56,12,654 2,47,65,00,477

Total 13,39,62,46,631 13,59,91,68,643

SCHEDULE 13 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Letters of Credit

(Amount in %)

Current Year
31.03.2020

Previous Year
31.03.2019

9,85,87,34,492

6,98,80,16,031

Guarantees

6,67,20,16,830

6,80,30,23,627

Forward Sale/Purchase Contracts

60,59,49,93,274

32,40,92,66,735

Unclaimed Liabilities under DEAF Scheme

1,18,68,90,471

92,82,40,223

Total

78,31,26,35,067

47,12,85,46,616
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Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet

As at March 31, 2020 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2020.
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OVERVIEW:
1) Background:
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd was

2)

3)

incorporated in 1918 and provides a complete
suite of corporate and retail banking products.

Basis of preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared
and presented under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis of accounting,
unless otherwise stated and comply with
generally accepted accounting principles,
statutory requirements prescribed under
the Banking Regulation Act,1949 and the
Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002,
circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, the
Accounting Standards (AS) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAl) and current practices prevailing within
the banking industry in India.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, requires Management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenues and expenses and disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Management believes that
the estimates used in the preparation of
the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Any revision to the accounting
estimates is recognised prospectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1)

Accounting Convention:
The financial statements are drawn up in
accordance with the historical cost convention

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

2)

3)

(as modified by revaluation of premises) and
on “Going Concern” basis.

Foreign currency transactions:

2.1 Transactions denominated in foreign
currencies are accounted for at the rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary foreign currency assets and
liabilities at the Balance Sheet date are
translated at rates notified by Foreign
Exchange Dealers’ Association of India
(FEDAI). All profits/losses resulting from
year-end revaluations are recognised in
the Profit and Loss account.

2.2 Outstanding forward exchange contracts
and spot exchange contracts are revalued
at year end exchange rates notified by
FEDAI. The resulting gains or losses on
revaluation are included in the Profit and
Loss account in accordance with RBI/
FEDAI guidelines.

2.3 Contingent Liabilites on account of
foreign exchange contracts, guarantees,
acceptances, endorsements and other
obligations  denominated in foreign
currencies are disclosed at closing rates
of exchange notified by FEDAI.

2.4 The Bank has no foreign branches.

Investments:

3.1 Categorisation of investments:
In accordance with guidelines issued by
RBI, the Bank classifies its investment
portfolio into the following three categories:

i) ‘Held to Maturity’ - Securities acquired
by the Bank with the intention to hold
till maturity.

i) ‘Held for Trading’ - Securities acquired
by the Bank with the intention to trade.
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3.2

3.3

iii) ‘Available for Sale’ — Securities which
do not fall within the above two
categories are classified as Available
for Sale’

Classification of Investments:

For the purpose of disclosure in the
Balance Sheet, Investments are classified
as required under Banking Regulation Act,
1949 and RBI guidelines as follows:—

Government Securities, Other Trustee
Securities, Shares in  co-operative
institutions, Shares of limited companies,
PSU Bonds, Bonds of All India Financial
Institutions, Security Receipts and other
Investments.

Valuation of Investments:

() ‘Held to Maturity’ — These
investments are carried at their
acquisition cost less amortisation. Any
premium on acquisition is amortised
over the period remaining to maturity.

(i) ‘Held for Trading’ — The individual
scrip in the HFT category is marked
to market at monthly intervals. The
net resultant depreciation in each
classification (as mentioned in Para
3.2 above) is recognised in the Profit
and Loss Account. Net appreciation, if
any, is ignored.

(iii) ‘Available for Sale’ — The individual
scrip in the AFS category is marked
to market at the year end or at more
frequent intervals. The net resultant
depreciation in each classification
(as mentioned in Para 3.2 above)
is recognised in the Profit and Loss
Account. Net appreciation, if any, is
ignored.

(iv) Market value of Government
Securities (excluding Treasury Bills)
is determined on the basis of the
price list published by RBI or the
prices periodically declared by FBIL
for valuation at year-end. In case of
unquoted Government Securities,
market price or fair value is determined
as per the rates published by FBIL.

(v) Market value of other approved
securities is determined based on the
yield curve and spreads provided by
FBIL.

(vi) Equity shares are valued at cost or
the closing quotes on a recognised
stock exchange, whichever is lower.

(vii) Treasury Bills are valued at carrying
cost, net of discount amortised over
the period to maturity.

(viii) Certificate of Deposits  and
Commercial Papers are valued at
carrying cost.

(ix) Units of Mutual Funds are valued at
the lower of cost and net asset value
provided by the respective Mutual
Fund.

(x) Security Receipts - These are valued
at Net Asset Value as provided by the
Asset Reconstruction Company.

(xi) Broken period interest on debt
instruments is treated as a revenue
item. Brokerage, commission, etc.
pertaining to investments paid at the
time of acquisition are charged to
revenue.

(xii) Non performing investments are
identified and classified as per
applicable RBI guidelines.
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3.4 Accounting for Repo/ Reverse Repo

transactions (including transactions
under the liquidity Adjustment Facility
(LAF) with the RBI)

The securities sold and purchased under
Repo/ Reverse Repo are accounted as
Collateralised Borrowing and Lending
transactions. However, securities are
transferred as in the case of normal
outright sale/ purchase transactions and
such movement of securities is reflected
using the Repo/ Reverse Repo accounts
and contra entries. The above entries
are reversed on the date of maturity.
Costs and revenue are accounted as
interest expenditure/income, as the case
may be. Balance in Repo account is
classified under schedule 4 (Borrowings)
and balance in Reverse Repo account is
classified under Money at Call & Short
Notice.

4) Provisioning for Advances and Overdue

Interest Reserve:

4.1 The classification of

4.2 The overdue

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

advances into
Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful and
Loss assets as well as provision on non-
performing advances has been arrived at
in accordance with the guidelines issued
by RBI from time to time. In addition to this,
a general provision on standard assets is
made @0.40% of the outstanding amount
on a portfolio basis except in case of direct
advances to Agricultural and SME sector
@ 0.25%, advances to Commercial Real
Estate @ 1% and Commercial Real Estate-
Residential House Sector @ 0.75%.

interest in respect of
non-performing advances is provided
separately under “Overdue Interest
Reserve” as per the directives issued by
RBI.

5) Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

5.1

5.2

5.3

Leasehold Land, Computers and Motor
Cars are stated at cost less amortisation/
depreciation. Furniture & Fixtures, Plant &
Machinery and Leasehold improvement
are stated at written down value after
providing depreciation/amortisation.

Premises (including Freehold Land):
These are stated at the revalued amounts
less depreciation.

The Bank has framed its own policy for
the revaluation of immovable properties,
which is duly approved by it's Board.
Revaluations are carried out by obtaining
expert valuation reports by using
applicable methods of valuations.

Costincludes incidental expenses incurred
on acquisition of assets.

(i) Plant & Machinery, Furniture
& Fixtures and Motor Cars are
depreciated on written down value
method @30% p.a.

(ii) Premises (excluding Freehold Land)
are depreciated on straight line
method @ 2.5% p.a.

(i) Lease improvement costs are
amortised over the period of lease.

(iv) Leasehold Land is amortised over the
period of lease.

(v) Computers are depreciated on straight
line method @33.33% as directed by
RBI.

(vi) Depreciation on revalued portion
of Premises is adjusted against
Revaluation Reserve.

Depreciation on fixed assets purchased
during the year is charged for the entire
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6)

7)

8)
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year if 180 days or more have elapsed
since its purchase; otherwise it is charged
at 50% of the normal rate. No depreciation
is charged on fixed assets sold during the
year.

The additions to the Fixed Assets are net
of GST Input Tax Credit to the extent it is
availed by the Bank.

Revenue Recognition (AS 9):

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

ltems of income and expenditure are
accounted for on accrual basis.

Income from non-performing assets is
recognised to the extent realised, as per
the directives issued by RBI.

Interest on Government Securities,
debentures and other fixed income
securities is recognised on accrual basis.
Income on discounted instruments is
recognised over the tenor of the instrument
on a straight-line basis.

Dividend income is accounted on receipt
basis.

Exchange and brokerage are recognised
on realisation.

Income from distribution of insurance
products is recognised on the basis of
business booked.

Deposit for Services:

The Deposit for Services like Telephone,
Electricity, etc. paid to the concerned authorities
is written off as expenditure in the year in which
the relevant service connection is installed.

Employee Benefits (AS 15):

8.1

Gratuity:
The Bank provides for gratuity to all
employees. The benefit vests upon

completion of five years of service and
is in the form of lump sum payment to
employees on resignation, retirement,

8.2

death while in employment or on termination
of employment, an amount equivalent to
15 days salary plus eligible allowances
payable for each completed year of service,
as per the Payment of Gratuity Act,1972.
The Bank makes contributions to funds
administered by trustees and managed by
the LIC of India.

The defined gratuity benefit plans are
valued by an independent actuary as at the
Balance Sheet date, using the projected
unit credit method as per the requirement
of AS-15 “Employee Benefits] to determine
the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the related service costs.
Under this method, the determination is
based on actuarial calculations, which
include assumptions about demographics,
early retirement, salary increases and
interest rates. Actuarial gain or loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Provident fund:

In accordance with law, all the employees
of the Bank are entitled to receive benefits
under the provident fund. Every employee
contributes an amount, on a monthly
basis, at a determined rate (currently
12% of employee’s Basic Salary plus
eligible allowances). The Bank contributes
an equal amount @ 12% of employees’
Basic Salary plus eligible allowances.
This amount is transferred to PF account
managed by the Employees’ PF Trust.

In the case merged banks i.e. erstwhile
Maratha Mandir Co-op.BankLtd., erstwhile
Mandvi Co-op. Bank Ltd., erstwhile South
Indian Co-op. Bank Ltd., erstwhile Nashik
Peoples Co-op. Bank Ltd., erstwhile
Annasaheb Karale Janata Sahakari Bank
Ltd., erstwhile Murgharajendra Sahakari
Bank Ltd., and erstwhile Kolhapur
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9)

Maratha Co-op. Bank Ltd, PF contribution
of employees of these merged banks and
the employer’s contribution is transferred
to RPFC, Bandra, Mumbai.

The Bank’s contribution to Provident
Fund is accounted for on the basis of
contribution to the scheme.

8.3 Leave Encashment:

In respect of leave encashment liability,
the Bank has obtained Insurance Policies
with four different insurance companies.
The shortfall, if any between projected
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets as on 31% March is provided for
and recognised as expense in the Profit
and Loss Account. The liability of leave
encashment is provided on the basis
of actuarial valuation as at the Balance
Sheet date and considered as defined
benefit scheme. The actuarial valuation
is carried out as per projected unit credit
method.

8.4 Pension and LTC

The liability towards Staff Pension and
unavailed LTC is provided on the basis
of actuarial valuation as at the Balance
Sheet date and considered as defined
benefit scheme. The actuarial valuation
is carried out as per projected unit credit

method.

Segment Reporting (AS 17):

In accordance with the guidelines issued by
RBI, Bank has adopted Segment Reporting as
under:

9.1 SBU Treasury includes all investment
portfolio, profit/loss on sale of investments,
profit/loss on foreign exchange

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

10)

11)

12)

13)

transactions, equities and money market
operations. The expenses of this segment
primarily consist of interest expenses on
funds borrowed from external sources as
well as internal sources and depreciation/
amortisation of premium on Held to
Maturity category investments.

9.2 Other Banking Operations include all other
operations not covered under Treasury

operations.

Related Party Disclosures (AS 18):

There are no related parties which require a
disclosure under AS 18 other than the Key
Management Personnel. Since Mrs. S. M.
Sandhane, the Managing Director of the
Bank is a single party under the category Key
Management Personnel, no further details
need to be disclosed in terms of RBI circular
dated 29" March, 2003.

Operating Leases (AS 19):

Lease rental obligations in respect of assets
taken on operating lease are charged to Profit
and Loss Account on straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs are charged
to Profit and Loss account.

Earnings per Share (AS 20):

Basic earning per share is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the
weighted average number of shares (excluding
preference shares) outstanding during the year
calculated on monthly basis.

Income-Tax (AS 22):

13.1 Current income tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the
Tax Authorities in accordance with the
applicable provisions under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.
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14)

15)

16)

13.2 Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to
consideration of prudence, on timing
difference, representing the difference
between taxable income and accounting
income that originated in one period and
is capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods. Deferred Tax Assets
and Liabilities are measured using tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the Balance
Sheet date.

Intangible Assets (AS 26):

Intangible assets consist of Computer Software
acquired / self created. The same is amortised
equally over the period of three years as per
RBI guidelines.

Impairment of Assets (AS 28):

The Bank assesses at each Balance Sheet
date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. Impairment loss, if any,
is recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss
to the extent, the carrying amount of asset
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

Since the Bank has ascertained that there is
no material impairment of any of its assets, no
provision on account of impairment of assets is
required to be made.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (AS 29):

A provision is recognised when the Bank has
a present obligation as a result of past event

where itis probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on
best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

When there is a possible or present obligation
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure
is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the
financial statements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and related
income are recognised in the period in which
the change occurs.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when there
is a possible obligation arising from a past event,
the existence of which will be confirmed by
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not within the control of
the Bank or any present obligation arising from
past event which is not recognised since it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable
estimate of the amount of such obligation
cannot be made.
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lll. NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:
1) The Share Capital includes 771257 shares of ¥ 10/- each in respect of the persons who have not subscribed

to additional shares to make their shareholding minimum of 50 shares as required under Bye-law No.6C

and as a result, they are not entitled to their membership rights.

2) Interms of RBI directives, following additional disclosures are made :
(X in crore)
Sr. Particulars 31.03.2019
No.
1. Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio 14.75% 13.16%
2. Movement in CRAR
(i) Total Capital Funds 3,643.24 3,279.57
(i) Risk Weighted Assets 24,696.35 24,924.49
3. Investments :
(i) Book Value 13,129.03 11,013.69
(i) Face Value 13,365.56 11,274.69
(i) Market Value 13,115.96 10,712.93
4. Advances against :
(i) Real Estate 849.84 1,004.37
(ii) Construction Business 87.40 97.30
(iii) Housing 4,596.39 3,952.20
Advances against shares & debentures 29.24 30.01
Advances to directors, their relatives, companies/firms in which they are
interested:
(i) Fund based NIL NIL
(i) Non-Fund based NIL NIL
Average cost of deposits 6.04% 5.87%
NPAs
(i) Gross NPAs 1,249.80 1,193.57
(i) Net NPAs 382.30 451.89
9. Movement in NPAs
(i) Gross NPAs
Opening Balance 1,193.57 872.27
Add : Additions during the year 499.97 532.53
Less : Reduction / write off / upgradation during the year 443.74 211.23
Closing Balance. 1,249.80 1,198.57
(i) Net NPAs
Opening Balance 451.89 213.91
Add : Additions during the year 263.37 334.22
Less : Reduction during the year 332.96 96.24
Closing Balance 382.30 451.89
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(X in crore)
Sr. Particulars m 31.03.2019
No.
10.  Profitability :
(i) Interestincome as a percentage of working funds (%) 7.24 7.04
(ii) Non-interest income as a percentage of working funds (%) 1.14 0.96
(ili) Operating profit as a percentage of working funds (%) 1.46 1.47
(iv) Return on average Assets (%) 0.58 0.72
(v) Business (Deposits + Advances) per employee 14.94 14.24
(vi) Operating profit per employee 0.15 0.15
11. Provisions made towards :
(i) NPAs 236.60 198.30
(i) Depreciation on investments 19.94 11.39
(ili) Standard Assets (3.33) 6.28
(iv) Provision towards a/c under Covid Relief 1.55 0
12.  Movement in Provisions :
(i) Towards NPAs
Opening Balance 741.68 658.37
Add : Additions during the year 236.60 198.30
Less : Reduction during the year 144.08 114.99
Closing Balance 834.20 741.68
(i) Towards Depreciation on investments
Opening Balance 88.43 77.04
Add : Additions during the year 19.94 11.39
Less : Reduction during the year 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 108.37 88.43
(iii) Towards Standard Assets
Opening Balance 104.43 97.55
Add : Additions during the year 0.00 6.88
Less : Reduction during the year 3.33 0.00
Closing Balance 101.10 104.43
(iv) Towards COVID Relief Accounts:
Opening Balance 0.00 0
Add : Additions during the year 1.55 0
Less : Reduction during the year 0.00 0
Closing Balance 1.55 0
13. (i) Foreign currency assets 1,512.00 1,764.70
(ii) Foreign currency liabilities 185.50 292.42
14 (i) Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 36.04 33.89
(i) Arrears in payment of DICGC premium NIL NIL
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(X in crore)
Sr. Particulars m 31.03.2019
No.
15.  Penalty imposed by RBI 0.30" NIL
16.  Cost of premises
Original Cost 243.71 226.87
Add :- Revaluation 761.66 761.66
Closing Balance of premises 1,005.37 988.53
Closing Balance of Revaluation Reserve 625.90 644.92
*vide RBI letter dated 28.05.2020
3) In connection with Repo/Reverse Repo transactions:
(X in crore)
Particulars Minimum Maximum Daily average Outstanding
outstanding outstanding outstanding as on
during the year  during the year  during the year EEIREVET(C Rl
Security sold under Repo
i)  Government Securities 0.00 1,263.26 537.66 0.00
(NIL) (1,649.95) (740.91) (453.07)
i)  Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)
Securities purchased under Reverse Repo
i)  Government. Securities 0.00 1,139.61 137.76 0.00
(NIL) (982.42) (22.52) (576.99)
ii)  Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)
Securities sold under RBI Repos (LAF)
i)  Government. Securities 0.00 469.00 4725 469.00
(NIL) (80.00) (5.30) (NIL)
i)  Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)
Securities purchased under RBI Repos (LAF)
i)  Government. Securities 0.00 2,670.00 434.33 2,450.00
(NIL) (1,588.00) (75.08) (450.00)
i)  Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)
Note: i) Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.
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4) Non- SLR Investments:

4.1 Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments:

(X in crore)
Sr.  Particulars Amount Extent of “Below Extent of Extent of
No. Investment “Unrated” “Unlisted”
Grade” Securities Securities Securities
1. PSUs 54.78 0.00 0.00 0.00
(64.97) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
2. Fls 869.35 0.00 0.00 0.00
(848.80) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
3.  Public Sector Banks 31.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(31.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
4.  Mutual Fund 1.00 0.00 N.A. N.A.
(1.00) (0.00) (N.A) (N.A)
5.  Others 344.59 0.00 0.00 0.00
(389.12) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
6.  Provision held towards depreciation 108.37 XXX XXX XXX
(88.43) (XXX) (XXX) (XXX)
Total 1,300.72 0.00 0.00 0.00
(1,334.89) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.
4.2 Non-performing Non-SLR investments:
(X in crore)
Particulars Amount
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Opening Balance 0.00 0.00
Additions during the year 0.00 0.00
Reductions during the year 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 0.00 0.00
Total provisions held 0.00 0.00
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5) Details of Advances Restructured as on 31st March, 2020 are given below:

(X in crore)

Sr.  Particulars Housing SME Debt CDR Others
No, Loans  Restructuring

| Standard Numbers of Borrowers 0 4 0 14

Restructared © ©) @ ©

Amount Outstanding 0.00 14.37 0.00 369.59

(0.00) (0.00) (50.48) (257.22)

Sacrifice (Diminution in 0.00 0.03 0.00 12.59

the Fair Value) (0.00) (0.00) (0.66) (4.75)

Il Sub Standard Numbers of Borrowers 0 0 0 0

Restructured © 0 © 0

Amount Outstanding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(0.00) (16.88) (0.00) (20.00)

Sacrifice (Diminution in 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

the Fair Value) (0.00) @.11) (0.00) (1.23)

Il Doubtful Numbers of Borrowers 0 5 2 9

Restructured © @ 0 (12

Amount Outstanding 0.00 36.42 71.07 136.09

(0.00) (20.10) (26.55) (252.36)

Sacrifice (Diminution in 0.00 1.88 0.00 8.99

the Fair Value) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (17.26)

Total Numbers of 0 9 2 23

Borrowers ©) ) @) 22)

Amount Outstanding 0.00 50.79 71.07 505.68

(0.00) (36.98) (77.03) (529.58)

Sacrifice (Diminution 0.00 1.91 0.00 21.58

in the Fair Value) (0.00) @.11) (0.66) (23.24)

Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures

Amount and number of borrower accounts in respect of which applications for restructuring are under process, but
the restructuring packages have not yet been approved/implemented, are I 76.45 crore and 2 respectively (of which
1 account with exposure of ¥ 43.47 crore is existing CDR account) as on 31.03.2020. (Previous year - Nil)
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6)

Employee Benefits - AS 15:
Defined Contribution Plan

6.1 Bank’s contribution to Provident Fund — < 26.30 crore

(Previous year- X 24.74 crore)
Defined Benefit Plan

6.2 Assumptions:

Sr.  Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
No. | 310320 31.03.19 31.03.19
| Discount rate 6.84% 7.79% 6.81% 7.78%
Il Expected return on Plan Assets 6.84% 7.79% N.A. N.A.
Il Salary Escalation rate 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
IV Attrition Rate 3.00% 2.00% 3.00% 2.00%
Vv Mortality Table IALM IALM IALM IALM
(2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08)
Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate

6.3 Table showing change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit Obligation:

 in crore)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
Present value of obligation at the 130.36 131.96 36.33 36.00
beginning of the period
Interest cost 10.15 10.33 2.82 2.79
Current service cost 5.98 5.94 0.53 0.39
(Benefits paid directly by the (0.15) (0.11) (2.48) (2.31)
Employer)
(Benefits paid from the Fund) (18.15) (16.73) - -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on 2.71 - (0.02) -
Obligations-Due to Change in
Demographic Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on 8.06 0.32 3.94 (0.05)
Obligations-Due to Change in
Financial Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss on 7.16 (1.35) 1.30 (0.49)
obligations-Due to Experience
Present value of benefit obligation at 146.12 130.36 42.42 36.33

the end of the period
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6.4 Table showing Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets:

(in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

Fair value of plan assets at the 134.76 129.26 = -
beginning of the period

Expected return on Plan Assets 10.50 10.12 - -
Contributions by the Employer 9.72 12.46 - -
Benefits paid from the Fund (18.15) (16.73) - -
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan (1.14) (0.35) - -
Assets - Due to Experience

Fair value of plan assets at the end 135.69 134.76 - -

of the period

The plan assets are invested in the insurer managed fund which generally makes investment in secured
securities. Hence, the expected rate of return considered is yield on the government securities which match

the average term of the obligation.

6.5 Amount recognised in Balance Sheet:

(% in crore)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
(Present value of obligation at the (146.12) (130.36) (42.42) (36.33)
end of the period)
Fair value of plan assets at the end 135.69 134.76 - -
of the period
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (10.44) 4.40 (42.42) (36.33)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in (10.44) 4.40 (42.42) (36.33)

the Balance Sheet

6.6 Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss:

(X in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
31.03.19 31.03.19
Current service cost 5.98 5.94 0.53 0.39
Net Interest cost (0.34) 0.21 2.83 2.79
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss 19.06 (0.68) 5.21 (0.54)
Expenses recognised in Statement 24.70 5.47 8.57 2.64
of Profit or Loss
6.7 Investments under Plan Assets are as follows:
(in crore)
Category of Assets Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
| 310320 a103.19 [ B 31.03.19
Insurer Managed Funds 135.17 134.34 - -
Other 0.52 0.42 - -
Total 135.69 134.76 - -
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6.8 Actual Return on Plan Assets and Expected contribution for next year:

 in crore)
Particulars m 2019
Expected return on plan assets 10.50 10.12
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets- due to experience (1.14) (0.35)
Actual Return on Plan Assets 9.36 9.77
Expected Contribution for next year 17.49 1.58

6.9 Amounts of Gratuity and Pension for the current year and previous four years are as follows:
i. Gratuity
(X in crore)

Particulars m 2019 2018 2017 2016

(Present Value of Benefit (146.12) (130.36) (131.96) (124.77) (121.41)
Obligation at the end of the
Period)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at 135.69 134.76 129.26 125.23 121.41
the end of the Period

Funded Status (Surplus/ (10.44) 4.40 (2.70) 0.46 -
(Deficit))

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 716 (1.35) 12.37 (4.03) 17.02
on Obligations - Due to
Experience

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) (1.14) (0.35) 0.44 (0.47) (2.90)
on Plan Assets - Due to
Experience

ii. Pension
( in crore)

Particulars m 2019 2018 2017 2016

(Present Value of Benefit (42.42) (36.33) (36.00) (36.34) (33.16)
Obligation at the end of the
Period)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at - - - - -
the end of the Period

Funded Status (Surplus/ (42.42) (36.33) (36.00) (36.34) (33.16)
(Deficit))

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 1.30 (0.50) (0.87) 1.26 0.66
on Obligations - Due to
Experience

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) - - - - -
on Plan Assets - Due to
Experience
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C. Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

6.10Compensated absences

The actuarial liability of compensated absences of accumulated privileged and sick leaves of the employees

of the Bank is given below:

(X in crore)
Particulars m 2019
Privileged leave 81.95 70.70
Sick leave 20.33 20.34
Total actuarial liability 102.28 91.04
Assumptions
Discount rate
Privileged leave 6.84% 779%
Sick leave 6.83% 7.79%
Salary escalation rate
Privileged leave 4.00% 4.00%
Sick leave 0.00% 0.00%
7) Primary Segment Reporting (by Business Segments) AS 17:
(X in crore)
Particulars SBU Other Banking
Treasury Business (31t March 2019)
Segment Revenue 1,121.24 2,621.00 3,742.24
(990.32) (2,439.72) (3,430.04)
Segment Cost (incl. allocated provisions) 894.43 2,454.92 3,349.35
(808.35) (2,222.99) (3,031.34)
Operating Profit (after allocated provisions) 226.81 166.08 392.89
(181.97) (216.73) (398.70)
Profit before Tax 392.89
(398.70)
Income Tax 142.10
(107.41)
Net Profit 250.79
(291.29)
Other Information
Segment Assets 20,397.37 30,702.94 51,100.31
(17,908.08) (31,284.47) (49,192.55)
Unallocated Assets 826.65
(829.93)
Total Assets 51,926.96
(50,022.48)
Segment Liabilities 3,546.48 45,288.11 48,834.59
(4,024.17) (43,076.47) (47,100.64)
Unallocated Liabilities 560.58
(567.56)
Total Liabilities 49,395.17
(47,668.20)

94

Note:

(i) These segments have been reported considering the nature of products or services, different risks and
returns attributable to them, organisation structure and internal management information system.
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(i) Types of products & services in each business segment:

a) Strategic Business Unit (SBU) Treasury: Dealing operations in forex, money market & fixed income
products.

b) Other Banking Operations: Corporate & Retail Banking & Allied services.

(ili) Secondary Segment information: Bank caters mainly to the needs of Indian customers; hence separate
information regarding secondary segment i.e. Geographical Segment is not given.

(iv) Total Liabilities exclude Capital and Reserves other than those specifically identifiable with a segment.

(v) Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.

8) Operating Lease comprises leasing of office premises (AS 19):
(X in crore)

Particulars m 31.03.2019

Future lease rental payable as at the end of the year:

- Not later than one year 47.81 48.66
- Later than one year and not later than five years 100.34 85.34
- Later than five years 1710 748
Total of minimum lease payments realisation in the Profit and Loss account 62.66 58.83

for the year.

Total of future minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received under NIL NIL
non-cancellable sub-lease

Sub-lease payments realisation in the Profit and Loss account for the year NIL NIL

9) Major components of Deferred Tax (AS 22):

(X in crore)
Particulars | 31032020 31.03.2019
Deferred Tax Asset
1 Sec.43B 3.25 3.26
2 Provision for BDDR 300.88 266.26
3 Amortisation of HTM Securities 0.91 3.55
4 Provision for Restructured Assets 8.21 9.09
5 Other 1.48 3.29
Sub-Total (A) 314.73 285.45
Deferred Tax Liability
Difference in WDV of fixed assets 10.03 9.26
2 Special Reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) 57.72 50.03
3 Others 13.85 1.01
Sub-Total (B) 81.60 60.30
Net Deferred Tax Asset (A)-(B) 233.13 225.15

Note: Deferred Tax Asset has been recognised to the extent Management is reasonably certain of its realisation.
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10) Details of Computer Software —other than internally generated (AS 26):
a. Amortisation rates used @33.33% p.a. on straight line method. (However, if useful life of software is
shorter, then proportionate rates are used).

(X in crore)

Particulars m 31.03.2019
Opening Balance (at cost) as on April 1 35.42 34.41
Add : Additions during the year 2.82 1.01
Sub-Total (A) 38.24 35.42
Less : Amortisation made :

Opening Balance of Amortisation 33.24 30.62
Add : Amortisation during the year 2.36 2.62
Sub-Total (B) 35.60 33.24
Net carrying amount as on March 31 (A)-(B) 2.64 2.18

b. Amount of commitments (net of advance) for the acquisition of computer software —% 21.56 crore (Previous
year- X 24.58 crore).

11) The information in respect of their registration under Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development, Act
2006 is not received from suppliers / service providers by the Bank. Hence, information relating to the cases of
delays if any, in payments to such enterprises or of interest payments due to such delays could not be given.

12) The Bank has taken Group Mediclaim Policy covering its Directors. The Bank has paid premium of ¥ 1,78,435/-
on this account. (previous year X 1,60,114/-)

13) Market Risk in Trading Book as on 31.03.2020:
a) Qualitative Disclosures
Market Risk is the risk that the value of investments may undergo change over a given time period, simply
because of economic changes or other events that impact the financial markets. In other words, Market
Risk is calculated for both, adverse movement in the price of an individual security owing to factors related
to the individual issuer as well as interest rate risk in the portfolio.

Methodology: The Bank follows the Standardised Duration Approach for calculation of Market Risk. The
Bank manages the Market Risk in the books on an ongoing basis and ensures that the capital requirement
for Market Risk is being maintained on a continuous basis i.e. at the close of each business day.

The capital charge is applied to the market value of securities in the Bank’s trading book. Market Value is
determined as per the extant RBI guidelines on valuation of investments.

Minimum Capital Requirement is worked out separately for
1. ‘Specific Risk’ charge — for individual issuer related factors.
2. ‘General Market Risk’ — for interest rate risk in the portfolio.

Scope: The portfolios covered under the said approach include:

1. Securities included under the Held for Trading (HFT) category
2. Securities included under the Available for Sale (AFS) category
3. Open Foreign Exchange Position Limits
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Infrastructure / MIS & Reporting: The Investment Policy as approved by the Board of Directors provides
detailed guidelines for all operational procedures, settlements, valuations and risk controls pertaining to
the investments.

A separate Mid-Office is also in place which acts as an intermediary, monitoring compliance of regulatory
guidelines and of the Banks’ Investment Policy and undertakes reporting to higher management.

Parameters for risk measurement: Risk Management and reporting is based on parameters such as
Modified Duration, Net Open Position Limits, Gap Limits, and Value- at- Risk (VaR).

b) Quantitative Disclosure:
(X in crore)

Particulars m 31.03.2019

The Capital requirements for:

Interest Rate Risk 151.90 135.02
Equity Position Risk 0.06 0.06
Foreign Exchange Risk 3.29 3.24

14) Details of financial assets sold during the year to SC/RC for Asset Reconstruction:

(X in crore)
Particulars | 31032020 31.03.2019
a. No. of accounts 0 0
b.  Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC 0.00 0.00
c.  Aggregate consideration 0.00 0.00
d.  Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in 0.00 0.00
earlier years
e. Aggregate gain/loss over net book value 0.00 0.00

15) Disclosure with respect to ‘The Depositor Education and Awareness Fund Scheme, 2014’ (DEAF) as per

RBI Circular dated 27/05/2014:

(X in crore)
Particulars m 31.03.2019
Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 92.83 73.08
Add :- Amounts transferred to DEAF during the period 27.60 21.70
Less :- Amount reimbursed by DEAF towards claims for the year 1.35 1.86
Less :- Amount yet to be settled by DEAF till 31.03.2020 0.39 0.09
Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 118.69 92.83

16) The SARS-CoV2 virus responsible for Covid-19 continues to spread across the globe and India. This has

resulted in a significant decline and volatility in global and Indian markets and economic activity. Implementation
of lockdown and extensions has resulted in disruptions of business and common life. With situation still
unfolding, it is difficult to predict time horizons to gauge the impact. Major identified challenges for the Bank
borrowers across various industry sectors is expected to arise from eroding cash flows and elongated working
capital cycles. The Bank is gearing itself on all fronts to meet these challenges, including creation of additional
provisioning buffer. Despite these events and conditions, the Bank’s results in future are not expected to be
materially adverse nor would there be any significant impact on the going concern assumption.
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Sr. Particular Amount
No. (% in crore)
1 Respective amounts in SMA/overdue categories, where the moratorium/deferment was extended 925.43
2 Respective amount where asset classification benefits is extended 31.09
3 Provisions made during the Q4, FY2019-20 1.55
4 Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods against slippages and the NA
residual provisions
17) Earnings per Share (EPS)
(X in crore)
Particulars 2018-19
Net Profit after Taxation 250.79 291.29
Weighted average No. of Shares 22.09 19.62
EPS (in actuals) 11.35 14.85
18) Commission income from Bank assurance business:
(X in crore)
Sr. Nature of Income m 2018-19
No.
1. From selling Life Insurance Policies 11.21 9.31
2. From selling Non-Life Insurance Policies 4.49 3.71
3. From selling Mutual Fund Products 0.85 1.13
Total 16.55 14.15

19) In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI vide Circular no. RBI/2016-17/7, DCBR.BPD.Cir. No.
21/09.18.201/2016-17 dated July 7, 2016 and permission granted by Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies,
Government of India vide its letter No. R-11017/80/2012-L&M (Vol 2) dated 27.06.2019, during the year 2019-20

the Bank has raised ¥ 312.70 crore by way of Long Term (Subordinated) Deposits.

As against the proposed issue size and permission of ¥ 300 crore, the Bank has retained oversubscription
amounting to ¥ 12.70 crore. The Bank had filed request letters with RBI as well as the Hon. Joint Secretary
and Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies seeking permission for retaining the additional amount of
subscription. Permitted to retain the additional amount in view of the RBI stipulated conditions being fulfilled by

the Bank.

20) Detail of Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC) purchased by the Bank as per RBI circular FIDD.

CO.Plan.BC.23/04.09.01/2015-16 dated 7" April, 2016, are set out below:

(X in crore)
Sr  Category 315t March,2019
No.
1 PSLC-Small & Marginal Farmers 1,250.00 1,125.00
2 PSLC-General 650.00 1,050.00
3 PSLC-Micro Enterprises 400.00 185.00
Total 2,300.00 2,360.00

Details of PSLCs sold by the Bank are set out below:

Sr Category 31t March, 2020
No.

31st March,2019

1 PSLC-General

100.00
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21)

22)

23)

24)

Government of India has introduced section 115BAD in the Income Tax Act 1961 through Finance Act, 2020
which provides co-operative societies a non reversible option to pay income tax at a reduced rate effective
from assessment year beginning from 15t April, 2021 subject to certain conditions. The Bank is in the process
of evaluating the option to opt for lower tax rate and therefore has recognised the deferred taxes for the year
ended 31t March, 2020 at the rate existing prior to this amendment.

Demands under Income Tax Act X 66.76 crore (previous year X 29.61 crore), (demand amounting to ¥ 2.52
crore and interest portion thereon relates to issues which are decided in favour of the Bank in earlier year’s
tax assessments) and Service Tax ¥ 10.72 crore (previous year ¥ 10.72 crore) against which the Bank has
preferred appeals with appropriate authorities.

W. e. f. 1t Feb 2020, the Bank has revised its policy in respect of appropriation of recovery in call back
accounts. In terms of the revised policy, recovery of principal balance was prioritised over interest applied
but not recovered. Had the earlier policy being followed the interest income of the Bank and the outstanding
balance of the called back non performing advances would have been higher by I 5.79 crore.

Previous year’s figures are regrouped or rearranged, wherever necessary, to conform to the layout of the
accounts of the current year.

As per our report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 100515W

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
(C. M. Dixit) S. M. Sandhane S. N. Sawaikar A. A. Pandit
Partner Managing Director Director Director

Membership No. 017532
UDIN: 20017532AAAAAJ1062

sd/- sd/-
Place: Mumbai S. K. Sakhalkar G. E. Thakur
Date: July 24", 2020 Vice- Chairman Chairman
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CaSh FIOW Statement for the year ended 31t March, 2020 - )
In crore
Previous Year 31.03.2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit as per P/L account 250.79 291.29
Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation on Assets 25.76 25.67
Fixed assets written off/adjustment 0.03 0.04
Amortisation of Investments 16.39 21.78
Depreciation of Investment 21.19 11.39
Provision for Tax 150.08 88.05
Provision for BDDR 241.90 200.91
Provision towards a/c under Covid Relief 1.55 0.00
Deferred Tax (7.98) 16.74
448.92 364.58
Less: 699.71 655.87
Profit on Sale of Assets 0.20 0.37
Profit on Sale of Securities 226.87 131.97
Excess Provision for Restructured Assets reversed 2.52 (12.39)
Excess Contigent provision against standard assets written back 8188 (6.88)
232.92 113.07
466.79 542.80
Adjustments for
Decrease/(Increase) in Investments (1,699.63) 1,055.35
Decrease/(Increase) in Advances 458.85 (2,328.38)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets (19.84) (26.82)
Increase/(Decrease) in Funds (119.21) (106.52)
Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits 2,068.62 958.21
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (106.27) 582.52 (46.08) (494.24)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities before Tax 1,049.31 48.56
Income Tax paid (Net) (144.65) (113.02)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities after Tax (A) 904.66 (64.46)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property, plant & Equipment (69.63) (35.68)
Sale Proceeds of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.46 1.95
Net Cash generated from Investing Activities (B) (69.17) (33.73)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 30.56 32.50
Refund of Share Capital (8.54) (5.28)
Proceeds from Borrowing 29,381.69 20,519.10
Repayment of Borrowing (29,896.51) (19,529.45)
Dividend Paid (38.34) (34.25)
Net Cash generated from Financing Activities (C) (531.14) 982.62
Net increase in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 304.35 884.43
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,478.11 3,593.68
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4,782.46 4,478.11
Cash & Cash Equivalents Previous Year 31.03.2019
Cash 1,536.96 1,556.95
Balance with other banks (excluding Term Deposits maturing beyond 3 months) 477.26 268.59
Money at Call & Short Notice 2,768.24 2,652.57
4,782.46 4,478.11

1 Cash and Cash Equivalents include highly liquid short term investments for short period in form of Cash, balances held in current accounts
with other Banks(including Term Deposits maturing within 3 months) and Money at Call & Short Notice.
2 Cash flow Statement is prepared by using indirect method as mentioned in AS 3.

As per our report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 100515W

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
(C. M. Dixit) S. M. Sandhane S. N. Sawaikar A. A. Pandit S. K. Sakhalkar G. E. Thakur
Partner Managing Director Director Director Vice-Chairman Chairman

Membership No.017532
UDIN: 20017532AAAAAJ1062

Mumbai : July 24 2020
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Involvement of the Small Man

OUR MEMBERS

No. of Shares Held No. of Members Percentage
50-51 48,914 21.72
52-250 38,132 16.93
251-1500 68,397 30.37
1501-2500 69,802 30.98
Total 2,25,245 100.00

OUR DEPOSITORS

No. of Accounts Percentage

Upto < 1000 8,35,485 23.79
% 1001 to ¥ 5000 5,47,580 15.59

¥ 5001 to ¥ 10000 2,56,975 7.32

< 10001 to ¥ 20000 2,85,195 8.12

% 20001 to ¥ 30000 1,95,530 5.57
Above ¥ 30000 13,91,495 39.61
Total 35,12,260 100.00

OUR BORROWERS

No. of Accounts Percentage

Upto I 5000 9,537 745
% 5001 to X 10000 1,158 0.90
310001 to ¥ 25000 4,694 3.66
Above ¥ 25000 1,12,695 87.99
Total 1,28,084 100.00

ADVANCES TO PRIORITY SECTOR

No. of Accounts (X in crore)

Small Scale Industries 1,143 1,083.99
Small Businessmen & Traders 14,304 4,693.23
Other Priority Sector 41,149 5,134.29
Total 56,596 10,911.51
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Progress at a Glance (Year 1920-2020)
(X in lakh)

Year No. of Paid-up Reserve & Deposits Advances Total

Members Capital Other Funds No. of Alcs Amount No. of Alcs Amount Business
1920 190 0.06 - - 0.01 - 0.06 0.07
Silver Jubilee
1943 1,698 1.25 *1.00 4,293 23.48 - 3.23 26.71
Golden Jubilee
1968 15,207 14.43 *18.82 41,703 565.33 2,718 24780 813.13
1975 29,978 44.88 *44.43 87,912 1,527.06 5,323 893.11 2,420.17
1976 32,830 51.52 *54.78 1,04,025 1,961.57 6,081 1,006.99 2,968.56
Diamond Jubilee
1978 39,104 76.91 130.40 1,44,520 3,189.41 10,557 1,373.30 4,562.71
1979 44,049 94.12 194.92 1,67,198 3,989.92 13,712 1,969.00 5,958.92
1980 50,694 120.60 261.94 1,93,033 4,911.84 18,603 3,025.17 7,937.01
1981 57,489 156.79 387.94 2,32,317 6,194.37 22,235 3,381.47 9,575.84
1982 64,240 192.63 488.99 2,75,121 8,106.71 24,591 5,106.81 13,213.52
1983 69,042 223.24 567.46 3,19,602 10,445.95 25,090 6,508.41 16,954.36
1984 75,977 262.24 624.58 3,58,366 12,991.46 26,728 7,676.78 20,668.24
1985 83,162 312.79 693.10 3,19,528 15,849.76 29,922 8,971.03 24,820.79
1986 90,606 366.09 840.96 4,18,708 19,373.40 33,177 11,322.06 30,695.46
1987 97,071 409.37 974.48 4,49,286 22,914.72 36,379 13,550.34 36,465.06
1988 1,02,384 462.70 1,184.18 4,75,335 28,451.01 37,747 16,163.43 44,614.44
1989 1,10,269 531.51 1,446.63 5,02,284 31,038.07 43,484 19,233.62 50,271.69
1990 1,21,740 630.21 1,952.28 5,44,548 3744763 51,428 23,709.05 61,156.68
1991 1,27,646 706.07 2,893.61 5,97,496 45,541.01 54,405 26,051.59 71,592.60
1992# 1,30,074 760.90 4,120.52 6,48,424 51,451.77 53,226 28,473.76 79,925.53
Platinum Jubilee
1993 1,29,284 820.94 4,778.02 711,219 63,211.46 54,151 34,424.40 97,635.86
1994 1,30,758 902.32 4,924.41 779,212 79,233.15 61,263 45,837.00 1,25,070.15
1995 1,31,569 986.22 6,295.41 8,45,341 91,120.13 73,138 59,682.67 1,50,802.80
1996 1,32,046 1,049.29 9,145.06 8,97,713  1,08,930.40 77,154 71,324.70 1,80,255.10
1997 1,32,909 1,157.12 12,575.32 9,14,713 1,38,141.97 79,654 88,087.80 2,26,229.77
1998 1,34,061 1,291.49 15,810.05 9,47833  1,68,035.59 82,429 1,13,907.47 2,81,943.06
1999 1,36,007 1,519.43 19,458.27 10,00,141 2,03,181.86 84,531 1,38,380.24  3,41,562.10
2000 1,42,031 2,035.28 24,410.99 10,84,261 2,37,951.84 87,642 1,70,310.76  4,08,262.60
2001 **83,272 2,443.81 31,236.00 11,09,969  2,81,776.31 75,006 1,80,542.56 4,62,318.87
2002 **85,636 2,709.00 39,795.96 12,17,662 3,37,767.21 75,381 2,04,339.78 5,42,106.99
2003 **89,117 3,044.44 47841.14 12,99,736  3,66,059.68 73,308 2,22359.50 5,88,419.18
2004 **94,044 3,457.77 55,587.75 12,29,976  4,05,270.26 77917  2,61,675.60 6,66,945.86
2005 **1,00,581 4,156.48 70,162.39 11,80,900 4,78,614.38 85,312  3,24,722.93  8,03,337.31
2006 **1,06,264 4,896.57 82,198.60 14,00,757  6,20,428.65 1,00,115  4,60,898.62 10,81,327.27
2007 **1,23,169 6,877.24 97,362.05 18,11,635  8,92,494.33 1,16,687 6,37,045.87 15,29,540.20
2008 **1,26,174 7,120.97 1,05,973.67 21,92,673 11,43,081.93 1,22,626 744,830.67 18,87,912.60
2009 **1,29,741 7,749.67 1,09,671.08 25,02,655 12,91,884.64 1,27,769 8,11,040.59 21,02,925.23
2010 **1,34,417 8,623.11 1,18,413.65 24,39,699 14,26,672.86 2,75,479  9,25,035.47 23,51,708.33
2011 **1,62,560 10,283.24 1,37,375.92 25,59,939 15,80,096.07 1,11,991  11,51,199.23 27,31,295.30
2012 **1,68,529 11,691.66 1,59,877.47 29,32,606 19,25,270.98 1,12,196 13,95,270.49 33,20,541.47
2013 **1,72,282 12,690.93 1,83,440.27 31,86,120 21,14,433.16 1,04,923 15,02,341.51 36,16,774.67
2014 **1,75,242 16,768.78 1,97412.18 35,59,404 23,93,951.03 97,364 15,47005.02 39,40,956.05
2015 **1,78,747 18,930.10 2,05,757.04 39,15,156  27,17,084.05 96,718  17,79,812.40 44,96,896.45
2016 **1,82,008 20,275.76 2,16,839.75 41,59,753 31,49,584.33 95,376  20,36,611.50 51,86,195.83
2017 **1,88,249 21,522.60 2,46,967.82 43,18,903  33,73,741.87 97092 21,53,607.14 55,27,349.01
Centenary Year
2018 **1,99,616 23,674.57 2,63,228.49 41,98,064 35,05,665.84 1,02,326  23,46,911.29 58,52,577.13
2019 **2,13,836 26,396.89 2,97,341.24 41,57976  36,01,487.01 1,09,004 25,79,749.27 61,81,236.28
2020 **2,25,245 28,599.00 3,23,605.42 35,12,260 38,08,349.30 1,28,084 25,33,864.01 63,42,213.31

* Including Interest Reserve
** Shareholders holding shares 50 and above

# Financial Year: Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)
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(R in lakh)

Year Investments Working Capital Net Profit Dividend Dividend (%) No. of Branches
Amount

1920 - 0.07 0.02 - - 1
Silver Jubilee
1943 19.95 26.15 0.15 0.07 6.25 2
Golden Jubilee
1968 290.37 623.05 2.52 1.30 9.00 9
1975 675.50 1,763.27 9.01 3.80 9.00 20
1976 1,005.92 2,222.87 15.47 5.80 12.00 20
Diamond Jubilee
1978 1,951.06 3,611.75 26.09 8.30 12.00 24
1979 2,188.60 4,535.81 30.52 10.25 12.00 26
1980 2,188.62 5,901.83 35.11 12.40 12.00 30
1981 3,182.74 7,728.06 51.16 16.50 12.00 34
1982 3,434.15 9,991.28 65.09 20.75 12.00 35
1983 4,275.89 15,767.14 70.57 24.75 12.00 37
1984 5,640.36 15,581.07 59.79 28.50 12.00 39
1985 7,040.29 19,311.54 69.94 33.90 12.00 41
1986 8,796.67 24,213.61 118.76 40.00 12.00 41
1987 10,231.78 26,570.23 145.47 46.02 12.00 42
1988 13,120.54 32,802.00 165.75 51.19 12.00 42
1989 9,231.86 36,532.31 196.01 58.07 12.00 42
1990 10,119.16 44,464.08 301.40 69.25 12.00 45
1991 13,092.37 55,242.28 430.46 78.90 12.00 47
19924 17,560.62 64,032.95 468.33 81.75 15.00 50
Platinum Jubilee
1993 31,022.23 84,821.62 633.50 116.45 18.00 50
1994 34,974.74 1,06,411.84 679.96 126.40 15.00 52
1995 35,185.80 1,30,031.69 742.66 140.00 15.00 56
1996 42,042.27 1,61,866.40 865.54 151.00 15.00 58
1997 53,534.87 1,96,927.69 1,100.00 204.00 18.00 59
1998 63,459.20 2,47,374.86 1,239.01 185.00 15.00 61
1999 85,431.42 3,12,590.57 1,423.97 228.00 15.00 63
2000 95,639.19 2,95,608.33 1,734.09 314.90 18.00 69
2001 1,25,554.41 3,41,061.54 2,341.54 390.00 20.00 72
2002 1,65,198.50 4,06,281.05 2,600.00 492.05 20.00 75
2003 1,77,262.65 4,38,696.89 2,935.85 408.03 18.00 76
2004 1,56,615.16 4,93,749.72 6,225.26 553.47 18.00 75
2005 2,05,289.40 5,90,348.41 7,037.88 659.52 18.00 75
2006 1,98,977.97 7,63,100.74 10,120.29 789.99 18.00 86
2007 2,60,989.72 10,74,54713 15,517.92 1,138.42 18.00 105
2008 4,35,006.22 13,87,410.43 20,226.06 1,285.00 20.00 153
2009 4,79,150.75 15,62,281.73 21,079.23 1,489.13 20.00 175
2010 5,32,139.11 17,07,105.88 11,967.42 1,590.62 20.00 200
2011 5,25,376.69 19,18,937.24 21,226.72 1,847.16 20.00 216
2012 5,62,698.78 22,43,562.49 23,556.92 2,181.58 20.00 226
2013 6,44,403.06 24,79,080.40 11,209.11 1,213.10 10.00 229
2014 7,80,474.21 28,13,279.55 14,709.37 1,292.80 10.00 267
2015 7,73,511.53 31,37,109.58 19,017.71 2,019.29 15.00 267
2016 9,38,847.77 35,94,150.08 21,119.15 2,139.02 15.00 283
2017 8,87,279.19 38,44,221.27 23,405.32 4,573.29 30.00 282
Centenary Year
2018 9,56,797.41 40,52,029.80 24,067.53 2,972.70 1750 281
2019 11,01,369.00 42,91,512.10 29,128.52 3,370.31 1750 284
2020 13,12,903.35 44,70,056.72 25,079.48 0.00 0.00 284
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Amendment to Bye-Laws

ANNEXURE A

Bye Text in existing Bye-Laws Proposed Amendment Text after incorporation Reasons for amendment

Law

No.

5(e)(v) “The buying, selling DELETE Nil To make our Bye
and dealing in bullion laws compatible with RBI
and species on behalf of Regulations and  RBI
member customers’ Master Circular dated July

1, 2015.

64 AA NEW “To constitute a Board of “To constitute a Board of Asperthe guidelinesissued
Management (BOM) as Management (BOM) as by the Reserve Bank
per existing guidelines per existing guidelines of India vide its Circular
or guidelines issued by or guidelines issued by dated 31 December,
Reserve Bank of India Reserve Bank of India 2019, it has been proposed
from time to time” from time to time” to constitute a Board of

Management (BOM).
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State-wise/Region-wise Branch Network

Sr.  Name of the Branch Telephone Nos. (Land Lines)
No.
MUMBAI
1 Andheri (East) 022-26822522 022-26822523
2 Andheri (East), Marol 022-29202254 022-29201705
3 Andheri (East), Pump House 022-28349777 022-28349779
4 Andheri (East) Sakinaka 022-28472356 022-28471284
5 Andheri (East), MIDC 022-28324487 022-28324488.
6 Andheri (West), Berfiwala Road 022-26231136 022-26284287
7 Andheri (West), Lokhandwala 022-26367467 022-26367468
8 Andheri (West), Veera Desai Road 022-26742487 022-26742489
9 Ballard Estate 022-22631114 022-22621115
10  Bandra (East), Bandra Kurla Complex 022-26599181 To 187
1 Bandra (East), Chetana College Govt. Colony 022-26428544 022-26432636
12 Bandra (West), National Library 022-26419249 022-26419265
13 Bhandup (West) 8657922351 8657922352/253
14 Borivali (West), Shimpoli 022-28014653 (Fax) 022- 28014634
15  Borivali (West), I. C. Colony 022-28921388 (Fax) 022-28920699
16  Borivali (West), Chandavarkar Lane 022-28922725 022-28940518
17 Borivali (West), Saibaba Nagar 022-28090029 022-28090030
18  Borivali Nancy Colony 022-28962006 022-28962008
19  Borivli (East), Carter Road 022-28621117
20 Carnac Bunder, Vyapar Bhavan 022-24671265 022-24671266
21 Chatrapati Shivaji Terminus 022-22071121/22061122 022-22036973
22  Chembur (West), Sion Trombay Road 022-25287760-61
23  Chembur East, Collector’s Colony 022-25534016
24  Chembur West, Tilak Nagar 022-25275503 022-25275504
25 Dadar East, Hindu Colony 022-24120461 (Fax) 022-24120460
26  Dadar East, Dadasaheb Phalke Road 022-24163144 022-24161145
27  Dadar West, Gadkari Chowk 022-24374258/93
28 Dadar West, Madhukendra Off N C Kelkar Rd 022-24310885 022-24221180
29 Dabhisar (East) Maratha Colony 022-28971273 022-28281759
30 Dahisar (West) 022-2892 9561 (Fax) 022- 28923513
31  Dharavi 022-24035627
32 Fort 022-2243005/06 022-4914900,
49147972
33  Ghatkopar (East) 022-25012167 022-25012168
34  Ghatkopar (West) 022-25001301 022-25001334
35  Ghatkopar (West), Barve Nagar 022-25140646/24671156
36  Ghatkopar (West), Maneklal Estate 022-25166663 022-25166664
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37  Girgaum 022-23841162-65 022-23821240
38 Goregaon (East) Hub 022-26864150 022-26864151
39  Goregaon (East) 022-29275055 022-29275046
40 Goregaon (East) Nagariniwara 022-28401550 022-28421440
41 Goregaon (West) 022-28745611 022-28745612
42  Goregaon (West) Link Road 022-28776248 022-28774924
43  Jogeshwari (East) 022-28204101 022-28270677
44  Juhu 022-26117538 022-26117539
45  Kalbadevi Branch 022-22079406 022-22079407
46  Kandivali (East) Thakur Complex 022-28546881 022-28546883
47  Kandivali (West) Charkop 022-28690593 022-28696225
48  Kandivali (West) Dahanukar Wadi 022-28627002 022-28627003
49  Kandivali (West) M. G. Road 022-28655009

50 Kandivali East, Thakur Villege 022-28546883

51 Kandivali West 022-28020457 022-28072470
52  Kandivli (West) Govt. Ind. Estate 022-28606175 022-28601176
53  Khar (West) Pali Hill 022-2640873 022-26499693
54  Khar Linking Road 022-24671179 022-26487589
55  Lower Parel 022-24378832 022-24379930
56  Mahim 022-24453328 022-24468864
57  Malad (West) 022-28441183 022-28441184
58 Malad (West) Link Road 022-28790631/28798533

59  Malad (West) Orlem 022-28619454 022-28619455
60  Masijid Bunder 022-23426305 022-23411087
61  Matunga (East) 022-24032797 022-24014624
62 Mazgaon 022-23707475 022- 23707476
63  Mulund (East) 022-21636137 022-21635054
64  Mulund (West) RR T Road 022-25902252 022-25902253
65  Mulund (West) Veena Nagar 022-2164 3655 022-2164 3656
66  Mulund (West) 022-259111189/90

67  Mumbai Central 022-23012024 022-23012025
68 Overseas 022-49205656

69 Parel (West) 022-24161146 (Fax) 022-21488752
70  Powai Hiranandani 022-25701726 022-25702268
71 Powai lIT 022-24671198 022-25784868
72  Prabhadevi 022-24223780 022-24671200
73  Santacruz (East) 022-26175133 022-26175134
74 Santacruz (East) Kalina 022-26654362/63 (Fax) 022-26654361
75  Santacruz (West) 022-26040096 022-26040180
76  Sarvodaya Nagar (Mulund West) 022-25901290 022-25901291
77  Sion (West) 022-24083727 022-24086353
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78  SME - Lower Parel 022-24821801
79  SME - Nariman Point 022-22856215
80  SME - Vikhroli 022-25770001 022-25774105
81  SME - Vileparle 022-42349999
82  Vidyavihar (West) 022-25134137 022-25134138
83  Vikhroli (East) 022-25741105 022-25741106
84  Vikhroli (West) 022-25785770 022-25780245
85 Vile Parle (East) 022-26171224 022-26171227
86  Vile Parle (West) 022-26147095 022-24671293
87 Wadala 022-24183432 022-24183696
88  Wadala, Antop Hill 022-24016030 022-24099438
89  Worli 022-24221209 022-24221210
THANE & PALGHAR DISTRICT
90 Ambarnath (East) 0251-2609292 0251-2609797
91  Badlapur (East) 0251-2697711
92  Bhayander (West) 022-28186905 022-28186907
93  Bhiwandi 02522-230060 02522-230061
94  Boisar 8087694666 8983094566
95 Dombivli (East) 0251-2447689 0251-2447690
96 Dombivli (West) 0251-2489022 0251-2493013
97 Kalwa 022-25381173 022-25347456
98 Kalyan 0251-2200081 0251-2205037
99 Kalyan (East) Kolshewadi 0251-2363862 0251 2363863
100 Kalyan (West) Khadakpada 0251-2302208 0251-2302209
101 Kalyan (West) Shil Road 0251-2971661 0251-2971662
102 Mira Road 022-28551848 / 51
103 Palghar 02525-250695 02525-252604
104 Thane (Naupada) 022-25332677 022-25332754
105 Thane (Vartak Nagar) 022-25390772 022-24671214
106 Thane (West) Bramhand 022-25841365 022-25841366
107 Thane (West) Hiranandani 022-21730758 022-27130959
108 Thane (West) Jambli Naka 022-25381210 022-25381211
109 Thane (West) Kasarvadvali 022-25976585 022-25976884
110 Thane (West) Khopat 022-25372175 022-25372176
111 Thane (East) Kopri Colony 022-25325016 022-25325023
112  Thane (West) Panchpakhadi 022-25348645 022-25348646
1183 Thane (West) Vijaynagari 022-25971603 022-25972242
114 Thane (West) Wagle Estate 022-25837767 022-25837768
115 Ulhasnagar 0251-2732716
116 Vasai (East) 8087056055 8087056054
117  Vasai (West) 0250-2340944 0250-2340955
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118  Virar (West) 0250-2505962 7276055161
119 Virar East 0250-2520527
120 Virar West Arnala 0250-2588311

NAVI MUMBAI
121 Airoli 022-27602655 022-27602656
122 APMC Vashi 022-27831160 022-27831161
123 CBD Belapur 022-27560083 022-27560084
124 Kamothe 022-27431571 022-27431572
125 Khanda Colony 022-27453183 2227453184
126 Kharghar 022-27746911 022-27746922
127 Koparkhairane 022-27551328 022-27551329
128 Nerul (East) 022-27712666 022-27712667
129 Nerul (West) 022-27729922 022-27723657
130 Sanpada 022-27755292 / 27755381
131 Seawood Branch 022-27714551 022-27724551
132  Turbhe 022-27842234 022-27842235
133 Uran 022-27231009 022-27231008
134 Vashi 022-27890192 022-27893188
135 Vashi Sector - 12 022-27667616 022-27667615

PUNE
136  Akurdi 020-27662133 020-27662157
137 Aundh 020-24213217
138 Baner Road 020-27292957 020-27292958
139 Bavdhan 020-22951512 020-22952434
140 Bhosari Branch 020-27112366 020-27112367
141 Bhusari Colony 020-25286002 020-25286004
142 Bibvewadi 020-24231467 020-24213217
143 Budhwar Peth 020-24462131 020-24455226
144 Chakan 02135-249330 02135-249331
145 Chinchwad 020-27351313 020-27351414
146 Dahanukar Colony 020-25462500 020-25469648
147 F C Road 020-25652491 020-25652492
148 Fatima Nagar 020-26861046 020-26860181
149 Ganesh Khind Road 020-25582249
150 Ganeshnagar 020-25435066 020-25435077
151 Hadapsar 020-26999081 020-26994424
152 Hinjewadi 020-22933568 020-2022933567
153 Karve Road 020-25431780 020-25432056
154 Katraj 020-24364847 020-24364848
155 Kharadi 020-27014026 020-27014027
156 Kondhava Pune 020-26851073 020-26851074
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157 Narayan Peth 020-24465178 (F) 020-24465205
158 Narhe Branch 020-24390114 020-24390115
159 Pashan 020-25870092 020-25870492
160 Paud Road 020-25449122 020-25449129
161 Pimple Nilakh, Pune 020-27276000 020-27276001
162 Pimple Saudagar, Pune 020-27206600 27206601
163 Pimpri 020-27474671
164 Rajgurunagar Pune 02135-223377 02135-223388
165 Ranjangaon Pune 7276007102
166 Sahkar Nagar 020-24221211 020-24221411
167 Shivane Branch 020-25294914 020-25294915
168 Sinhgad Road 020-24109120 020-24109121
169 SME - Pune 020-41422200 To 41422210 020-41422232/34
170 Somwar Peth 020-26063721 020-26134722
171 Talegaon Dabhade 02114-224004 (Fax) 02114-224005
172 Tilak Road 020-24444257 020-24448941
173 Undri Branch 020-26909075, 020-26909083
174  Vamnicom 020-25701220
175 Viman Nagar 020-26630226 020-26630227
176  Vishrantwadi 020-26696172 020-26696173
177 Wagholi (Pune) 8087001175
178 Wakad Branch 020-29705755 020-29705766
179 Warje 020-25215154 020-25215155
AHMEDNAGAR
180 MIDC Ahmednagar 0241-2777602 0241-2777603 (Fax)
181 Savedi Road 0241-2341121 0241-2341120 (Fax)
NAGPUR
182 Chapru Nagar - Nagpur 0712-2730266 0712-2730260
183 Gandhi Baug 0712-2722694 0712-2722694
184 Hingna Road - Nagpur 07104-237022 07104-237026
185 Kalamna Market 0712-2680325
186 Pratap Nagar 0712-2243260 0712-2243280
187 Wardha Road 0712-2250046 0712-2252904
AKOLA
188 Tilak Road Akola 0724-2436611
AURANGABAD
189 CIDCO Aurangabad 0240-2243006 0240-2243007
190 Gajanan Maharaj Temple 0240-2243012 0240-2243013
191 Khadkeshwar 0240-2243023 0240-2243022
192 MGM Medical College 0240-2243008
193 Mit Hospital 0240-2243009 0240-2243027
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194 Station Road 0240- 2243010 0240-2243011
195 TV Centre 0240-2243028 0240-2243029
196 Waluj 0240-2243005 0240-2243021
SOLAPUR
197 Budwar Peth Solapur 0217-2727225
RAIGAD
198 Alibaug 02141-225951 02141-225952
199 Mahad 02145-223822 02145-223823
200 Panvel, MCCH Society 022-27467945 022-27467944
201 Panvel, S N Road 022-27461161 022-27471164
202 Pen 02143-255584 02143-255585
203 Roha 02194-232352 02194-232353
204 Ulwe Branch 9833918247
JALGAON
205 Baliram Peth-Jalgaon 0257-2233613 0257-2233614
206 Jalgaon 0257-2234382 0257-2234383
SATARA
207 Karad 02164-225505
208 Satara 02162-227455 2162-227355
NASHIK
209 Cidco Nashik 0253-2390432
210 Gangapur Road Nashik 0253-2314538
211 Jail Road Br. (Nasik) 0253-2416430
212 Mahatma Nagar 0253-2357461 0253-2360434
213 Main Road, Nasik 0253-2502220 0253-2502221
214 Musalgaon 02551-240752
215 Sharanpur Road 0253-2581293 0253-2317677
RATNAGIRI
216 Chiplun 02355-257138 02355-255201
217 Lanja 02351-230195 02351-230196
218 Lavel 02356-262640
219 Rajapur 02353-232344 02353-232345
220 Ratnagiri 02352-223690 02352-223691
SINDHUDURG
221 Devgad 02364-261828 02364-261829
222 Kankavali-Rameshwar Plz 02367-230241 02367-230242
223 Kudal 02362-221150 02362-221151
224 Malvan 02365-252114 02365-252145
225 Sawantwadi 02363-274413 02363-274414
226 Vaibhavwadi 02367-237585 02367-237586
227 Vengurla 02366-262509 02366-262510
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SANGLI
228 Kupwad 0233-2346878
229 Laxmi Market 0233-2223138
230 Mahavir Nagar 0233-2624267
231 Shastri Chowk 0233-2332294
232 Shivaji Nagar (Sangli) 0233-2375890 0233-2375899
233 Vita 02347-276230
KOLHAPUR
234 Ichalakarniji 0230-2432597
235 Mahapalika (Kolhapur) 0231-2644208
236 Mangalwar Peth (Kolhapur) 0231-2621319
237 New Shaupuri (Kolhapur) 0231-2651753/754
238 Rajarampuri 0231-2521681 0231-2521682
GUJARAT
AHMEDABAD
239 Anand Nagar - Ahmedabad 079-26769351 079-26769352
240 Bapu Nagar Ahmedabad 079-22777754 079-22777755
241 CG Road Ahmedabad 079-26401387 079-26401388
242 Ghatlodia 079-27402740 079-27402741
243 Isanpur Ahmedabad 079-25810004 079-25810005
244 Maninagar 079-25461004 079-25461005
245 Naranpura - Wadaj Ahmedabad 079-27492958 079-27493026
VADODARA
246 Alkapuri 0265-2329002 0265-2329001
247 Fatehganj 0265-2750586 0265-2750587
248 Karelibaug 0264-2481299 0265-2481249
249 Manjalpur 0265-2643506 0265-2643507
SURAT
250 Adajan 0261-2780168 0261-2780186
251 Ring Road 0261-2335230 0261-2335231
252  Surat 0261-2552093 0261-2552094
VAPI
253 Vapi 0260-2425663 0260-2425664
KARNATAKA
254 Belgaum 0831-2420433 0831-2436342
255 Belgaum Tilakwadi 0831-2468544 0831-2468630
HUBLI
256 Hubli 0836-2256015 0836-2356468
BENGALURU
257 Banashankari - Bengluru 080-26763781 080-26763815
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258 Bengaluru Kormangala 080-25502275 080-25502276 (Fax)

259 Chamrajpet Bengaluru 080 -26601213 080-26600050

260 Gandhi Nagar Bengalore 080-22341151 080-22341152

261 Jayanagar 080-26532275 080-26532276 (Fax)

262 Malleswaram 080-23466656 080-23466657(Fax)
DAVANGERE

263 Davangere 08192-233452 08192-233453
DHARWAD

264 Dharwad 0836-2443396 0836-2443397
MANGLORE

265 Bhavanthi Street Br 0824-2440636 0824-2440637

266 Chilimbi Br (Mangalore) 0824-2452143 0824-2452142

267 M.G. Road Br (Mangalore) 8242-495671 8242-495672
MYSORE

268 Mysore 0821-2542266 0821-2544666
TUMKUR

269 Tumkur 0816-2277667 0816-2277668
UDUPI

270 Udupi 0820-2526010 0820-2529010
GOA

271 Bicholim 0832-2360460

272 Curchorem - Sanvordem 0832-2654044

273 Mapusa 0832-2264064 0832-2264268

274 Margao 0832-2732594 0832-2736114

275 Panjim 0832-2228023

276 Ponda 0832-2318556 0832-2318726

277 Porvorim 0832-2412502 0832-2412503

278 Sankhali 0832-2365677 0832-2365678

279 Sme - Goa 0832-2437021 0832-2437022

280 Vasco 0832-2515170 0832-2517732
MADHYA PRADESH

281 Indore 0731-2528792 0731-2528791

282 Annapurna Road 0731-2473232 0731-2473233
DELHI

283 Connaught Place - New Delhi 011-23412100 011-23413100

284 Lajpat Nagar, New Delhi 011-26422100 011-26423100
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Saraswat Bank bagged the
2" rank in India in the prestigious
Forbes World’'s Best Banks 2020 survey

Forbes2020

WORLD’S BEST

Certificate

Based on a customer-centric methodology,
Forbes recognizes

Saraswat Bank

as one of
The World’s Best Banks 2020

Over 65,000 bank customers rated the banks they're involved with according to the banks’
trustworthiness, customer services, digital services, financial advice and overall satisfaction.

ol b i el

Douglas A. Lopenzina Manuel Mérbach
Vice President at Forbes Media LLC CEO Statista Inc.

Forbes statista¥




Saraswat
° Bank

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.
(Scheduled Bank)




	01_intro page high_R1
	2 Director Report
	3
	4-1
	Cover_CTP

